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Madam / Sir,

Ref: Intimation under Regulation 30 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Sub: Notice of the meeting of unsecured creditors of the Company convened pursuant to the

directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (NCLT).

Further to our letter dated 4™ February, 2021, we wish to inform you that pursuant to order of Hon’ble NCLT
dated 28th January, 2021, as amended by corrigendum order dated 2nd February, 2021 & 9" February, 2021
respectively, a meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Company will be convened on Wednesday, 17"
March., 2021 at 04:00 p.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), for the
purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of
Arrangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital between the Company, Robust Hotels Private Limited and
their respective shareholders and creditors under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and 66 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

Notice along with annexures, convening the meeting of the unsecured creditors on 17" March, 2020 at 4:00

p.m. is enclosed herewith.

Request you to please take the above information on records.

Thanking you.

Yours truly,

For Asian Hotels (East) Limited _
L e

Saumen Chatterjee

Chief Legal Officer & .

Company Secretary

Encl: as stated above
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NOTICE OF MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS

(CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER DATED 28th JANUARY, 2021, AS AMENDED BY

CORRIGENDUM ORDER DATED 2nd FEBRUARY, 2021
OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH)

MEETING

Day Wednesday

Date 17th March, 2021

Time 04:00 P.M.

Venue | In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms, as per the directions of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench, Kolkata, the meeting shall be conducted through video
conferencing / other audio-visual means and is deemed to take place at Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector
— 3, Salt Lake City, Kolkata, West Bengal — 700098
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
KOLKATA BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) No. 1155/KB/2020
IN THE MATER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS, IF ANY, OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013, READ
WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES 2016.

AND IN THE MATTER OF:

ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED [CIN NO. L15122WB2007PLC162762], ACOMPANY INCORPORATED UNDER THE
PROVISIONS OF COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND HAVING ITS REGISTERED OFFICE AT HYATT REGENCY KOLKATA,
JA-1, SECTOR — 3, SALT LAKE CITY, KOLKATA, WEST BENGAL — 700098, INDIA. Tel No. 033 6820 1346; Fax No. 033
2335 8246; Email: saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com; Website: www.ahleast.com.

AND IN THE MATTER OF:

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED (“DEMERGED COMPANY”), ROBUST
HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“RESULTING COMPANY”) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND
CREDITORS FOR INTER ALIA THE DEMERGER OF THE SECURITIES TRADING UNIT OF THE DEMERGED
COMPANY (“DEMERGED UNDERTAKING”) INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL.

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED (“Notice”)
To
The Unsecured Creditors of Asian Hotels (East) Limited (the “Company”)

NOTICE is hereby given that by an Order dated January 28, 2021, as amended by Corrigendum Order dated February
02, 2021 (the “Order”), in the above mentioned Company Scheme Application No. CA(CAA) No. 1155/KB/2020, the
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench has directed a Meeting to be held of the Unsecured Creditors of the
Company (the “Meeting”), for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the
Scheme of Arrangement between Robust Hotels Private Limited, the Company and their respective shareholders and
creditors (the “Scheme”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the Unsecured
Creditors of the Company will be held at 4:00 PM on Wednesday, the 17th day of March, 2021 through video conferencing
(VC) / other audio visual means (OAVM) to transact the business as stated hereunder, and the Unsecured Creditors of the
Company are requested to attend and to consider and if thought fit, approve with or without modification(s), the resolutions
set out below in this Notice under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) with the requisite majority.

“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, other
applicable enactments, rules, regulations and guidelines, Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the sanction by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”/ “Tribunal”) and subject to other
approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by the NCLT, the approval of the Unsecured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Robust Hotels Private Limited and the Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors (the “Scheme”).”

“‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do and perform all
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect
to this Resolution and effectively implement the arrangements embroiled in the Scheme and to accept such modification,
amendments, limitations and conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT and /or any other



authority(ies) while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authority under the Law, or as may be required for the purpose of
resolving any doubt or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may be deem fit and proper,
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek any
further consent or approval of the Unsecured Creditors of Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

Due to difficulty in dispatch of the Notice along with the explanatory statement by post or courier, on account of threat
posed by COVID-19 pandemic situation and as permitted under the MCA Circulars and the Order, the Company is
sending the Notice through electronic mail to Unsecured Creditors whose electronic mail address is available with the
Company. For other Unsecured Creditors, Notice is being sent through registered post or speed post or through courier.

The Unsecured Creditors can vote on resolutions through VC/OAVM during the Meeting. The Company is also extending
remote e-voting facility for its unsecured creditors, to enable them to cast their votes electronically in advance of the
Meeting. The instructions for remote e-voting are appended to the Notice. Therefore, unsecured creditors can vote on
the aforesaid resolutions either through remote e-voting prior to the Meeting while the e-voting window is open or through
voting via VC/OAVM during the Meeting. Only those Unsecured Creditors, who are present in the Meeting through VC/
OAVM facility and have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting and are not otherwise barred from doing
so, shall be eligible to vote in the Meeting. It is clarified that casting of votes by remote e-voting shall not disentitle a
Unsecured Creditor as on the Cut-off Date from attending the Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pertaining to the said Resolution setting out the material facts and reasons thereof under Sections
230 and Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with copy of the Scheme and other annexures, is enclosed. Copies of the same can
also be obtained free of cost by sending a request through email to saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com.

For Unsecured Creditors whose email address are not registered with the Company, they may follow the procedures
mentioned in the notes to the Notice for casting their votes and can also get their email address registered with the
Company. The Unsecured Creditors who have not registered their email addresses with the Company can get the same
registered by emailing to saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com at least 72 hours before the meeting.

The National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench has appointed Mr. Abhishek Sikdar, Advocate, to be the Chairperson
of the said meeting.

Mr. Gopal Kumar Khetan, Practicing Chartered Accountant has been appointed as the scrutinizer to conduct the voting
via VC/OAVM at the meeting and through remote e-voting, in a fair and transparent manner.

The above mentioned Scheme of Arrangement, if approved in the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval by
the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench.

Sd/-
Abhishek Sikdar
Chairperson
Dated this 12th day of February 2021
Place: Kolkata

NOTES:

1. In accordance with the Order, this Notice is being sent by email to all Unsecured Creditors whose name is recorded
in the books of accounts of the Company as on January 31, 2021, (the “Cut-off date”) as well as of June 30, 2020,
i.e. with respect to which a list of unsecured creditors of the Company was submitted before the Hon’ble NCLT.
For Unsecured Creditors whose email is not registered with the Company, Notice is being sent to them through
registered post or speed post or through courier.

2. In view of continuing COVID-19 pandemic and the restrictions imposed on the movement of people, physical
attendance of the unsecured creditors is not required and the meeting is being held through video conferencing
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10.

1.

12.

(“VC”) or other audio visual means (“OAVM”), as allowed by the Tribunal vide the Order, and in compliance with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) circular dated May
5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020,April 13, 2020 and 31st December, 2020 (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”). The venue of the Meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company.

Unsecured Creditors may join the Meeting through VC/OAVM Facility by following the procedure as mentioned
below which shall be kept open for the Unsecured Creditors from 3:30 p.m. (IST) i.e. 30 minutes before the time
scheduled to start the Meeting and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM Facility 15 minutes
after the scheduled time to start the Meeting.

The Unsecured Creditors of the Company as of the Cut-off Date shall have the facility of voting during the Meeting
through VC/ OAVM. Voting rights of each Unsecured Creditors shall be reckoned basis the value of the Company’s
unsecured debt from such Unsecured Creditor as on the Cut-off date. A person who is not an Unsecured Creditors
as on the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice of Meeting for information purpose only. Kindly refer notes below for
procedure for voting during the Meeting through VC/OAVM.

The Company is also extending the facility of remote e-voting during the period commencing from Sunday, 14th
March, 2021 (9:00 A.M.) and ending on Tuesday, 16th March, 2021 (5:00 P.M.). During this period, Unsecured
Creditors of the Company whose name is recorded in the books of accounts of the Company as on the Cut-off Date
i.e. 31st January, 2021, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. Kindly refer notes below for procedure for remote e-voting. Once the vote on a resolution
is cast by the Unsecured Creditors, the Unsecured Creditors shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Unsecured Creditors attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast
their vote through e-voting during the Meeting. Unsecured Creditors who have voted through remote e-voting shall
be eligible to attend the Meeting, however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeting.

As the Meeting is being conducted through VC/OAVM, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote is not
available for this Meeting. Hence, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this
Notice.

A Body Corporate or Foreign Institutional Investor (“FII”) or Foreign Portfolio Investor (“FPI”) is entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors provided such Body Corporate or Fll or FPI
sends a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the Board Resolution/ power of Attorney authorizing its representatives
to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. The said
authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer (along with a copy of such representative’s identification proof) by
email through its registered email address to khetangopal23@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in,
cscorporate@sarafhotels.com and saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com not later than 48(forty eight) hours prior to the
commencement of the Meeting.

A statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the business to be transacted at
the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice. The Notice, Explanatory Statement and all documents
referred to therein shall be available at www.ahleast.com.

In line with Section 103 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Order, the quorum of the Meeting shall consist of 5
Unsecured Creditors of the Company. The attendance of the Unsecured Creditors attending the meeting through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be acted
upon only if the resolution mentioned in the notice has been approved at the meeting by a majority of persons
representing three fourth in value of unsecured creditors present and voting at the meeting via VC/OAVM or remote
e-voting.

The material documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory statement and pursuant to applicable
provisions, shall be open for inspection from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on all working days (except Sundays and Public
Holidays) upto 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors at the Registered Office of the
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13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

Company. Copies of the Scheme of Arrangement and Explanatory Statement can be obtained free of charge at the
registered office of the Company or by sending a request through email to saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com.

The Notice convening the aforesaid Meeting will also be published through advertisement in The Financial Express
(Kolkata Edition) in English and Aajkal (Kolkata Edition) in Bengali.

The company has entered into an arrangement with NSDL, for facilitating e-voting at the Meeting and remote
e-voting, through their e-voting platform www.evoting.nsdl.com.

For your login credentials i.e. User Id and password for casting the vote please refer email sent for the Meeting.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of the voting at Meeting, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting
and e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report
of total votes cast in favour or against the resolution for approval of the Scheme, if any, and provide it forthwith to the
Mr. Abhishek Sikdar, Chairperson of the Meeting who shall declare the Result.

The business of the meeting shall be transacted and the result thereof ascertained accordingly. The aforesaid
resolution for approval of the Scheme shall, if passed by a majority in number representing three-fourths in value of
such unsecured creditors, present and voting at the meeting via VC/OAVM, be deemed to have been duly passed on
the date of the said meeting (i.e. 17th March, 2021) under Section 230(1) read with Section 232(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The result declared by the Chairperson of the Meeting, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be available forthwith
on the website of the Company at www.ahleast.com and on the website of NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.
The Company shall simultaneously forward the result to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited,
where the shares of the Company are listed.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Transferee Company
(www.ahleast.com) and on NSDL website (https://evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after the result is declared.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR UNSECURED CREDITORS ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

20.

21.
22.

23.

24.

Unsecured Creditors will be provided with a facility to attend the Unsecured Creditors meeting through VC/OAVM
through the NSDL e-Voting system. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Unsecured Creditors login where the
EVEN of the Company will be displayed.

Unsecured Creditors are encouraged to join the meeting through laptops / tablets for better experience.

Further Unsecured Creditors will be required to allow camera and use internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptop connecting via mobile
hotspot may experience audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Unsecured Creditors who would like to express their views/ask questions during the Meeting or have queries in
respect of the Scheme may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request on or before March 12, 2021
mentioning their name, membered , email id, mobile number at saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com. The questions
and queries should be restricted to the Scheme. Those Unsecured Creditors who have registered themselves as a
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

PROCEDURE AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR UNSECURED CREDITORS FOR E-VOTING

The procedure for remote e-voting and e-Voting on the day of the meeting of Unsecured Creditors of the Company is as
follows-

a)

Use the following URL for e-voting: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either on a personal Computer or on a mobile.



Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders/
Members’ section.

After entering the details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.

Enter the login credentials i.e., user id and password mentioned in your email. Your user id will be EVEN Number
followed by Member’s Unique Number registered with the company

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i) If your email ID is registered in your account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to
you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email open the
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file - the password to open the .pdf file is your Member’s Unique No.
The pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify to cast your vote and click on
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.
Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

The said e-facility for voting shall be available from 3:00 p.m. on the day of the Meeting, until the conclusion of the
Meeting.

If any votes are cast by the Unsecured Creditors through the e-voting available during the Unsecured Creditors
meeting and if the same Unsecured Creditors have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then
the votes cast by such Unsecured Creditors shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting
is available only to the Unsecured Creditors attending the meeting.

The Company is also extending the facility of remote e-voting during the period commencing from Sunday, 14th
March, 2021 (9:00 A.M.) and ending on Tuesday, 16th March, 2021 (5:00 P.M.).

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting User
Manual available at the “Downloads” section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 / 1800-
1020-990 / 1800-22-44-30 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
KOLKATA BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) No. 1155/KB/2020

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS, IF ANY, OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013, READ
WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES 2016.

AND IN THE MATTER OF:

ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED [CIN NO. L15122WB2007PLC162762], ACOMPANY INCORPORATED UNDER THE
PROVISIONS OF COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND HAVING ITS REGISTERED OFFICE AT HYATT REGENCY KOLKATA,
JA-1, SECTOR — 3, SALT LAKE CITY, KOLKATA, WEST BENGAL — 700098, INDIA. Tel No. 033 6820 1346; Fax No. 033
2335 8246; Email: saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com; Website: www.ahleast.com.

AND IN THE MATTER OF:

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED, ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS FOR INTER ALIA THE DEMERGER OF THE
DEMERGED UNDERTAKING INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH RULE
6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1. The National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, (“Tribunal”), by an Order dated January 28, 2021, as amended
by Corrigendum Order dated February 02, 2021 (“Order”) in the Company Application referred to above, with respect
to the Scheme of Arrangement between Robust Hotels Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) and Asian Hotels
(East) Limited (“Demerged Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors for demerger and transfer
of the Securities Trading Unit of the Demerged Company (“Demerged Undertaking”) from the Demerged Company
into the Resulting Company (“the “Scheme”) has directed the convening of the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders
of Asian Hotels (East) Limited to be held at 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, the 17th day of March 2021, through video
conferencing (VC) / other audio visual means (OAVM) which shall be deemed to be held at Hyatt Regency Kolkata,
JA-1, Sector — 3, Salt Lake City, Kolkata, West Bengal — 700098.

2. The Order further directs the convening of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company
at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, the 17th day of March 2021, through VC / OAVM, to consider the Scheme. As the
Demerged Company does not have any secured creditors, the requirement of holding a meeting of secured creditors
does not arise, as recorded in the Order.

3. Asian Hotels (East) Limited (“Demerged Company”) is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956, having its registered office at Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector — 3, Salt Lake City, Kolkata, West
Bengal — 700098 and email: saumen.chatterjee@ahleast.com. The Demerged Company was incorporated as
Vardhman Hotels Private Limited on 08 January 2007 and was converted into a public limited company on 28 July
2007. The name of Demerged Company was changed to its present name on 16 February 2010. The CIN of the
Demerged Company is L15122WB2007PLC162762 and PAN is AACCV4634N. The Equity Shares of the Demerged
Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and BSE Limited (“BSE”) (together, the
“Stock Exchanges”).

4. The Demerged Company is primarily engaged in two(2) lines of business through separate divisions as follows: (a)
Hotel Division engaged in the operation and management of Hyatt Regency Kolkata; and (b) Investment Division
which in-turn consists of the “Securities Trading Unit” (comprising of treasury/liquid investments which is being
regularly traded and bonds, mutual funds, and shares of certain companies, which already are under an agreement
of sale, part performance completed) and the “Strategic Investments Unit” (comprising inter alia of investment in
and loans given to the Resulting Company and GJS Hotels Limited).
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10.

The share capital structure of the Demerged Company as on December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Share Capital Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital
9,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 90,00,00,000
10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,00,000
Total 91,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
1,15,27,797 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 11,52,77,970

Total 11,52,77,970

Robust Hotels Private Limited (“Resulting Company”), is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956, having its registered office at 365, Anna Salai Teynampet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu — 600018, India and
Email: thanika@sarafhotels.com.The CIN of the Resulting Company is CIN U55101TN2007PTC062085 and PAN
is AADCR5418B. The shares of the Resulting Company are not listed on any stock exchange. The Demerged
Company holds 22,41,83,829 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Resulting Company (directly and through its
nominees), aggregating to 100% of the total equity share capital of the Resulting Company. Resulting Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

The Resulting Company is authorized to engage in the business of operating and management of Hyatt Regency
Chennai, a hotel located at 365, Anna Salai, Teynampet in Chennai.

The share capital structure of the Resulting Company as on December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Share Capital Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital
22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,25,00,00,000
Total 2,25,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
22,41,83,829 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Total 2,24,18,38,290

The Scheme provides for (i) the demerger and transfer of the “Demerged Undertaking” (being the undertaking,
business, activities and operations of the Demerged Company pertaining to Securities Trading Unit) from the
Demerged Company into and with the Resulting Company as a going concern, in accordance with Sections 230-
232 of Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of Income-tax Act, 1961 (ii) reorganization and
reduction of equity shares of the Resulting Company held by Demerged Company (without payment of consideration),
in terms of Section 66 of Companies Act, 2013, and its utilization for wiping out losses of the Resulting Company
and (iii) a bonus issue by the Demerged Company of fully paid-up equity shares to its equity shareholders as of the
Record Date in 1:2 ratio, that is, 1 (one) new bonus fully paid-up equity share (having face value of Rs. 10/- (Indian
Rupees ten)) for every 2 (two) Equity Shares of the Demerged Company (having face value of Rs. 10/- (Indian
Rupees ten) each) held by a shareholder of the Demerged Company as of the Record Date, in accordance with
Section 63 of the Companies Act, 2013. The “Record Date” shall be a date after the sanction of the Scheme but
before the Effective Date, as fixed by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company in consultation with the
Board of Directors of the Resulting Company

The proposed demerger and transfer of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company into the Resulting
Company pursuant to this Scheme shall be in the interest of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company



11.

and all their concerned stakeholders including shareholders, creditors, employees, and general public in the following
ways:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Unlocking the value of Demerged Company’s shares for its shareholders, which is presently getting subdued
on account of subdued performance and balance sheet of Resulting Company;

Possible release of guarantee(s) presently given by the Demerged Company to the lenders of the Resulting
Company. This would clear the contingent liability as appearing in the financial statements of the Demerged
Company, and will potentially improve the credit rating of the Demerged Company, thereby enabling reduction
in cost of finance for the Demerged Company and better price discovery on the stock market;

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company shall also be entitled to the benefit of getting listed on the Stock
Exchanges pursuant to the SEBI Circular. Therefore, shareholders of the Demerged Company (as of the Record
Date) shall, as a result of the Scheme, hold Equity Shares of 2 (two) listed entities, the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company. Such shareholders would then be able to choose to remain invested in both or either of
the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, giving them greater flexibility in managing / dealing with
their investments in different companies, being the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company in view of
their respective businesses, and individual risk profiles;

Improving the balance sheet of the Resulting Company and its credit rating by providing liquid assets and
resources that would enable enhancement in future profitability without any sacrifice of value by the shareholders
of the Demerged Company, enabling potential turn-around and/or expansion programs for the Resulting
Company, and assist the Resulting Company in supporting and potentially reducing its debt burden and cost of
financing;

Enable unlocking of the true value of the Resulting Company for the shareholders of the Demerged Company
(in a separate entity, being the Resulting Company), which does not appear to be reflecting fully and accurately
in the present consolidated market valuation of the Demerged Company on account of there being a holding
company discount;

Provide scope for attracting and accessing targeted funding and investors for the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company and provide better flexibility in pursuing long term growth plans and strategies for the
separate companies, instead of the Resulting Company continuing to use Demerged Company’s credit rating
and guarantees and equity funds;

Enable the management of the Demerged Company to evaluate the performance of the Hotel Division on an
independent basis and keep its risks (if any) ring-fenced; and

(viii) Enable enhanced strategic flexibility and focus of the respective managements of the Demerged Company and

the Resulting Company, thereby facilitating the separate managements to efficiently exploit opportunities for
each of the said businesses.

The salient features of the Scheme are as follows :

A

B.

C.

Appointed date means the Effective Date (beginning of business hours) or such other date as may be directed
/ approved by the Tribunal(s). The Scheme shall become effective upon the filing of the sanction order of the
Scheme with the relevant jurisdictional Registrar of Companies by each of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company (the “Effective Date”), and shall be deemed to have become effective from the Appointed
Date.

The Scheme provides inter-alia for demerger and transfer of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged
Company and into and with the Resulting Company.

Equity Shares to be issued by the Resulting Company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company pursuant
to the Scheme in accordance with the Share Entitlement Ratio will be listed on the Stock Exchanges in
accordance with the SEBI Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to
time, including vide Circular CFD/DIL 3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017 and Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

19.

dated January 03, 2018, read with Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22,
2020.

The aforesaid are only the salient features of the Scheme. You are requested to read the entire text of the
Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

The amounts due to the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company as on 30th June, 2020 is Rs. 5,94,14,816/-
(Rupees five crore ninety four lakh fourteen thousand eight hundred sixteen only), and as of January 31, 2021 is Rs.
3,84,15,464.27/-. (Three crore eighty four lakhs fifteen thousand four hundred sixty four rupees and twenty seven
paise only).

The amounts due to the unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31st July, 2020 is Rs. 61,73,62,002/-
(Rupees sixty one crore seventy three lakh sixty two thousand two only).

The Scheme shall have no adverse effect on any of the directors, key management personnel, promoters, non-
promoter members, creditors and employees of the Demerged Company The Scheme is in the interest of all
stakeholders of the Demerged Company.

The Scheme shall have no adverse effect on any of the directors, key management personnel, promoters, non-
promoter members, creditors and employees of the Resulting Company. The Scheme is in the interest of all
stakeholders of the Resulting Company.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company under the Companies Act, 1956 or the Companies Act, 2013.

There is no petition pending for winding up of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company.

The details of the promoter and promoter group of the Demerged Company are as under:

S.No. Name of the Promoter Address of the Promoter No of shares held

i Saraf Industries Limited IFS Court, Bank Street, Twentyeight Cyber City, 3630630
Ebene- 72201, Mauritius

ii. Radhe Shyam Saraf Flat D20/F Caine Mansion, 80 — 88, 3284680
Caine Road, Hong Kong.

iii. Ratna Saraf Flat D20/F Caine Mansion, 80 — 88, 617347
Caine Road, Hong Kong

iv. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green Avenue Lane 24731
Vasant Kunj New Delhi: 110070

V. Arun Kumar Saraf Grand Hyatt Residences, Juniper Hotel Vakola Pipe 8732
Line Road, Vakola, Santacruz East Mumbai: 400055

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company in its Meeting held on November 14, 2019 approved the Scheme
and filing thereof.

The details of the Directors of the Demerged Company who voted in favour of the Resolution, against the Resolution
and who did not participate or vote on such Resolution are as under:

S.No. Name of Director Address Voted for the | Voted against | Did not vote or
Resolution | the Resolution participate

i Mr. Radhe Shyam Saraf |Flat D20/F Caine Mansion, 80- - - -
88, Caine Road, Hong Kong

ii. Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf Grand Hyatt Residencies, - - Did not
Juniper Hotel Vakola Pipe Line Participate
Road, Vakola, Santacruz East,

Mumbai- 400055

10



20.

21.

S.No. Name of Director Address Voted for the | Voted against | Did not vote or
Resolution | the Resolution participate
iii. |Mr. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green Avenue - - -
Lane Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-
110070
iv. [Mr. Rama  Shankar|22/2A, Gora Chand Road, Voted in - -
Jhawar# Kolkata- 700014 favour
v. | Mr. A.C. Chakrabortti 29/13. Ballygunge Park, PO-| Voted in - -
Ballygunge, Kolkata- 700019 favour
vi. |Mr. Padam Kumar |3, Queens Park, Kolkata- Voted in - -
Khaitan 700019 favour
vii. |Mrs. Rita Bhimani 12/4, Sunny Park Apartments| Voted in - -
6, Sunny Park, Kolkata- favour
700019

*Did not vote / participate, being interested Directors.

#Late. R S Jhawar ceased to hold the office of Independent Director due to his sudden demise on Wednesday,

14th October, 2020.

Mr. Radhe Shyam Saraf and Mr. Umesh Saraf had sought and was given leave of absence from the above mentioned
Meeting and did not attend the Meeting.

The details of the promoter and promoter group of the Resulting Company are as under:

S.No. | Name Address No of Equity shares held

i. Asian Hotels (East) Limited | Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector-3, 22,41,83,829
Salt lake City, Kolkata- 700 098

ii. Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf Grand Hyatt Residencies, Juniper Hotel Nil
Vakola Pipe Line Road, Vakola, Santacruz
East, Mumbai- 400055

iii. Mr. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green Avenue Lane Vasant Nil
Kunj, New Delhi- 110070

iv. Mr. Varun Saraf Grand Hyatt Residences, Vakola Pipe Line Nil
Road, Vakola, Santacruz East Mumbai:
400055

The Board of Directors of the Resulting Company in its Meeting held on January 13, 2020, approved the Scheme
and filing thereof.

The details of the Directors of the Resulting Company who voted in favour of the Resolution, against the Resolution
and who did not participate or vote on such Resolution are as under:

Sl. No.

Name of Director

Address

Voted for the
Resolution

Voted against
the Resolution

Did not vote
or participate

Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf

Grand Hyatt Residencies,

Juniper  Hotel

Vakola

Pipe Line Road, Vakola,
Santacruz East, Mumbai-

400055
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22.

Kunj, New Delhi- 110070

SI. No. Name of Director Address Voted for the | Voted against | Did not vote
Resolution the Resolution | or participate
ii. Mr. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green - - Did not
Avenue Lane Vasant participate

Mr. Varun Saraf

Grand Hyatt Residencies,
Vakola Pipe Line Road,
Vakola, Santacruz East,
Mumbai- 400055

Apartments 6, Sunny

iv. Mr. Avali Srinivasan 45, Sapthagiri Colony, - - -
Jafferkhanpet, Chennai-
600083
V. Mr. Rama Shankar | 29/13. Ballygunge Park, | Voted in favour - -
Jhawar# PO- Ballygunge, Kolkata-
700019
vi. Mrs. Rita Bhimani 12/4, Sunny Park | Voted in favour - -

Park, Kolkata- 700019

Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf, Mr. Varun Saraf and Mr. A. Srinivasan had sought and was given leave of absence from the
above-mentioned meeting and did not attend the meeting.

*Did not vote / participate, being interested Directors.

#Late. R S Jhawar ceased to hold the office of Independent Director due to his sudden demise on Wednesday,
14th October, 2020.

The details of the Directors of the Demerged Company and their shareholding in the Demerged Company (“A”) and
the Resulting Company (“B”) either singly or jointly are as follows:

S.No. Name of Director Address Age Position Equity Shares Held
(Yr) A B
i Mr. Radhe Shyam Saraf Flat D20/F Caine Mansion, | 90 | Non-Executive | 3284680 -
80-88, Caine Road, Hong Director
Kong
ii. Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf Grand Hyatt Residencies, | 61 Joint 8732 -
Juniper  Hotel  Vakola Managing
Pipe Line Road, Vakola, Director
Santacruz East, Mumbai-
400055
iii. Mr. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green Avenue | 56 Joint 24731 -
Lane Vasant Kunj, New Managing
Delhi- 110070 Director
iv. Mr. A.C. Chakrabortti 22/2A, Gora Chand Road, | 90 Independent - -
Kolkata- 700014 Director
vi. Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan | 3, Queens Park, Kolkata- | 67 Independent - -
700019 Director
vii. | Mrs. Rita Bhimani 12/4, Sunny Park | 75 Independent - -
Apartments 6, Sunny Park, Director
Kolkata- 700019

12




23. 23. The details of the Directors of the Resulting Company and their shareholding in the Demerged Company (“A”)
and the Resulting Company (“B”) either singly or jointly are as follows:

S.No. Name of Director Address Age Position Equity Shares Held
(Yr) A B
i Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf Grand Hyatt Residencies, | 61 Non- 8732 -
Juniper Hotel Vakola Pipe Line Executive
Road, Vakola, Santacruz East, Director
Mumbai- 400055
ii. Mr. Umesh Saraf H. No. 27-A, Green Avenue | 56 Non- 24731 -
Lane Vasant Kunj, New Delhi- Executive
110070 Director
iii. Mr. Varun Saraf Grand Hyatt Residencies, | 36 Non- - -
Vakola Pipe Line Road, Vakola, Executive
Santacruz  East, Mumbai- Director
400055
iv. Mr. Avali Srinivasan 45, Sapthagiri Colony, | 73 Non- - 1(One) in
Jafferkhanpet, Chennai- Executive the capacity
600083 Director of nominee
of Asian
Hotels
(East)
Limited, the
Demerged
Company
Vi. Mrs. Rita Bhimani 12/4, Sunny Park Apartments | 75 | Independent - -
6, Sunny Park, Kolkata- 700019 Director

24. No Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except in the capacity of being a shareholder of the
companies involved in the scheme are concerned, or interested financially or otherwise, in the Scheme.

25. The Scheme does not affect in any manner nor vary the rights in any manner of the Key Managerial Personnel (as
defined under the Companies Act 2013) or Directors of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company. The
Scheme also does not propose any compromise or arrangement with the creditors of the Demerged Company or the
Resulting Company.

26. Pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company based on the agreed share entitiement ratio
is reproduced below:

Particulars Pre-Scheme (December 31, 2020) Post-Scheme
Total No. of shares held | Shareholding as a% | Total No. of shares held | Shareholding as a%
Promoter 7566120 65.63 11349179 65.63
Public 3961677 34.37 5942517 34.37
Total (A+B) 11527797 100.00 17291696 100.00
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27.

28.

29.

30.

31.
32.

33.

Pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company is reproduced below:

Particulars Pre-Scheme (December 31, 2020) Post-Scheme
Total No. of shares held | Shareholding as a% | Total No. of shares held | Shareholding as a%
Promoter 224183829 100 11349179 65.63
Public - - 5942517 34.37
Total (A+B) 224183829 100.00 17291696 100.00

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a) The approval by the requisite majority of the classes of persons, including shareholders and creditors of the
Resulting Company and Demerged Company under Section 230 to 232 of the 2013 Act.

b) The scheme being approved by the public shareholders of the Demerged Company in terms of SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March, 10, 2017, read with Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249
dated December 22, 2020 i.e., the votes cast by the public shareholders of the Company in favour of the
resolution approving the Scheme being more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders of the
Company against it.

c) The sanctioning of this Scheme by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, and National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, whether with or without any modifications or amendments as they may deem fit.

d) The filing of the certified copies of the relevant orders of the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench and
National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench with the respective Registrar of Companies, by the Demerged
Company and Resulting Company.

e) Any other sanctions and orders as may be directed by the National Company Law Tribunal in respect of the
Scheme.

Corporate Unsecured Creditors may participate and vote at the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors through their
authorized representative by lodging a certified true copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney (along with
a copy of the identification proof of the authorised representative) with the Company not later than 48(forty-eight)
hours before the time of commencement of the Meeting, authorizing such person to attend and vote on its behalf.

In the present matter, Mr. Mahim S. Mehta, a Registered Valuer, has provided the Capital Allocation and Share
Entitlement Report dated January 13, 2020, and a Fairness Opinion dated January 13, 2020 has been provided by
D&A Financial Services (P) Limited.

The Demerged Company has not accepted any deposit nor has issued debentures.

Copy of the Notice issued to the Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company, the Scheme of Arrangement and
Explanatory Statement under Sections 102 and 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been placed on the website
of the Demerged Company at www.ahleast.com. A copy of the Scheme, along with Explanatory Statement under
Sections 102 and 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 is also being forwarded to the Registrar of Companies, West
Bengal.

The following documents will be open for inspection by the Unsecured Creditors and also for obtaining extracts from,

or for making of / obtaining copies of, at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company between 10:00 a.m. to 5:00

p.m. on all working days (except Sundays and Public Holidays) upto 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Meeting of

the Unsecured Creditors, and shall also be available on the website of the Company www.ahleast.com:

(i) Explanatory Statement under Section 230, and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016.

(i) Copy of the Company Application No. CA(CAA) No.1155/KB/2020.
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(i) Copy of the Tribunal’'s Order dated January 28, 2021, as amended by Corrigendum Order dated February 02,
2021, in the above Company Application.

(iv) Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.
(v) Copy of the Scheme.

(vi) Copy of the Capital Allocation and Share Entitlement Report dated January 13, 2020 issued by Mr. Mahim S.
Mehta.

(vii) Copy of the Fairness Opinion dated January 13, 2020, issued by D&A Financial Services (P) Limited.

(viii) Complaints Report dated March 02, 2020 and March 13, 2020 submitted by the Demerged Company to the
Stock Exchanges.

(ix) Copy of the Observation Letters dated May 21, 2020 from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
BSE Limited respectively.

(x) Report under Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 adopted by the Board of Directors of Demerged
Company.

(xi) Report under Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 adopted by the Board of Directors of Resulting
Company.

(xii) Audited Financial Statement of Demerged Company for the period ended March 31, 2020.

(xiii) Audited Financial Statement of Resulting Company for the period ended March 31, 2020.

(xiv) Supplementary Accounting Statement of Demerged Company for the period ended September 30, 2020.
(xv) Supplementary Accounting Statement of Resulting Company for the period ended September 30, 2020.

(xvi) Copy of the extracts of the Board Resolutions dated November 14, 2019 and January 13, 2020, of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company respectively approving the Scheme.

(xvii)Certificate issued by the Auditor of the Demerged Company to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any
proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(xviii) List of Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on June 30, 2020 and the Cut-off Date i.e. 31st
January, 2021.
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT, DEMERGER AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL
(UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 AND SECTION 660F THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

AMONGST
ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
AND
ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
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PART 1

[.2
1.2.1

OVERVIEW, OBJECTS AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

Brief Overview of the Companies

Asian Hotels (East) Limited (“AHEL"):

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AHEL is a listed public limited company incorporated under the laws of India and
having its registered office atHyatt Regency, JA-1, Sector - 3, Salt Lake City,
Kolkata, West Bengal - 700098, India. The CIN of AHEL
isL15122WB2007PLC162762.The PAN of AHEL isAACCV4634N.

AHEL is primarily engaged in two lines of business through separate divisions as
follows: (a) Hotel Division engaged in the operation and management of Hyatt
Regency, Kolkata; and (b) Investment Division which in-tumn consists of the
Securities Trading Unit and the Strategic Investments Unit.

AHEL was incorporated under the name ‘Vardhman Hotels Private Limited” on
January 08, 2007as a private limitedwith the Registrar of Companies, West
Bengal, and was converted into a public limited company on July 28, 2007. The
name of AHEL was changed to its present name onFebruary 16, 2010.

The shares and securities of AHEL are listed on the Stock Exchanges.

Robust Hotels Private Limited (“RHPL™):

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RHPL is a private limited company incorporated under the laws of India and
having its registered office at 365, Anna Salai Teynampet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu -
600018, India. The CIN of RHPL is US5101TN2007PTC062085. The PAN for
RHPL is AADCRS54138.

RHPL is carrying on the business of operating Hyatt Regency Hotel, a hotel
located at 365, Anna Salai, Teynampet in Chennai.

RHPL was incorporated on January 19, 2007 with the Registrar of Companies,
Chennai.

RHPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of AHEL, and the shares and securities of
RHPL are not listed on any stock exchange.

Overview of the Scheme of Arrangement

This Scheme contemplates inter aliathe demerger and transfer of the Demerged
Undertaking from AHEL into and with RHPL as a going concern,in accordance with
Sections 230-232 of the 2013 Act and in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of IT Act,
and reduction and cancellation of equity shares of RHPL held by AHEL (without
payment of consideration), in terms of Section 66 of the 2013 Act and used for inter
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12.2

1.2.3

1.3
L.3.1

aligwiping out its losses. In addition, as an integral part of the Scheme, AHEL shall make
a bonus issue in accordance with Sections 63 of the 2013 Act of fully paid-up equity
shares to its equity shareholders (as of the Record Date) in 1:2 ratio, that is, 1 {one) new
bonus fully paid-up equity share having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) for
every 2 (two} Equity Shares of the AHEL having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees
ten) each held by a sharcholder of AHEL as of the Record Date.

After the effectiveness of this Scheme, the Share Capital of RHPL consisting of the fully
paid-up New Equity Shares of RHPL issued as consideration in terms of Part IV of this
Scheme to the sharcholders of AHEL shall be listed on the Stock Exchanges in
accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, dated
March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time. Further, as an integral parl of the
Scheme, Equity Shares of RHPL (presently held by AHEL) shall stand cancelled and
reduced (without payment of consideration) without any further act and deed, and hence
this Scheme contemplates approval of the Tribunal(s) in terms of Section 66 of the 2013
Act, in addition to Sections 230-232 of the 2013 Act.

This Scheme is segregated into six parts;

(i) Partl seis out an overview, objects and benefits of this Scheme and contains the
definitions used in this Scheme and the interpretation pertaining in this Scheme;

(i) Parl sets out the capital structure of the Scheme Entities;

(iii)  Part [l deals with reorganization of capital in AHEL and RHPL, including
issuance of Bonus Shares by AHEL to its equity shareholders (as of the Record
Date) in 1:2 ratio, that is, 1 (on¢) new bonus fully paid-up equity share having
face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) for every 2 (iwo) Equity Shares of the
AHEL having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) each held by a shareholder
of AHEL as of the Record Date;

(iv)  Part IV deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from AHEL and its
vesting into and with RHPL in accordance with Sections 230-232 of the 2013 Act
and in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, and issuance of
consideration shares by RHPL to the shareholders of AHEL;

(v)  Pan V deals with reduction of capital in RHPL and consequent cancellation of
Existing Equity Shares of RHPL held by AHEL without consideration; and

(vi)  Part V1 deals with the accounting treatment, taxes, miscellaneous, general terms
and conditions applicable to this Scheme,and sets out certain additional
arrangements that also form an integral part of this Scheme.

Objects and Rationale of this Scheme
AHEL primarily operates in two business segments through separate business divisions:
(i) its Hotel Division is engaged in the operation and management of the Hyatt Regency,

Kolkata; and (ii) its Investment Division comprising of: (a)Strategic Investments Unit,

N,
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1.3.2

1.3.3

whichinter aliaincludes its investiments in and loans given toRHPL and GJS Hotels
Limited (“Strategic Investments Unit"); and (b) Securities Trading Unit, whichinter
alig includes its treasury/liquid investments, which are regularly traded, andbonds,
mutual funds,and shares of certain companies (which already are under an agreement of
sale, part performance completed) (“Securities Trading Unit™).

Each of the businesses carried on by AHEL by itself and along with its subsidiaries have
significant potential for growth and profitability, however,the nature of risk, competition,
challenges, opportunities and business methods for AHEL and RHPL are very different.
The proposed demerger would result in segregation and transfer of the Securities Trading
Unit into RHPL / Resulting Company and continued housing of the Hotel Division in
AHEL/ Demerged Company.

This Scheme is expected to result in the following benefits for AHEL andfor RHPL (as
applicable):

{i) Unlocking the value of AHEL shares to its sharcholders, which is presently
getting subdued on account of subdued performance and balance sheet of RHPL;

(ii)  Possible release of guarantee(s) presently given by AHEL to the lenders of RHPL.
This would clear the contingent liability as appearing in the financial statements
of AHEL, and will potentially improve the credit rating of AHEL, thereby
enabling reduction in cost of finance for AHEL and better price discovery on the
stock market;

(iii)  Pursuant to the Scheme, the Equity Shares of RHPL shall also be entitled to the
benefit of getting listed on the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the SEBI Circular.
Therefore, sharcholders of AHEL (as of the Record Date) shall, as a result of the
Scheme, hold Equity Shares of 2 (iwo) listed entities, AHEL and RHPL. Such
shareholders would then be able to choose to remain invested in both or either of
AHEL and RHPL, giving them greater flexibility in managing / dealing with their
investments in different companies, being AHEL and RHPL in view of their
respective businesses, and individual risk profiles;

(iv)  Improving the balance sheet of RHPL and its credit rating by providing liquid
assets and resources that would enable enhancement in future profitability without
any sacrifice of value by the sharcholders of AHEL, enabling potential turn-
around and/or expansion programs for RHPL, and assist RHPL in supporting and
potentially reducing its debt burden and cost of financing;

{v)  Enable unlocking of the true value of the RHPL for the sharcholders of AHEL (in
a separate entity, being RHPL), which does not appear to be reflecting fully and
accurately in the present consolidated market valuation of AHEL on account of
there being a holding company discount;

(vi)  Provide scope for attracting and accessing targeted funding and investors for each
of AHEL and RHPL and provide better flexibility in pursuing long term growth
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1.34

1.4.1

1.4.2

1.4.3

1.4.4

plans and strategies for the separate companies AHEL and RHPL, instead of
RHPL continuing to use AHEL's credit rating and guarantees and equity funds;

(vii) Enable the management of AHEL to evaluate the performance of the Hotel
Division on an independent basis and keep its risks (if any) ring-fenced; and

(viii) Enable enhanced strategic flexibility and focus of the respective managements of
AHEL and RHPL, thereby facilitating the separate managements to efficiently
exploit opportunities for each of the said businesses.

The Scheme Entities believe that this Scheme is in the best interests of the Scheme
Entities and their respective shareholders and creditors, and other stakeholders, as it is
expecied to provide greater financial strength and flexibility and better access to funds to
both AHEL and RHPL.

Definitions

Terms and expressions which are used in this Scheme but not defined herein shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the meaning ascribed to
such terms and expressions under the 2013 Act, and if not defined therein then under
other relevant statutes, such as the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Securities Contracts
(Regulation} Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (including
the regulations made there under), the Depositories Act, 1996 and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof. In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or context or
meaning thereof, the following expressions shall have the meanings as set out herein
below:

“2013 Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed under such a statute
and includes any alterations, modifications and amendments made to such a statute or any
re-enactment of such a statute;

“Accounting Standards” means the applicable accounting standards in force in India
from time 1o time, consistently applied during the relevant period, including the generally
accepted accounting principles and standards, Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), and
all pronouncements including the guidance notes and other authoritative statements of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

“AHEL" or “Demerged Company™ means Asian Hotels (East) Limited;

“Applicable Laws" means relevant and applicable central, state and local laws of India,
including all statutes, enactments, acts of legislature, laws, ordinances, rules, by-laws,
regulations, notifications, guidelines, Accounting Standards, policies, administration,
directions, directives, decisions, orders, executive orders, decrees, judicial decisions,
orders of any Governmental Authority or other similar directives made pursuant to such
laws, whether in effect on the date of this Scheme or at any time after such date;
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1.4.5

1.4.6

1.4.7

1.4.8

1.4.9

“Appointed Date” means the Effective Date (beginning of business hours) or such other
date as may be directed / approved by the Tribunal(s), being the date with effect from
which this Scheme shall, post effectiveness of this Scheme, be operative;

“Assets of the Demerged Undertaking” means all asseis and property (wherever
located, including in the possession of third parties) pertaining to the Securities Trading
Unit (whether movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present,
future, contingent, tangible or inangible), including any and all: (i) rights, title and
interests in connection with any land (together with the buildings and structures standing
thereon), whether frechold or leasehold or any of its equipment; (ii) capital work-in-
progress, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, compuier sofiware (including assets which
are licensed, leased or otherwise), financial assets, cash and bank balance, application
monics, current assets, sundry debtors, all outstanding loans granted, deposits made,
provisions, advances, receivables, funds, leases of all kinds of property, licences, tenancy
rights, premises, hire purchase and lease arrangements;(iii) tax deferrals and benefits
{including sales tax and service tax), sales tax credits, CENVAT credits, MAT and other
income tax credits, interest tax credits, wealth tax credits, no-objection certificates, any
other tax paid in advance or in excess or provisionally or TDS deducted;(iv) benefit of
any exemptions, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, exemptions, incentives
receivable under Applicable Laws or in terms of certain schemes or policies of
Governmental Authorities, (including in relation to any taxes); (v) rights, title, interests,
benefits, entitlement and advantages, contingent rights or benefits belonging to or in the
ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of, or enjoyed by, or to which, AHEL may be entitled in regard to the
Securities Trading Unit and all other interests in connection with or relating to such
Securities Trading Unit;(vi) and specifically includesDeposits and Balances of the
Demerged Undentaking, Invesiments of the Demerged Undertaking, Contracts of the
Demerged Undertaking, IPR of the Demerged Undertaking, Licenses of the Demerged
Undertaking, Employees of the Demerged Undertaking, andBooks and Records of the
Demerged Undertaking;

“Board of Directors”, in relation to any company, means the board of directors of such a
company and, unless contrary to the provisions of Applicable Laws, includes any
committee of directors or any person authorised by the board of directors or by such
committee of directors;

“Books and Records of the Demerged Undertaking” means books, records, papers,
files, manuals, data, catalogues, sales and advertising materials, lists and other details of
present and former customers and suppliers, customer information, customer and supplier
pricing information, whether in physical or electronic form, directly or indirectly relating
to the Securities Trading Unit;

“Contracts of the Demerged Undertaking” means contracis, agreements, engagements,
memoranda of undertakings, memoranda of agreements, memoranda of agreed points,
letters of agreed points, arrangements, underlakings, insurance policies, sccurity
arrangements, claims against any third parties, guarantees, letters of credit, reversions,
tenancies and other such arrangements or facilities, whether written or otherwise, deeds,
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1.4.10

1.4.11

1.4.12

1.4.13

1.4.14

1.4.15

1.4.16

1.4.17

1.4.18

bonds, schemes, powers and facilities of every kind and description whatsoever or other
understandings, deeds and instruments of whatsoever nature pertaining to such Securities
Trading Unit, including agreements with any Governmental Authorily, sale agreements,
agreements to sell, equipment purchase agreements, hire purchase agreements, lending
agreements and other agreements with the customers, sales orders, purchase orders and
other agreements and contracts with the supplier of goods or service providers and all
rights, title, interests, claims and benefits, of whatsoever nature, which pertain to such
Securities Trading Unit;

“Demerged Undertaking” means the undertaking, business, activities and operations of
the AHEL pertaining to Securities Trading Unit, and specifically including any and all:(i)
Assets of the Demerged Undenaking; and (ii) Liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking;

“Deposits and Balances of the Demerged Undertaking”™ means deposits and balances
with Governmental Authorities, customers and other Persons, advance monies, earnest
monies, payment against warrants or other entitlements, security deposits (including
interest) paid or received, directly or indirectly, in connection with the Securities Trading
Unit;

“Effective Date™ has the meaning assigned to such term in Clause 6.7; Any references in
this Scheme to “upon this Scheme becoming effective” or “upon the effectiveness of this
Scheme” or “post effectiveness of this Scheme” means and refers to the Effective Date;

“Employees of the Demerged Undertaking” means employees of AHEL engaged in
connection with the Securities Trading Unit;

“Equity Shares”, in regard to a company, means the fully paid-up equity shares of such a
company;

“Existing Equity Shares of RHPL" means Equity Shares of RHPL having face value of
Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten each), each of which is held by AHEL;

“Governmental Authority” means the Government of India, State Government(s) and
any competent governmental, quasi-governmental, regulatory, statutory or administrative
authority, agency, department, commission or instrumentality (whether local, municipal,
national or otherwise), court, board or tribunal of competent jurisdiction or other law, rule
or regulation making entity, including SEBI;

“Investment Division” means the separate ‘Investments including investment in Hotel
{South)’division of AHEL consisting of {A) the Strategic Investments Unit comprising
inter alia of investment in and loans given to RHPL and GJS Hotels Limited;and (B) the
Securities Trading Unit comprising of treasury/liquid investments which is being
regularly traded and bonds, mutual funds, and shares of certain companies (which already
are under an agreement of sale, part performance completed);

“Investments of the Demerged Undertaking” means investments of all kinds (including
shares whether in dematerialised or physical form, scrips, stocks, bonds, debenture stock,
units, units of mutual fund schemes, pass through certificates or securily receipis)
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1.4.19

1.4.20

1.4.21

1.4.22

pertaining to the Securities Trading Unit, including all investmenis made oul of
shareholders’ funds, all cash balances with banks, money at call and short notice, loans,
advances, contingent rights or benefits, securitised assets, receivables, benefits of assets
or properties or other interest held in trust, benefit of any security arrangements,
authority, allotments, approvals, reversions, money market instruments including rated
certificates of deposits and commercial papers, repos, reverse repo, treasury bills, call,
notice, term money, buildings, structures and offices held for the benefit of, or enjoyed
by, or to which, AHEL may be entitled and the depository participant accounts;

“IPR of the Demerged Undertaking” means intellectual property rights, registrations,
trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights, patents, designs, technical know-
how, domain names, including applications made in regard to such intellectual property
rights with Governmental Authorities, used by or held for use in connection with the
Securities Trading Unit, whether or not recorded in the books of accounts, and other
intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever, books, records, files, papers,
process information, software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings,
computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, guotations, list of present and former
customers and suppliers, other customer information, and all other records and
documents, whether in physical or electronic form, relating to the Securities Trading
Unit;

“IT Act™ means the Income-tax Act, 1961, the rules and regulations framed under such a
statute and includes any alterations, modifications, amendments made thereto, and, or,
any re-enactment of such a statute;

“Liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking” means debts, borrowings, duties,
guarantees, and liabilities including current tax (including but not limited to income tax,
goods and services tax, service tax, value added tax, sales tax, etc.) and deferred tax
balances, contingent liabilities, present or future, relating to, or arising out of the
activities or operations of the Securities Trading Unit, including specific loans and
borrowings (if any), advanced received, and any current liabilities incurred and utilised
solely for the activities or business or operation of such Securities Trading Unit, all
assurances, commitments and obligations of any nature or description, whether fixed,
contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserled, matured or unmatured, liquidated or
unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due,
whenever or however arising (including whether arising out of any contract or tort based
on negligence or strict liability), whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or
disclosed in the finaneial statements pertaining to such Securities Trading Unit;

“Licenses of the Demerged Undertaking” means licences, consents, approvals and
permits (including the licenses granted by any Governmental Authorities for the purpose
of carrying on the Securities Trading Unit or in connection therewith), authorizations,
exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, quotas, rights, entitlements,
allotments, concessions, certifications, liberties, subsidics, rights to use and avail of all
utilities, including telephones, leased line connections and installations, water, electricity
and other services and benefits of all rights including memberships, powers and facilities
of every kind and description whatsoever, whether statutory or otherwise, and any waiver
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of the foregoing, issued by any Governmental Authorities used or held for use in
connection with the Securities Trading Unit;

1.4.23 “New Equity Shares of RHPL” means Equity Shares of RHPL having face value of
Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) each;

1.4.24 “Person” means and includes any natural person, limited or unlimited liability company,
corporation, limited or unlimited liability partnership firm, proprietorship firm, Hindu
undivided family, trust, union, association or Governmental Authority or any other entity
that may be treated as a person under Applicable Laws;

1.4.25 “Public Sharcholders” in regard to a company, means shareholders of such company
which are within the meaning of “public”, as the term is defined in Rule 2(d) of the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957,

1.4.26 “Record Date” means the date to be fixedby the Board of Directors of AHELin
consultation with the Board of Directors of RHPLin terms of Clause 6.9for the purpose of
(1) issue of Bonus Shares in terms of Part 111 of this Scheme; and (i) issue of fully paid-
up New Equity Shares of RHPL by RHPL to the sharcholders of AHEL in terms of Part
IV of this Scheme;

1.4.27 “Registrar of Companies™ means (i) with respect to AHEL, Registrar of Companies,
West Bengal; (ii) with respect to RHPL means the Registrar of Companies, Chennai;

1.4.28 “RHPL" or “Resulting Company” means Robust Hotels Private Limited,;

1.4.29 “Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement and Demerger and Reduction of Capital
under Section 230-232 and Section 66 of the 2013 Act, as modified or amended from
time to time in accordance with Applicable Laws and with the requisite approval of the
Tribunals;

1.4.30 “Scheme Entities” means AHEL and RHPL collectively;

1.4.31 “SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under Section 3 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

1.4.32 “Share Capital”, in regard to a company, means the total issued, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of such company;

1.4.33 “Share Entitlement Ratio” has the meaning assigned to such a term in Clause 4.2.2;

1.4.34 “Stock Exchanges™ means collectively BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited; and

1.4.35 “Tribunal” means National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench and / or National
Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench (as applicable), having territorial jurisdiction in
the State(s) in which the respective registered offices of the Scheme Entities are located.

& - A
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1.5.1

Interpretation

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)

the words “including”, “include” or “includes” shall be interpreted in a manner as
though the words “without limitation™ immediately followed the same;

the words “directly or indirectly” mean directly or indirectly through one or more
affiliates, associates, relatives or other intermediary Persons and “direct or
indirect” shall have the correlative meanings;

any Person includes that Person’s legal heirs, administrators, executors,
liquidators, successors, successors-in-interest and permitted assigns, as the case
may be;

any document or agreement includes a reference to that document or agreement as
varied, amended, supplemenied, substituted, novated or assigned, from time to
time, in accordance with the provisions of such a document or agreement;

the words “other”, “or otherwise™ and “whatsoever” shall not be construed
ejusdem generis or be construed as any limitation upon the generality of any
preceding words or matters specifically referred to;

the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect the
construction or interpretation of this Scheme;

the term *“Clause” refers to the specified clause of this Scheme;

reference to any legislation, statute, regulation, rule, notification or any other
provision of law means and includes references to such legal provisions as
amended, supplemented or re-enactled from time to time, and any reference to a
legal provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time
under such a statutory provision;

references to one gender includes all genders; and

words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.
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2, CAPITAL STRUCTURE

2.1 AHEL
2.1.1 The capital structure of AHEL as on December 31, 2019 is as under:

rﬁﬂ? Hﬂdﬁﬂﬁl " i ot e — _

90,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 mh 900,000,000
1,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000
. Total 910,000,000

Issued, Subseribed and Paid-up Share Capital :
11,527,797 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 115,277,970
Total 115,277,970

2.1.2 The Equity Shares of AHEL are listed on the Stock Exchanges.

22 RHPL
2.2.1 The capital structure of RHPL as on December 31, 2019 is as under:

LI |:'i":'|'1”|'i.'i 1 _'l. t k

225,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10each ' 2,250,000,000

Total 2,250,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital o i BRI
224,183,829 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,241,838,290
Total 2,241,838,290

2.2.2 RHPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of AHEL. AHEL legally and beneficially holds all
224,183,829 Equity Shares of RHPL, representing 100% (one hundred per cent.) of the
Share Capital of RHPL.

2.2.3 The shares and securities of RHPL are, at present, not listed on any stock exchange,
whether in India or in any other country.

10 6?/ S |
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3.1
3.1.1

3.1.2

32
3.2l

322

3.2.3

3.24

REORGANISATION OF CAPITAL
Issue of Bonus Equity Shares

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, AHEL shall issue and allot by way of bonus, to
cach equity sharcholder whose name is recorded in the Registrar of Members of the
Company and/or the records of the depository(ies) as equity shareholder of AHEL on the
Record Date, in the ratio of 1:2, that is, 1 (one) new bonus fully paid-up equity share
having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) (“Bonus Shares”) for every 2 (two)
Equity Shares of the AHEL having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian Rupees ten) each held by
a shareholder of AHEL as of the Record Date.

The Bonus Shares to be issued and allotted by AHEL shall be subject to the provisions of
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of AHEL and shall rank
pari passu with the Equity Shares of AHEL in every respect.

As soon as practicable after the issuance of Bonus Shares, AHEL shall take necessary
steps towards listing of the Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchanges, subject to all
regulatory approvals and Applicable Law,

Issuance mechanies and other relevant provisions

The issuance and allotment of Bonus Shares to the sharcholders of AHEL in terms of Part
III of this Scheme is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been
carried out as if the procedure laid down under the 2013 Act, including Section 63, as
well as all applicable SEBI regulations have been complied with.

Subject to Applicable Laws, the Bonus Shares shall be issued in dematerialised form,
unless a shareholder of AHEL gives a notice 1o AHEL on or before the Record Date,
requesting for issuance of Bonus Shares in physical form. The sharcholders of AHEL
shall provide such confirmation, information and details as may be required by AHEL to
issue the Bonus Shares.

For the purpose of the allotment of Bonus Shares, in case any member’s holding in
AHEL is such that the member becomes entitled to a fraction of a Bonus Share, AHEL
shall not issue fractional Bonus Shares to such members, but shall consolidate all such
fractions and issue such consolidated number of Bonus Shares (any further fractions
being ignored) to a person, who shall act as a trustee of such Bonus Shares for the limited
purpose mentioned herein, nominated by the Board of AHEL in that behalf, who shall
sell such shares as and when he deems fit, but within a period of one year from the
Effective Date, and shall distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of the expenses
incurred) to the members respectively entitled to the same, in proportion to the respective
fractional entitlements in the Bonus Shares,

No Bonus Shares will be issued under this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of
AHEL that have been forfeited or partly paid. The issuance of Bonus Shares pursuant to
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3.2.5

3.2.6

33
3.3.1

this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of AHEL which are held in abeyance shall,
pending allotment or scttlement of dispute by order of Court or otherwise, be held in
abeyance by AHEL. The Equity Shares lying in *Unclaimed Suspense Account’ (if any)
and the Equity Shares held in the Investor Education and Protection Fund (if any} shall
also be eligible for issuance of Bonus Shares and such Bonus Shares shall be dealt with in
the same manner as Equity Shares lying in the said Unclaimed Suspense Account and/or
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (as the case may be).

Bonus Shares shall be granted exclusively to the equity shareholders of AHEL as on the
Record Date. This Scheme or Part [1I hereon does not, in any manner, constitute an offer
or an invitation to the public to subscribe to the Bonus Shares / Equity Shares of AHEL.
MNeither the Scheme nor any related document shall constitute an offer document or
prospectus in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any sharcholder of AHEL, the Board of Directors of AHEL shall be empowered in
appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a
transfer in AHEL as if such changes in registered holder were operative as on the Record
Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising 1o the transferor / transferee of the shares
in AHEL and in relation to the issuance ofBonus Shares. The Board of Directors of
AHEL shall be empowered to remove such difficultics as may arise in the course of
implementation of this Scheme in regard to issuance of Bonus Shares.

Accounting Treatment
The Bonus Shares shall be issued by utilizing (capitalising) the entire amount in
theCapital Redemption Reserve Account of AHEL pursuant to which the Capital

Redemption Reserve Account shall be left with nil balance; and thereafter to the extent
required from the General Reserves of AHEL.
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PART 1V

4.1

4.1.1

DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKINGFROM AHEL TO AND INTO
RHPLAND ISSUE OF CONSIDERATION SHARES BY RHPL

Demerger and Vesting of the Demerged Undertaking

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the
present and future assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed
Date, whether known or unknown, and the entire business of the Demerged Underiaking
shall stand transferred to and vested in RHPL, as a going concern, without any further act
or deed, together with all its propertics, assets, rights, benefits and interest therein, in
accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of the 2013 Act and other provisions of Applicable
Laws, il any, and the provisions contained herein.

Without prejudice to the gencrality of the above and to the extent applicable, unless
otherwise stated herein, upon this Scheme becoming effiective and with effect from the
Appointed Date:

(i) all Asscts of the Demerged Undertaking that are movable in nature or incorporeal
property or are otherwise capable of transfer by physical or constructive delivery
and, or, by endorsement and delivery, or by vesting and recordal, including
equipment, furniture and fixtures, shall stand vested in and be deemed o be
vested in RHPL, wherever located, and shall become the property and an integral
part of RHPLin terms of this Scheme. The vesting pursuant to this sub-clause
shall be deemed to have occurred by physical or constructive delivery or by
endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as
appropriate to the property being vested and title to the property shall be deemed
to have been transferred accordingly.

(i)  all Assets of the Demerged Undertaking that are movable properties, other than
those described under sub-clause (i) above, including investments in shares and
any other securities, money market instruments including rated certificates of
deposits and commercial papers, repos, reverse repo, treasury bills, call, notice,
term money, sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable
in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any,
with Governmental Authorities, customers and other Persons shall, without any
further act or deed, become the property of RHPLand the same shall also be
deemed to have been transferred by way of delivery of possession of the
respective documents in this regard. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that
investments of the Demerged Undertaking shall, pursuant to Sections 230 to
232 of the 2013 Act and the provisions of this Scheme, without any further act or
deed, be transferred 1o and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred 10 and
vested in RHPL with effect from the Appointed Date,

(iiiy  all Assets of the Demerged Undertaking that are immovable properties (whether
owned, or leased / licensed), including any right or interest in the buildings and
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structures standing thereon and all lease / license or rent agreements, together
with security deposits and advance / prepaid lease / license fee, rights and
easements in relation to such properties shall stand transferred to and be vested in
and, or, be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in RHPL, without any
further act or deed, pursuant to applicable provisions of the 2013 Act and the
provisions of this Scheme. RHPLshall be entitled to exercise all rights and
privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties, if any, and shall be
liable to pay the rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation to or applicable
to such immovable properties and the relevant landlords, owners and lessors shall
continue to comply with the terms, conditions and covenants under all relevant
lease / license or rent agreements and shall, in accordance with the terms of such
agreements, refund the security deposits and advance / prepaid lease / license fee
to RHPL.

{iv)  all Liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking shall, pursuant to Sections 230 to
232 of the 2013 Act and the provisions of this Scheme and, without any further
act or deed, become the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations of RHPL, without any further act or deed, and RHPLshall, and
undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy the same in terms of their respective
terms and conditions, if any. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that it shall
not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a
party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities,
duties and obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this
Clause.

{v)  all Contracts of the Demerged Undertaking shall be and remain in full force and
effect on, against or in favour of RHPLand may be enforced as fully and
effectually as if, instead of AHEL, RHPLhad been a parly or beneficiary or
obligor thereto. All Contracts of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand
transferred and vested in favour of RHPLon the same terms and conditions.
RHPLand the other parties to such agreements shall continue to comply with the
terms, conditions and covenants thereunder,

(vi)  any notices, disputes, pending suits / appeals, legal, taxation, or other proceedings
including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal or other
proceedings of whatsoever nature relating to Demerged Undertaking, whether
pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted any time in the future
shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way prejudicially affected by reason of
demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in RHPL or anything
contained in this Scheme, but the proceedings shall conlinue and any prosecution
shall be enforced by or against RHPLin the same manner and to the same extent
as would or might have been continued, prosecuted and, or, enforced by or against
Demerged Undertaking, as if this Scheme had not been implemented.

(vii) all the property, assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking shall be

transferred by AHEL to RHPLat the values appearing in the books of account of
AHEL on the Appointed Date. The accounts of AHEL and RHPLshall be
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{viii)

(ix)

(x)

reconstructed in accordance with Applicable Laws and the relevant provisions of
this Scheme. Upon the Scheme becoming cffective, the accounts of AHEL and
RHPL shall be restated with effect from the Appointed Date, as specified in the
Scheme and as per directions of the Tribunal in this regard (if any). The income-
tax returns, GST returns and other returns of each of AHEL and RHPL (as filed
for any period after the Appointed Date) may be revised and re-filed accordingly.

all Employees of the Demerged Undertaking shall become employees of
RHPLwith cffect from the Effective Date, on such terms and conditions as are no
less favourable in aggregate than those on which they are currently engaged by
the Demerged Undertaking, without any interruption of service as a result of this
demerger and transfer. With regard to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment
and any other special scheme or benefits created or existing for the benefit of such
Employees of the Demerged Undertaking, upon this Scheme becoming effective,
RHPLshall stand substituted for AHEL for all purposes whatsoever, including
with regard to the obligation to make contributions to relevant authorities, such as
the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner or to such other funds maintained by
AHEL, in accordance with the provisions of Applicable Laws or otherwise.
RHPLundertakes that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits to the Employees of the
Demerged Undertaking, the past services of such Employees of the Demerged
Undertaking shall also be taken into account and it shall pay the same
accordingly, as and when such amounts are due and payable. Upon this Scheme
becoming effective, the Demerged Undertaking will transfer / handover to RHFL,
copies of employment information, including but not limited to, personnel files
{including hiring documents, existing employment contracts, and documents
reflecting changes in an employee’s position, compensation, or benefits), payroll
records, medical documents (including documents relating to past or on-going
leaves of absence, on the job injuries or illness, or fitness for work examinations),
disciplinary records, supervisory files relating to its employees and all forms,
notifications, orders and contribution / identity cards issued by the concerned
authorities relating to benefits transferred pursuant to this sub-clause. RHPLshall
continue to abide by any agreement(s) / settlement(s) entered into / by AHEL with
any of the Employees of the Demerged Undertaking prior to the Appointed Date
and from the Appointed Date (ill Effective Date. In case of conflict of any
positions / designations between the current employees of RHPLand the
employees transferred from AHEL as a consequence of this Scheme, the Board of
Directors of RHPLshall be entitled to re-classify the designation of any relevant
employee to resolve such conflict.

alllPR. of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand transferred to and vested in
RHPL.

allDeposits and Balances of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand transferred to
and vested in RHPL.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

allBooks and Records of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand transferred to and
vested in RHPL.

all taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, tax deducted at source,
minimum alternate tax, fringe benefit tax, securitics transaction tax, self-
assessment tax, taxes withheld / paid in a foreign country, value added tax, sales
tax, service tax, stamp duty ete.) including any interest, penally, surcharge and
cess, if any, payable by or refundable to or being the entitlement of AHEL in
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, including all or any refunds or
claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds / credits / claims, as the case
may be, of RHPLand any tax incentives, advantages, privileges, exemptions,
credits, holidays, remissions, reductions, tax losses, including brought forward
business loss, unabsorbed depreciation, etc., as would have been available to
AHEL in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, shall pursuant to this
Scheme becoming effective, be available to RHPL.

all Licences of the Demerged Undertaking shall be in full force and effect in
favour of RHPLand may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of
AHEL, RHPLhad been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto. For the
avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that if the consent of any third party or authority
is required to give effect 1o the provisions of this Clause, the said third party or
authority shall be obligated to, and shall make and duly record the necessary
substitution / endorsement in the name of RHPLpursuant to the sanction of this
Scheme by the Tribunal and upon this Scheme becoming effective in accordance
with the terms hereof. For this purpose, RHPLshall file appropriate applications /
documents with relevant authorities concerned for information and record

purposes.

benefits of any and all corporate approvals as may have already been taken by
AHEL in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, including approvals under
Sections 42, 62(1A), 180, 185, 186 and 188 of the 2013 Act shall stand
transferred to RHPLand the said corporate approvals and compliances shall be
deemed to have been taken / complied with by RHPL.

all estates, assets, rights, title, interests and authorities accrued to and, or, acquired
by AHEL in regard to the Demerged Undertaking shall be deemed to have been
accrued to and, or, acquired for and on behalf of RHPLand shall, upon this
Scheme becoming effective, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the 2013 Act and this Scheme, without any further act or deed, be and stand
transferred 1o or vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to or vested in
RHPLto that extent and shall become the estates, assets, right, title, interests and
authorities of RHPL.

all cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received and
presented for encashment which are in the name of AHEL (insofar as the same
pertains to the Demerged Undertaking) after the Effective Date, shall be accepted

1% %
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by the bankers of RHPLand credited to the accounts of RHPL, if presented by
RHPL.

It is clarified that no assets, liabilities, deposits and balances, invesiments, contracts,
intellectual property rights, licences, employees and books and records of AHEL, except
those pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking (which are transferred to Resulting
Company in terms of the Clause 4.1.2), shall be transferred to, or vested in, RHPLin
terms of the provisions of Part [V of this Scheme.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and the consequent demerger and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking into and with RHPL, the secured creditors of AHEL, if any, shall
not be entitled to any encumbrance over any of the assets of the Demerged Undertaking.
It is clarified that all the assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall, subject to Applicable
Laws, remain free and available for creation of any security thereon in future in relation
to any new indebtedness that may be incurred by RHPLin accordance with the provisions
of Applicable Laws. For this purpose, no further consent from the existing secured
creditors of AHEL, if any, shall be required and sanction of this Scheme shall be
considered as a specific consent of such secured creditors, if any.

RHPLshall, at any time after this Scheme becomes effective in accordance with the
provisions hereof and as the successor entity of AHEL, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, if so required under any law or otherwise, execute appropriate deeds of
confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, including any filings with the
regulatory authorities, in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. RHPLshall,
under the provisions hereof, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings in
the name of and on behalf of AHEL in relation to the Demerged Undertaking and to carry
out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of AHEL
inter alia in its capacity as the successor-in-interest of AHEL in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking.

RHPLshall, at any time after this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the
provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, do all such acts or things as
may be necessary to transfer / obtain the approvals, consents, cxemptions, registrations,
no-objection certificales, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses and certificates
which were held or enjoyed by AHEL in connection with the Demerged Undertaking. It
is clarified that if the consent of any third party or Governmental Authority is required to
give effect to the provisions of this Clause, the said third party or Governmental
Authority shall make and duly record the necessary substitution / endorsement in the
name of RHPLpursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunals, and upon this
Scheme becoming effective. RHPLshall file appropriate applications / documents with
the relevant authorities concerned for information and record purposes and RHPLshall,
under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such
writings on behalf of AHEL insofar as the same are in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking and to carry out or perform all such acts, formalities or compliances referred
to above as may be required in this regard.
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4.2.1

422

4.2.3

4.3
4.3.1

Payment of Consideration for Demerged Undertaking

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the shareholders of AHEL as of Record Date shall
be entitled to receive Equity Shares of RHPL as detailed in this Clause 4.2 of this
Scheme.

AHEL and RHPL have engaged Mr. Mahim 8. Mehta, a Registered Valuer (as defined in
the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017), to provide a Capital
Allocation Report / Share Entitlement Report. In connection with such engagement, Mr.
Mahim S. Mehta has issued a Capital Allocation Report / Share Entitlement Report dated
January 13, 2020. AHEL and RHPL had engaged D&A Financial Services (P) Limited,
Merchant Bankers, to provide a faimess opinion on Share Entitlement Ratio adopted
under this Scheme. In connection with such engagement, D&A Financial Services (P)
Limited, Merchant Banker has issued a faimess opinion dated January 13,
2020(“Fairness Opinion”). The Board of Directors of each of AHEL and RHPL have
determined the Share Entitlement Ratio as 1:1, based on their independent judgment and
after taking into consideration the aforesaid Capital Allocation Report / Share Entitlement
Report and Fairness Opinion (“Share Entitlement Ratio™). Therefore, 1 (one) Equity
Share of RHPL having a face value of Rs. 10{Indian rupees ten) each shall be issued and
allotted to shareholders of AHEL for every 1 (one) Equity Share of AHEL having a face
value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten) each, held by shareholders of AHEL as of the Record
Date.

In aggregate RHPL shall issue and allot 17,291,696 (one crore seventy-two lac ninety-
one thousand six hundred ninety six) New Equity Shares having a face value of
Rs. 10{Indian rupees ten) cach, fully paid-up, to the sharcholders of AHEL as on Record
Date, in a manner and proportion such that pursuant to such issuance and allotment (and
reduction of capital in terms of Part V) on the Effective Date, the shareholding pattermn (in
terms of number of equity shares) and infer-se shareholding percentage of sharcholders of
RHPL shall mirror the sharcholding pattern (in terms of number of equity shares) and
inter-se shareholding percentage of the sharcholders of AHEL, as on the Record Date.

Issuance mechanics and other relevant provisions

There shall be no change in the sharcholding pattern of RHPL between the Record Date
and the date on which the New Equity Shares are listed in terms of the SEBI Circular,
which may affect the status of the observation / no-objection letter issued by the Stock
Exchanges in respect of the Scheme (in terms of Regulations 37 of SEBI LODR). Subject
to the above, in the event that AHEL and, or, RHPL, as the case may be, change their
capital structures prior to the Effective Date, either by way of any increase (by issue of
Equity Shares, bonus shares, convertible sceurities or otherwise), decrease, reduction,
reclassification, sub-division, consolidation, or re-organisation in any other manner
except as specifically provided in this Scheme itself, which would have the effect of
bringing some change to the capital structures of such company(ies), subject to the
approval of the Scheme Entities, the Share Entitlement Ratio and / or number
consideration shares to be issued (as applicable) shall stand modified / adjusted
accordingly to take into account the effect of such corporate actions.
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4.3.3

434

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

Subject 1o Applicable Laws, the fully paid-up New Equity Shares of RHPL that are to be
issued in terms of Clause 4.2 shall be issued in dematerialised form, unless a shareholder
of AHEL gives a notice to AHEL and RHPL on or before the Record Date, requesting for
issuance of such Equity Shares in physical form. The shareholders of AHEL shall provide
such confirmation, information and details as may be required by RHPL to enable it to
issue the aforementioned Equity Shares. However, if as of the date of allotment by
RHPL, AHEL is unable to provide the details of the demat account of any particular
sharcholder, subject to applicable law, RHPL shall allot the appropriate number of New
Shares to such sharcholder in physical form. Notwithstanding the above, if as per
Applicable Laws, RHPL is not permitted to issue and allot the New Equity Shares in
physical form, and it has still not received the demat account details of certain
sharcholders of AHEL, it shall issue and allot such shares in lieu of the New Equity Share
entitlement of such shareholders, into a demat suspense account, which shall be operated
by one of the directors of RHPL, duly authorised in this regard, who shall upon receipt of
appropriate evidence from such sharcholders regarding their entitlement, will transfer
from such demat suspense account into the individual demat accounts of such claimant
sharcholders, such number of shares as may be required in terms of this Scheme.

Equity sharcs to be issued by RHPL pursuant to Clause 4.2 in respect of Equity Shares of
the shareholders of AHEL which are held in abeyance shall also be kept in abeyance.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any shareholder of AHEL, the Board of Directors of AHEL shall be empowered in
appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a
transfer in AHEL as if such changes in registered holder were operative as on the Record
Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor / transferee of the shares
in AHEL and in relation to the Equity Shares issued by RHPL upon the effectiveness of
this Scheme. The Board of Directors of AHEL and RHPL shall be empowered to remove
such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and
registration of new members in RHPL on account of difficulties faced in the transition
period.

The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted by RHPL in terms of Clause 4.2 shall be
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
of RHPL, and shall rank pari passu with the Equity Shares of RHPL.

The issuance and allotment of Equity Shares by RHPL to the sharcholders of AHEL in
terms of Part IV of this Scheme is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to
have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 and other applicable
provisions of the 2013 Act, as well as all applicable SEBI regulations have been
complied with,

RHPL shall apply to the Stock Exchanges and SEBI for listing and admission of all the
Equity Shares of RHPL (including the New Equity Shares of RHPL) to trading in terms
of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, read with
Applicable Laws. RHPL shall enter into such arrangements, complete such formalities
and give such confirmations and/or undertakings to the Stock Exchanges as may be
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4.3.9

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

necessary in accordance with the Applicable Laws for the listing of Equity Shares of
RHPL.

The New Equity Shares of RHPL issued and allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain
frozen in the depository system until listing/trading permission is given by the designated
Stock Exchange for such Mew Equity Shares of RHPL.

RHPL shall, if and to the extent required, apply for and obtain any approvals from the
appropriate authorities including the Reserve Bank of India, for the issue and allotment of
Equity Shares of RHPL by RHPL to non-resident equity sharcholders of AHEL, if any, in
terms of the Applicable Laws, including rules and regulations applicable to foreign
investment.

Accounting Treatment
Accounting treatment in the books of AHEL:

(i) Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the book value of assets and liabilities of
the Demerged Undertaking as appearing in the books of account of AHEL and
transferred to RHPL shall be reduced from the book value of assets and liabilities
of AHEL as on the close of business on the day immediately preceding the
Appointed Date.

{ii) The difference between the book value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged
Undertaking, shall be accounted for under ‘Demerger Adjustment Account’,
which shall be specifically created to account for this balance; and thereafier the
same shall be adjusted/set-off first against the amount lying to the credit of the
Capital Reserve Account, and thereafier against the amount lying to the credit of
the General Reserve Account of AHEL.

(iii)  Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of AHEL, in consultation with
its statutory auditors, is authorized to account any of the balances in any other
manner, if such accounting treatment is considered more appropriate and is
authorized by the Accounting Standards and/or Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

Accounting treatment in the books of RHPL:

(i) Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferee Company shall record the
assets and liabilities transferred to and vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the
same book values as appearing in the books of AHEL as on the close of business
on the day immediately prior to the Appointed Date.

(iiy  RHPL shall credit its Share Capital Account in its books of account with the
aggregate face value of the New Equity Shares issued to the sharcholders of
AHEL by it in terms of Clause 4.2, and reduce its Share Capital Account to the
extent of Equity Shares of RHPL held by AHEL which are reduced and cancelled
in terms of Part V of this Scheme. .
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(iii) The intangible assets and goodwill transferred or arising as a result of the
demerger, if any, shall be amortized in the books of accounts of RHPL in
accordance with the Accounting Standards.

{iv)  The surplus or deficit, if any, of the value of the assets over the value of the
liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking acquired pursuant to this Scheme by
RHPL, shall, afier adjusting for the value of the New Equity Shares issued by
RHPL to the shareholders of AHEL pursuant to this Scheme, shall be: (a) in case
of a surplus, recorded as and credited to the Capital Reserve Account, in the
books of RHPL, and (b) in case of a deficit, recorded as and debited to the
Goodwill Account in the books of RHPL.

Motwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of AHEL andfor RHPL, in
consultation with its respective statutory auditor(s), is authorized to account any of the
balances in any other manner, if such accounting treatment is considered more
appropriate and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP).
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PART V

5.

3l
5.1.1
5.1.2
3.1.3
5.1.4
3.2

REDUCTION OF CAPITAL IN RHPL
Reduction of Capital in RHPL

The Existing Equity Shares of RHPL held by AHEL shall be reduced and cancelled
{without payment of any consideration)) as an integral part of the Schemein order to
present a true and fair picture of the capital structure, business, assets and financials of
RHPL, in particular, the profits/losses in RHPL. The reduction does not involve either a
diminution of liability in respect of share capital not paid-up or payment of paid-up share
capital of RHPL to any person.

No prejudice will be caused to sharcholders andfor creditors of RHPL by the
aforesaidreduction of capital. The creditors of RHPL shall not be adversely affected by
the proposed reduction ofthe share capital as there will be no reduction in the amounts
payable to any of them, and no payment is involved to any sharcholder as well,
Further,the reduction of capital would not adversely affect the business or operations of
RHPL or its ability to honour its commitments or pay the debts in the ordinary course of
business. The Scheme does not in any manner alter, vary of affect the rights of the
creditors. The Scheme does not in any manner alter, vary or affect the payment of any
dues or outstanding amounts including all or any of the statulory dues payable or
outstanding.

The consent of the shareholders and creditors of the RHPL to this Scheme shall be
deemed to be their consent under the provisions of Section 66 of the 2013 Act as well.
RHPL shall not be required to (i) convene separate meeting to seck approval for
cancellation of shares; or (i1) add “And Reduced” as suffix to its name, or (iii) otherwise
separately comply with the procedure specified in Section 66 of the 2013 Act, and its
compliance with applicable provisions of Sections 230-232 of the 2013 Act shall be
deemed as adequate compliance withthe procedure specified in Section 66 of the 2013
Act. The Tribunal(s)’ sanction for this Scheme shall be deemed to be the Tribunal’s
approval under Section 66 of the 2013 Act, for reduction and reorganisation of capital by
RHPL, as contemplated as an integral part of this Scheme.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and after the alloiment of the New Equity Shares
by RHPL in terms of Clause 4.2, and reduction of Equity Shares of RHPL held by AHEL
in terms of this Clause 4.4, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of RHPL shall be
Rs.17,29,16,960(Indian rupees seventeen crore twenty-nine lac sixteen thousand nine
hundred sixty only) consisting of 17,291,696 fully paid-upNew Equity Shares having a
face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten) each.

Accounting Treatment in the books of AHEL

Pursuant to such reduction of capital, the investment amountof Rs. 567,00,00,000 {Indian
rupees five hundred sixty-seven crore) as appearing in the books of AHEL under the head
‘Investments’, being shares held in RHPL, shall stand r;anm:]lad,_ and the same shall be
adjusted against the amount lying to the credit of the General Reserve Account of AHEL,
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pursuant to which theGeneral Reserve Account of AHEL shall be left with nil balance;
and thereafter shall be adjusted against the amount lying to the credit of the Profit And
Loss Account of AHEL, to the extent required.

Accounting Treatment in the books of RHPL

Pursuant to such reduction of capital in RHPL, an amount equivalent to the face value of
the Existing Equity Shares (of RHPL held by AHEL) which are being reduced shall first
be credited to the Capital Reconstruction Reserve Account of RHPL. Thereafter, the debit
balance of the Profit And Loss Account of RHPL to the extent of INR 110 Crore
consisting of unabsorbed book losses and unabsorbed book depreciation (in equal
proportion)shall be adjusted against the amount lying to the credit of the Capital
ReconstructionReserve Account.

39



6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

TAXES, MISCELLANEOUS AND GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

PART VI

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of AHEL and RHPL, as on the
Appointed Date, shall be reconstructed in accordance with the terms of Part 111,Part IV,
Part V and Part Vlof this Scheme. Each of AHEL and RHPL shall be entitled to revise
and filetheir respective income tax returns, wealth tax returns, TDS returns, and other
statutory returns, as result of demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in
RHPL.

Taxes

The provisions of Part 1V of this Scheme have been drawn up in compliance with the
conditions specified under the tax laws, specifically Section 2(19AA) of IT Act, and
other relevant sections of IT Act. If any terms or provisions of Part IV of this Scheme are
found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the aforesaid section at a
later date, including resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason
whatsoever, such provisions shall prevail and this Scheme shall (subject to the provisions
of this Scheme, includingClauses 5.1.2, 5.6.6 and 5.6.7), stand modified to the extent
determined necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such modification will
however not affect the other parts of this Scheme.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of AHEL and RHPL as on the
Appointed Date shall be reconstructed in accordance with this Scheme, AHEL and RHPL
shall be entitled to revise and refile their respective income tax returns, TDS returns, and
other statutory returns and shall also have the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits,
credit of tax under Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, credit of tax deducted at
source, credit of foreign taxes paid / withheld, ete., if any, consequent to implementation
of this Scheme.

The Appointed Date shall be deemed to be the ‘acquisition date’ for all purposes,
including for the purposes of accounts of AHEL and RHPL.

Conduct of business till Effective Date
With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

(i) the business pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be deemed 1o have
been carried on account of, and the propertics and assets of Demerged
Undertaking shall be deemed to have been held for and in trust for, RHPL; and

(i) all profits or income arising or accruing to or received in regard to the Demerged
Undertaking and all taxes paid thercon (including but not limited to advance tax,
tax deducted at source, minimum alternate tax, fringe benefit tax, securities
transaction tax, taxes withheld / paid in a foreign country, value added tax, sales
tax, service tax ete.) or losses arising in or incurred in regard to the Demerged
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6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

Undertaking shall, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits or
income, taxes or losses, as the case may be, of RHPL,

Alteration of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of RHPL

Amendment of Main Objects

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, the main
objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of RHPL shall be amended to include
the following main objects. Accordingly, the Memorandum of Association of RHPL shall
stand modified by inclusion of the following additional paragraph in the main objects as
paragraph 4 in Clause I1I{A) of the Memorandum of Association of RHPL afier the

existing paragraph 3:

“4. To deal with or to act as an investor by the way of acquiring, holding, selling,
buying, transferring, subscribing to any shares, bonds, stocks, debentures or any other
securities, of any kind, issued by or guaranteed by any govermment, public body,
incorporated entity, authority, state, sovereign, commissioners, trusts, provincial,
municipal body, or otherwise, whether in India or elsewhere, or units issued by mutual
Junds, and 1o act as guaraniors, financiers, underwriters, and to lend money or deal
with money, either with or without inferest to such individuals, firms, body corporates
and institutions and upon such terms and conditions as the Company may dee expedient
but not amounting to banking business as defined under the Banking Regulations Act,
19497

Conversion into Public Company

As of the Appointed Date, RHPL / Resulting Company is a ‘deemed public company”’ in
terms of the 2013 Act. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, and as an integral part and
consequence thereof, RHPL shall stand converted into a ‘public company’ in terms of the
2013 Act. As the conversion of RHPL into a ‘public company® is an integral part and
consequence of the Scheme, the consent of shareholders of the RHPL to this Scheme
shall be deemed to be their consent for such conversion as required under the 2013 Act,
including in terms of Section 13, Section 14 and Section 18 of the 2013 Act read with
Rule 29 and Rule 33 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014; provided that the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of RHPL shall be amended (to
the extent) required reflect such conversion, including the name clause, as required in
terms of the 2013 Act, and accordingly upon the Scheme becoming effective: (i) Clause 1
of the Memorandum of Association of RHPL shall stand replaced by inclusion of the
following clause: “The name of the Company is Robust Hotel Limited"(or such other
name as may be approved by Registrar of Companies, Chennai and be acceptable io
RHPL) and consequent changes shall be carried out in the Articles of Association of
RHPL,; (ii} the word “Private” appearing in the name of the RHPL in the Articles of
Association and Memorandum of Association of the RHPL shall stand deleted; and (iii)
provisions in the Articles of Association of RHFL: (a) restricting the right to transfer
shares; (b) limiting the number of members to 200 (two hundred);and (c) prohibiting any
invitation to the public to subscribe for any securities shall stand deleted. Further,
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6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

provisions regarding minimum number of directors and minimum number of
sharcholders shall stand modified as per applicable law.

Deemed Approval of Sharcholders for Amendments

The consent of the sharcholders of RHPL to this Scheme shall be sufficient for the
purposes of effecting each of the amendments contemplated in this Clause 6.4, and no
further resolutions or approval, whether under Sections 13, Section 14, Section 18 of the
2013 Act, any other applicable provisions of the 2013 Act or under the Articles of
Association of RHPL, shall be required to be separately passed, nor shall RHPL be
required to pay any additional registration fees, stamp duty, etc.

Compliance with Tax Laws

Part IV of this Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating o
“Demerger” as specified under the tax laws, specifically Section 2(19AA) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 and other relevant sections of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

If any terms or provisions of this Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent
with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of any amendment of
law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the
provisions of the tax laws shall prevail. This Scheme shall then stand modified to the
extent determined necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such modification will
however not affect other parts of this Scheme. Notwithstanding the other provisions of
this Scheme, but subject to applicable laws, the power to make such
amendments/modifications as may become necessary, whether before or after the
effectiveness of the Scheme, shall vest with the Board of Directors of RHPL and AHEL,
which power shall be exercised reasonably in the best interests of the Scheme Entities
and their sharcholders, and which power can be exercised at any time.

Filing of Applications / Petitions with Tribunal(s)

The Scheme Entities shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make their respeclive
applications or a joint application to the jurisdictional Tribunals under Sections 230 and
232 read with Section 66 of the 2013 Act and other applicable provisions thereof, seeking
orders for dispensing with or convening, holding and/or conducting of the meetings of
such classes of their respective sharcholders andfor creditors and for sanctioning this
Scheme with such modifications, as may be approved by the Tribunal(s).

Upon this Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders and
creditors of each of the Scheme Entitics (wherever required), each of the Scheme Entities
shall, with all reasonable dispatch, file respective petitions before the jurisdictional
Tribunal(s) for sanction of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the 2013 Act, and
other applicable provisions thereof, and for such other order or orders, as Tribunal(s) may
deem fit for sanctioning/giving effect to this Scheme. Upon this Scheme becoming
effective, the shareholders of each of the Scheme Entities, shall be deemed to have also
accorded their approval under all relevant provisions of the 2013 Act, as applicable, for
giving effect to the provisions contained in this Scheme. :
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6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.8

6.9

Effectiveness of the Scheme

This Scheme is conditional upon, and shall become effective on the happening of the last
of the following (“Effective Date™):

(i) this Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majoritics of the various
classes of shareholders andfor creditors (if required) of cach of the Scheme
Entities as required under the 2013 Act;

(ii)  the Scheme being sanctioned by the jurisdictional Tribunal(s) and appropriate
orders being passed by the Tribunal(s) pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 of the
2013 Act and other relevant provisions thereof, as applicable; and

(iii)  certified copies of the relevant Orders of the Tribunal(s) being filed with the
Registrar of Companies, West Bengal by AHEL, and Registrar of Companies,
Chennai by RHPL.

This Scheme shall become effective from the Effective Date, and the provisions of this
Scheme shall be applicable and come into operation from the Appointed Date.

Sequence of Events

Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the
following shall be deemed to have occurred and become effective and operative on
Effective Date, only in the sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

(i) issue and allotment of Bonus Shares by AHEL;

(i) amendment to the memorandum and articles of association of RHPL as provided
in this Scheme;

(iii)  demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from AHEL into and with
RHPL in accordance with PartlV of this Scheme;

{iv)  issue and allotment of fully paid-up New Equity Shares of RHPL to the
sharcholders of AHEL as of Record Date in accordance with Part 1Vof this
Scheme; and

(v)  reductionand cancellation of Existing Equity Shares of RHPL held by AHEL in
accordance with Part V of this Scheme.

Record Date

After this Scheme is sanctioned but before it becomes effective, the Board of Directors of
AHEL shall, in consultation with the Board of Directors of RHPL, determine the record
date (“Record Date™) for (i) issuance of Bonus Shares; and (ii) the issuance and
allotment of Equity Shares of RHPL 1o the shareholders of AHEL in terms of the Scheme
and the direction of the Tribunal in this regard (if’ any). On determination of Record Date,
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6.10

6.11

6.11.1

6.11.2

6.11.3

6.11.4

6.11.5

AHEL shall provide to RHPL, the list of its sharcholders as on such Record Date, who
are enlitled to receive the Equity Shares in RHPL in terms of this Scheme in order to
enable RHPL to issue and allot such Equity Shares to such shareholders of AHEL.

Binding Effect

Upon this Scheme becoming effective it shall be binding on the Scheme Entities, their
respective shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders.

Miscellaneous

AHEL shall comply with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21,
dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time, while infer alia procuring the
approval of its public sharcholders and shall provide for voting by such public
shareholders through postal ballot and e-voting. For the purposes of this Clause 6.11.1,
the term ‘public’ shall have the meaning ascribed to such term under rule 2 of Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.The Scheme is conditional upon being approved by
the public shareholders of AHEL through e-voting in terms of Para 9(a) of Part | of
Annexure | of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, dated March 10, 2017 (as
amended from time to time)and the Scheme shall be acted upon only if votes cast by the
public shareholders of AHEL in favour of the proposal are more than the number of votes
cast by the public sharcholders of AHEL against it.

As an integral part of the Scheme, all rights and liabilitics of the Demerged Company in /
to a bid presently submitted by the Demerged Company toMumbai International Airport
Limitedshall stand transferred to RHPL.

The transfer of properties and liabilities to, and the continuance of proceedings in terms
of the Scheme, including as envisaged in PartlV of this Scheme shall not atfect any
transaction or proceedings already concluded by any of the Scheme Entities on or before
the Appointed Date, and afier the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and
intent that RHPL accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by
AHEL in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself.

Nothing contained in this Scheme shall affect the business and operations of AHEL other
than the Demerged Undertaking, and the residual business(es) of AHEL shall continue to
belong to, and be vested in and be managed by, AHEL.

Each of the Scheme Entities shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether
interim andfor final, to their respective shareholders prior to the Effective Date. The
shareholders of Scheme Entities shall not be entitled to dividend (whether interim and/or
final), if any, declared and paid by any of the other Scheme Entities prior to the Effective
Date. The holders of the shares of each of the Scheme Entities, save as expressly
provided otherwise in this Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing rights under their
respeclive Articles of Association, ineluding the right to receive dividends. It is clarified
that the aforesaid provision in respect of declaration of dividend is only an enabling
provision and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholder of any of the
Scheme Entities to demand or claim any dividend.
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6.11.6 Each of the Scheme Entities (acting through their respective Boards of Directors) may

6.11.7

6.11.8

6.11.9

assent to any modifications or amendments to this Scheme, which the Tribunal(s), SEBI,
Stock Exchange(s) and/or any other authoritics may deem fit to direct or impose or which
may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or
difficulty that may arise for implementing and/or carrying out this Scheme. Each of the
Scheme Entities(acting through their respective Boards of Directors), are hereby
authorised to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary,
desirable or proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or
questions, whether by reason of any orders of the Tribunal(s) or SEBlor of any directive
or orders of any other authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of, under or by
virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters concerning or connected therewith.

Motwithstanding anything else to the contrary in this Scheme, the Scheme Entities (acting
through their respective Boards of Directors), shall be at liberty to withdraw from this
Scheme in case (i) any condition or alteration imposed by the Tribunal(s) or any other
authority; or (ii)any deemed modifications to the Scheme resulting from the Scheme (or
any part thereof) being or becoming inconsistent with applicable laws (including
resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason whatsoever) is not acceptable
to the Scheme Entities; or (iii) prior to the Effective Date, the Scheme Entities (acting
through their respective Board of Directors) mutually agree at any time to withdraw the
Scheme for any reason.

If any part of this Scheme is invalid, ruled illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction,
or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the parties that
such part shall be severable from the remainder of this Scheme and this Scheme shall not
be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme 1o become
materially adverse to any party, in which case the Scheme Entities(acting through their
respective Board of Directors), shall attempt to bring about appropriate modifications to
this Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties, the benefits and obligations of this
Scheme, in equitable manner as per the intent and spirit of the Scheme, including but not
limited to such part.

All costs, charges and expenses, in connection with the Scheme, arising out of or incurred
in carrying out and implementing the Scheme and matters incidental thercio upto the
Effective Date, shall be borne and paid by AHEL (unless mutually agreed otherwise by
the Scheme Entities acting through their respective Board of Directors), and such
expenses shall be entitled 1o be amortised in terms of Applicable Laws.
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D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services

Date: 13* January, 2020

The Board of Directors
Asian Hotel (East) Limited
Robust Hotels (P) Limited

Dear Sirfs,

In connection with the proposed Scheme of Armangement, Demerger and Redustion of Capital  between
Asian Hotels (East) Limited (Hercinafter referred to as AHEL or Transferor Company/Demerged
Company) and Robust Hotels Privane Limited (“RHPL" or Resultant Company) {Hereinafler collectively
referred 1o as “Companies™) and their respective shareholders and creditors for the proposed Demerger
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 (the
‘Scheme” or the 'Scheme of Arrangement’).

We, Mfs D & A Financial Services (P) Ltd, SEBI registercd Merchant Banker, having license no.
INMOO001 1484, have been engaged by you to give our [airmess opinion on the share enlitlement ratio
required under sclieme of Demerger done by Mahim Singh Mehta, Independent Valuer having its office
D 21, Geetanjali Enclave, New Delhi-110017, who is appointed valuer for the proposed Scheme of
Amangemient of Asian Hotels (East) Limited and Robust Hotels (P) Limited,

The Scheme shall be subject to (i) Reccipt of approval from the National Company Law Tribunal
{(“NCLT") and (ii} other statutory approval(s) as may be required in this regard.

1. Scope and Purpose of the Opinion

The management of Asian Hotels (Eest) Limited has engaged M's D & A Financial Services (P) Lud w0
submit fairmess opinion o the Board of Directors on the proposed Scheme of Amangement as defined
above. The scope of this Faimess Opinion includes commenting on the faimess of the Scheme of
Amangement. The Faimess Opinion is addressed to the Board of Directors of Asian Hotels (East)
Limited and Robust Hotels (P) Limited. Further, this Faimess Opinion has been issued as per the
requirements of SEBI circular no. CFD/DILICIR/2017/21, dated 10-3-2017 read with SEBI Circuler
No. CFOVDILI/CIR/2017/26, dated 23-3-2007 and CFI?![_ZII_LHCIMNS&, dated 3-1-2018 (“SEBI
Circulars”) and a5 per the SEBI (ICDR) Regulationg, 2018 pricing rulés.
_t_ eERTIFIED TRVE i .
\Eaki P "-.‘\ il

FOYE T~

i e o & /
H.0. & Regd, Office: 13, Conlre; 2nd Floor, East of Kadash, New Colhl-110065. Phanec+B1 11 26472557, 26410079
Fax:+81 11 262194481, E-maitinwestors@dna coim, complianca@dnatinsenv.com, contact@dnalinsen.com, Wabsite www.dnafinsers.com

# Mumbai = Admodabad CIN : UT4893DL1S31PTCO12700
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Disclaimer: We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made available to
us by the authorized represeniatives of management of companies for the purpose of this Opinion. We
have not carried out any independent verification of the aceuracy and completeness of all information as
stated above and in the Scheme of Arrangement. We have not reviewed any other documents of the
Company other than those stated herein. We have not assumed any obligation to conduct, nor have we
carried out any independent physical inspection or title verification of the property, investments etc,
interests of Companies and accept no responsibility therefore.

We have not reviewed any internal management information statements or any non-public reports and
instead with your consent we have relied upon information that was publicly available or provided or
otherwise made available 1o us by Companies for the purpose of this opinion. We are not experts in the
evaluation of litigation or other actual or threatened claims.

v 1EF D OF THE COMPANIES
Asian Hotels (East) Limited (“AHEL"):

i.  AHEL is a listed public limited company incorporated under the laws of India and having its
registered office at Hyatt Regency, JA-1, Sector — 3, Salt Lake City, Kolkata, West Bengal -
700098, India. The CIN of AHEL is L13122WB200TPLC162762. The PAN of AHEL is
AACCYA634N,

ii. AHEL is primarily engaged in two lines of business through separate divisions as follows: (a)
Hotel Division engaged in the operation and management of Hyatt Regency, Kolkata; and (b)
Investment Division which in-tum consists of the Securities Trading Unit and the Strategic
Investments Unit.

iii. AHEL was incorporated under the name *Vardhman Hotels Private Limited’ on January 08,
2007 as a private limited with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal, and was converted into
a public limited company on July 28, 2007, The name of AHEL was changed W its present name
on February 16, 2010,

iv.  The shares and securities of AHEL are listed on the BSE Limited and Mational Stock Exchange
of India Limited. (Hereinafter referred to as “Stock Exchanges™).

Robust Hotels Private Limited (“RHPL™):

i. RHPL is a private limited company incorporated under the laws of India and having its
registered office at 365, Anna Salai Teynampet, Chennai, Tamil Madu = 600018, India. The CIN
of RHPL is US5101 THN2007PTC062085. The PAN for RHPL is AADCRS5413B.

L
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ii. RHPL is carrying on the business of operating Hyatt Regency Hotel, a hotel located at 365,
Anna Salai, Teynampet in Chennai.

iii.  RHPL was incorporated on January 19, 2007 with the Registrar of Companies, Chennai.

iv.  RHPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of AHEL, and the shares and securities of RHPL are not
listed on any stock exchange.

Overview of the Scheme of Arrangement

Asian Hotels (East) Limited is a company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock

Exchange. Asian Hotels (East) Limited has three subsidiaries namely; GJS Hotels Limited (“GJS™),

Regency Convention Centre and Hotels Limited (“RCC") and Robust Hotels Private Limited (“RHPL").

Over the years, AHEL has also been making substantial investments in mutual funds, bonds, shares ete.

As per recent financial statements the company has two divisions, Hotel Business (East), (“Hotel

Division") and “Investiments including investments in Hotel (South)” which further has two business

units viz:

*  Strategic Investments Unit: This unit includes loans and investments in RHPL and GJS.

+  Securities Trading Unit (“Demerged Undertaking”): This unit comprises of treasury/ liquid
investments which are regularly being traded and  bonds, mutual funds, and shares of certzin
companies (which already arc under an agreement of sale, part performance completed)

The Scheme of Arrangement provides for demerger of Demerged Undertaking of AHEL ints RHPL.
Under the Scheme of Arrangement, the whole of assets and liabilities relating to the Demerged
Undenaking of AHEL shall be transferred to RHPL.

Salient features of the Scheme of Arrangement
The Scheme of Arrangement is segregated into the fullowing:

*  lssuance of bonus shares by AHEL 1o its equity shareholders (as of the Record Date) in 2:1 ratio,
that is, 1 {one) new bonus fully paid-up cquily share having face value of INR 10 (Rupees ten)
for every 2 (two) Equity Sharcs of the AHEL having face value of INR 10 (Rupees 1en) each
held by a sharcholder of AHEL as of the Record Date.

*  Demerger of the Demerged Undentaking from AHEL into RHPL in accordance with Sections
230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and i compliance with Section 2{19AA) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 and issuance of consideration shares by RHPL to the sharcholders of AHEL.

* Reduction of capital in RHPL and consequent cancellation of:xlstmg Equity Shares of RHPL
held by AHEL without consideration.
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The Appointed Date for the determination of Share Entitiement Ratio as per the Scheme of
Arrangement shall be same as the Effective Date, The Scheme shall become ellective on the happening
of the last of the following:

* Upon approval of Scheme by sharcholders and’er creditors of each of the Scheme
Entities as required under the Companies Act, 2013;

= Upon sanction of Scheme by the Tribunal(s) and appropriste orders being
passed by the Tribunal(s) pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act,
2013; and

*  Centified copies of the relevant orders of the Tribunal(s) being filed with the Registrar of
Companies,

After the effectiveness of this Scheme, the Share Capital of RHPL consisting of the New Equity Shares
of RHPL issued as consideration in terms of the Scheme to the shareholders of AHEL shall be listed on
the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CEDVDILI/CIR/2017/21,
dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time. Further, as an integral part of the Scheme, Equity
Shares of RHPL (presently held by AHEL) shall stand cancelled and reduced (without payment of
consideration) without any further act and deed. and hence this Scheme comemplates approval of the
Tribunal{s) in terms of Section 66 of the 2013 Act, in addition 10 Sections 230-232 of the 2013 Act.

3. Sources of Information
For arriving at the opinion set forth below, we have relied upon following documents:

Draft Scheme of Arrangement.
Share Entitlement Report issued by Mr. Mahim Mehta, an independent valuer dated 13%
January, 2020,

*  Such other information and explanations as we requircd and which have been provided by the
management of the Companies.

*  Sharcholding Pattern of companies as of 30 September, 2019,

4. Valuation Report,

Based on analysis and as this Demerger creating a mirror sharcholding, we are of the opinion that the
Share Entitlement Ratio as described below and as recommended by an independent valuer Mr. Mahim
Mehta vide his report dated 13* January, 2020, is fair and reasonable for all the shareholders and the
Companies involved in the Scheme:

The equity shareholders of AHEL (holding one equity share of INR 10 each fully paid up) will receive 1
(one) equity share of RHPL (INR 10 each fully paid up) for every | (one) equity share (INR 10 cach

.-{_\
\ G
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fully paid up) held in AHEL. This Report is recommendatory in nature and provides view as to whether
this Share Entitlement Ratio would be fair and equitable to all the stakeholders and is based on the
sustainable equity capital in RHPL pursuant to bonus issue by AHEL, demerger of Securities Trading
Unit and Cancellation of capital of RHPL.

5. Rationale of scheme

The Management has proposed that every sharcholder holding one equity share {including bonus shares) in
AHEL will receive one share as consideration of the demerger in the Transferee Company, The value of
each share held by & shareholder in AHEL pre-demerger will be reflected by the combined value of the
shares in AHEL (post demerger) and Transferee Company, RHPL. After the implementation of the entire
Scheme on the Effective Date, the sharcholding pattern in Transferee Company will thus be same as the
sharcholding pattern of AHEL; this means that the economic interests of the sharehalders of AHEL will
remain unchanged and the sharchalders will have the same degree of control on both the COmpanies, as
they had before demerger in AHEL: 50 is the case regarding value on an aggregate basis.

As per the Scheme of Arrangement, AHEL, RHPL and their respective sharcholdérs stand to gain for the
following reasons:

*  Unlocking the value of AHEL, shares to its shareholders which is presently getting subdued
on account of subdued performance and balance sheet of RHPL.

¢ Pursuant to the Scheme, the Equity Shares of RHPL shall also be entitled 1o benefit of
gelting listed on the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the SEBI Circular. Therefore, shareholders
of AHEL (as of the Record Date) shall, as a result of the Scheme, hold Equity Shares of 2
(two) listed entities, AHEL and RHPL. Such sharcholders weuld then be able to choose ta
remain invested in both or either of AHEL and RHPL, giving them greater flexibility in
managing / dealing with their investments in different companics, being AHEL and RHPL in
view of their respective businesses, and individual risk profiles.

s  Provide scope for attracting and accessing targeted funding and investors for each of AHEL
and RHPL and provide better flexibility in pursuing long term growth plans and strategies
for the separate companies AHEL and RHPL. instead of RHPL continuing to use AHEL's
credit rating and guaranieés and equity funds,

* Enable the management of AHEL to evaluate the performance of the Hotel Division on an
independent basis and keep its risks (if any) ring-fenced. Improving the balance sheet of
RHPL and its credit rating by providing liquid assets and resources thar would enable
enhancement in future profiability without any sacrifice of value by the shareholders of
AHEL, cnabling potential turn-around andfor expansion programs for RHPL, and assist

RHPL in supporting and potentially reducing its debt burden and cost of financing.

B ]
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* Enable unlocking of the true value of the RHPL for the shareholders of AHEL (in a separate
entity, being RHPL), which does not appear to be reflecting fully and accurately in the
present consolidated market valuation of AHEL on account of there being a holding
company discount,

* Fossible release of puarantee(s) presenily given by AHEL to the lenders of RHPL. This
would clear the contingent liability in the balance sheet of AHEL and improve the credit
rating of AHEL thereby enabling reduction in cost of finance for AHEL and better price
discovery on the stock market,

¢ Enable enhanced strategic flexibility and focus of the respective managements of AHEL and
RHPL, thereby facilitating the separate managements to efficiently exploit opportunities for
each of the said businesses,

Thus, the Scheme of Arrangement will be advantageous to all the stakeholders owing to higher potential
market value of equity shares, on an aggregate basis, improved possibility of raising capital for expansion
if required or forming strategic alliances.

Cancellation in Capital in RHPL

The equity shares of RHPL held by AHEL to be reduced and cancelled without any payment of
consideration. As a result, the investments held by AHEL in RHPL under the Strategic Investments
Unit shall become Nil.

6. Conclusion and Opinion

On the basis of our scope and limitations mentioned in the report and based on our examination of the
draft of the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement and Share Entitlement Report dated 13 January, 2020
and on consideration of all the relevant factors as described herein above, we are of the opinion that the
ratio as proposed by the independent valuer i.e the equity sharcholders of AHEL (holding one equity
share of INR 10 each fully paid up) will receive | {une) equity share of RHPL (INR 10 each fully paid
up) for every 1 (one) equity share (INR 10 each fully paid up} held in AHEL, is fair.

Thanking You
For D & A Financial Services (P) Ltd

Ll _ . f’_..r';:l.-‘___ :.' sz
(M K Doogar) £ ‘ o /a9
Director [ 3 | Kolkay,

BTN
Place: New Delhi
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[} N

Our conclusion is based on the information furnished to us being complete and accurate in all
material respects,

We have not conducted any independent valuation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities
of the Companies.

Our work does not constitute verification of historical financials or including the working results
of the Companies referred to in this Opinion. Accordingly, we are unable to and do not eXpress
an opinion on the faimess or accuracy of any financial information referred 10 in this Opinion.
Our opinion is not intended 1o and does not constitule a recommendation 1o any shareholders as
to how such sharcholder should vote or act in connection with the Scheme or any matter related
therein.

Our liability (statstory or otherwise) for any economic loss or damage arising out of the
rendering this Opinion shall be limited to amount of fees received for rendering this Opinion as
per our engagement.

Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or centifying the compliance of the
proposed amalgamation with the provisions of any law including companies, taxation and capital
market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising thereon.

We assume no responsibility for updating or revising our opinion based on circumstances or
events occurring after the date hereof,

We do not express any opinion as to the price at which shares of the Companies may trade at any
time, including, subsequent 1o the date of this opinion.
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Singhi eZ Co. iy

T +3N0)33-2419 600O00V0Z
E kolksta@singhicocom
Chartered Accountants dvesiiahiesz o
Ta
The Board of Directors

Asian Hotels (East) Limited,
Hyatl Regency, -1, Sector -3
Salt Lake City, Kolkata

West Bengal = 700098, India

L

We, M/fs Singhi & Co. Chartered accountants the statutory auditors of Asian Hotels (East) Limited [CIN No
L15122WB2007PLC162762) (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), have examined the proposed accounting
treatments as specified in clause 3.3.1, 4.4.1(i), 4.4.1(ii) & 5.2 of the draft * Scheme of Arrangement, Demerger
and Reduction of Capital™ between Asian Hotels [East) Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors in teems of the provisions of section{s) 230 to 232 and Section 66 of the
Companies Act, 2012 with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under
the Companies Act, 2013 and other generally accepted accounting principles. The draft scheme has been
prepared by the company which has been initialed by us for identification purpose.

The responsibility for the preparation of the draft scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws and
repulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the
Aslan Hotels (East) Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limited. Our responsibility is only to examine and report
whelher the draflt scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and other Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, Nothing contained in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in
connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will cxtend any duty of care that we may have in
our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company. We carried out our
examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special Purposes, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Based on our examination and according to the infarmation and cxplanations given to us, we confirm that the
accounting treatments contained in the afaresadd scheme in relation to Asian Hotels [East) Limited as specifically
prescribed in the clauses mentioned in Para 1 above are in compliance with SEB! (Listing Oblipations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issucd there under and all the applicable Accounting
Standards notified by the Central Government under the Companies Act, 2013,

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Asian Hotels (East) Limited pursuant to the requirements of circulars
issued under SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward submission to the
Mational Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. This Centificale should not be used for any other purpose
without our prior writlen consent.

Encl: Braft “Scheme of Arrangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital® for relerence

For Singhi & Co,
Chartered Accounts

Firm Registration No, 302049E

[Aditya Singhi)
Partner
Membership No.305161

e

Place : Kolkata
Date : 13[OVf20i®

UBIM: LeB0SLel ARAAAD YIS

Ciffeca Kolkata, Murmbsl, Deinl, Channs, Bangaions & Ahmedabad
Beptwents Lo abeona. Hyderabad, Magipus
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ASIAN HOTELS (EasTt) LIMITED

Registered Office : Hyalt Regency Kolkats, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 098, W.B., India
Phone : 033 2335 123472517 1002 Fax : 033 2335 82462335 1235 www.ahleast.com
CIN: L15122WEB200TPLC162T62

2" March, 2020

To,

The Manager

Listing Department

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejechhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001
Tel: (022-2272 8013)

Fax: (022-2272 312

Type of Security: Equity shares
Serip Code : 533227

Dear Madam/Sir,
Sub: Submission of Report on Complainis

Re: Scheme of Arrangement

Please find attached *Report on Complaints’ pursuant to Annexure 111 of Para IA(6) of the SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10™ March, 2017 for the Scheme of Arrangement
filed with you on 28" January, 2020.

This is for your kind perusal and record.

Thanking you.

Yours truly,

For Asian Hatels (East) Limited

Chief Legal Officer &
Company Secrelary

Emncl.: as above

OWNER OF

%

HYATT.
REGENCY

HOLKATA
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ASIAN HOTELS (EasT) LIMITED

Registered Office : Hyntt Hogoncy Kolkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 088, WB., Indis
Phone : 033 2335 123472517 1012 Pax : 033 23395 8246/2335 1235 wew.ahleast.com
CIN: L15122WB2007TPLC162762

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS

(for the period 6™ February, 2020 to 1" March, 2020)

Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
[ Number of complaints received directly Nil
2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Nil
3. | Total Number of complaintsicomments received (1+2) Nil
4. | Number of complaints resolved Nat Applicable
5. Number of complaints pending Mot Applicable
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved/Pendin
Not Applicable
For Asian Hotels (East) l..lml{ i
oy L4
r;n.'.( R _"-"._
a = : It
Saumen Chatterjee | A /
Chief Legal Officer & ik
) Company Secretary
2* March, 2020
Kolkata
OWNER OF
HYATT.
REGENCY
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ASIAN HOTELS (East) LIMITED

Registered Office : Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 (98, WB,, India
Fhone : 033 2335 12342517 1012 Fax : (83 2335 824072335 1235 www.ahleast.com
CIN: L15122WB200TPLC162T62

To, 13" March, 2020
The Manager

Listing Department

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Exchange Plaza

Plot No. C/1, G Block,

Bandra — Kurla Complex

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

Tel: (022) 2659 8235

Fax: (022) 2659 8237
NSE Symbol  : AHLEAST
Dear Madam/Sir,

Sub: Submission of Report on Complaints

Re:  Scheme of Arrangement

Please find attached ‘Report on Complaints® pursuant to Annexure 111 of Para 1A(6) of the SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March, 2017 for the Scheme of Arrangement
filed with you on 28" January, 2020.

This is for your kind perusal and record.
Thanking you.

Yours truly,

For Asian Hotels (East) Limited

Chief Legal Officer & /
Company Secretary

Encl.: as above

WHER OF

W

HYATT.
REGENCY

KOLEATA
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ASIAN HOTELS (East) LIMITED

Registered Office : Hyatt Regency Holkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - T00 098, W, India
Phone : 033 2335 1234/2517 1012 Fax : 033 23356 S24672335 1235 www.ahleast.com
CIN: L15122WB207PLC162762

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
{for the period 20™ February, 2020 to 12™ March, 2020)
Part A
Sr., Particulars Mumber
No.
1. Mumber of complaints received directly Mil
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Mil
1 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) il
4. Mumber of complaints resolved Mot Applicable
5 Number of complaints pending Mot Applicable
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. {ResolvedPending)
Not Applicable
For Asian Hotels (East) Limited
|
I
.-"‘ff
13* Mareh, 2020
Kolkata
CWNER OF
HYATT.
REGENCY
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O NSE 2y

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref: NSE/LIST/23015_11 May 21, 2020

The Company Secretary

Asian Hotels (East) Limited

Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector-I11
Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700098

Kind Attn.: Mr. Saumen Chatterjee

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Arrangement amongst Asian Hotels (East)
Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement amongst Asian Hotels (East) Limited
(AHEL) ("Demerged Company™) and Robust Hotels Private Limited (RHPL) (“Resulting
Company™) and their respective sharcholders and creditors vide application dated January 28,
2020.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/23015 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (*Circular™), SEBI vide mail dated
May 21, 2020 has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure thar additional information, if any, submitted by the Comparny,
afrer filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter, is

displaved on the websites of the listed company.
b The company shall duly comply with various previsions of the Circular.

e The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock exchanges shall be incorporared
in the petition 1o be filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the observations ro
the notice of NCLT.

d. It is te be noted thar the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing anl
communication of comments‘observations on draft scheme by SEBUstock exchange. Hence,
the company is net reguired to send notice for representation as mandated wnder section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of commentsfobservations on draft scheme by SEBV stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies  Act, 2013 w National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
commentsfobservations’ representations.

Tras Document is Digrasy Signed

L e Brarat PabsH
'I'MHE 20, 2000 e ST

QO NSE

Matsonal Stock Exchange of India Limited | Ewchange Plaza. C-1. Plook G, Bandra Kerla Complax. Eandra (E). Mumbai - 400 0EL,
Inchia +00 23 26E0TLO0 | www.rssirdia com | CIN UST120MHIS0 2PLCOSDTED
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O NSE

Continuation Sheet

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice 1o be sent by the company to
the sharcholders, while sccking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about
unlisted companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the
circular dated March 10, 2017,

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we conveyed our “MNo-
objection™ in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the listing of equity shares of REobust Hotels Private Limited on the National Stock
Exchange India Limited shall be subject to SEBI granting relaxation under Rule 19(2)(b) of the
Securitics Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957, Further, Robust Hotels Private Limited shall comply
with SEBI Act, Rules, Begulations, directions of the SEBI and any other statutory authorities and
Rules, Byelaws and Regulations of the Exchange.

The Company should also fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing of such company and also
comply with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of Robust
Haotels Private Limited is at the discretion of the Exchange.

The listing of Robust Hotels Private Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be
subject to SEBT approval & Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Robust Holels
Private Limited and its group companies in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for
public issues with NSE for making the same available to the public through website of the
companics.

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information about Robust
Hotels Private Limited in line with the details required as per SEBI Circular No,
CFD/DILACIE2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, The advertisement should draw a specilic
reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the website of the Company
as well as NSE.

3. To disclose all the material information about Robust Hotels Private Limited to NSE on the
continuous basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements, if any,
speciflied in SEBI {(LODR) Regulations, 2015 for disclosures about the subsidiaries,

4. The following provision shall be incorporated in the scheme:

(a) “The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system
till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

(b) “There shall be no change in the sharcholding pattern or control in Robust Hotels Privaie
Limited between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this
approval.”

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections al any stage il the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect! misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / BEegulations issued by statutory authorities.

Tris Doournent is Dupiary Sgned
- e Bharsd Pase
TMIH 2. 000 18 S ST
O NSE '

Mational Stoaok Exchan g of India Limited | Exchange Plaza. C-1. Block G, Bandra Kerla Complax. Eandra (E). Mumbai - 400 081,
Trdha +0L 22 26ERTLO0 | waras. rsirciia oo | CIM UST120MHLS0 2PLCDSSTED
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O NSE

Continuation Sheet

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from May 21, 2020, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

YWours Faithfully,
For Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited

Titen Patel
Manager

P.5. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http:fwww. nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues. htm

Tris DOoUmEnt is Digiany Sgnea
dtenBrarsiPue
QNSE T MGy 21. D0 1854 1

Mational Stook Exchange of India Limited | Exchange Plaza. C-1. Block G, Bandra Kerla Complax. Eandra (E). Mumbai - 400 081,
Erdin + 01 22 26 ERTLO0 | waras. ribi rclincodm | CIM 671 20MHLS0 2PLCOSITED
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EXPERIEMNCE THE MEW

DCSIAMALIRIRITATIN2020-21 May 21, 2020

The Comgpany Secretary,

ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LTD

Hyatt Regency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector - 11, Salt Lake City,
Kolkata, West Bengal, 700098,

Dear Sir,

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangament by Aslan Hotels (East) Limited filed as required
under SEBI Circular No. CFIVDILICIRS2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI vide Ms Email dated
May 21, 2020 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the drafl scheme of arrangement:

= “"Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.”

«  “Company shall duly comply with varicus provisions of the Circular.”

+ “Company Is advised that the observations of SEBUStock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (MCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the obaervations to the notice of NCLT.”

+ "It Is lo be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by
SEBVstock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments | obsarvations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

«  To provide additional information, if any, (as siated above) along with various documents to
thir Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

+  To ensure thal additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various
documents are disseminated on their (company) website.

+  Toduly comply with various provisicns of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matlers having a bearing on listing/de-listingfcontinuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Lisfing Agreement, so as o enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble MCLT.
Further, whera applicable in the explanalory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
sharaholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall dizsclose Information about unligted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017,

However, the listing of equity shares of Robust Hotels Private Limited shall be subject to SEBI
granting relaxation under Rule 19(2)(b) of the Secunbies Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and
compliance with the requirements of SEBI circuiar, No, CFODVDILA/CIR2017/21 dated March 10, 2017,
Further, Robust Holels Private Limited shall comply with SEBI Acl, Rules, Regulations, directions of
the: SEBI and any other statulory authority and Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations of the Exchange.

S&P&3SE s
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EXPERIENCE THE MNEW

The Company shall fulfill the Exchange's criteria for listing the securities of such company and also
comply with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the lsting of shares of Robust Hotels
Private Limided is at the discretion of the Exchange. In addition to the above, the listing of Robust |
Hotals Private Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangemant shall be subject to SEBI approval and |
the Company satisfying the following conditions: i

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information aboul Robust Holels |
Private Limiled in line with the disclosure requiremnents applicable for public issues with BSE, |
for making the same available to the public through the website of the Exchange. Further, the
company is also advised to make the same available to the public thraugh its wabsite,

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information of Rebust
Hotels Private Limited in line with the delails required as per the aforesaid SEBI circular no.
CFIVDILICIRAZ017r21 dated March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a specific
reference to the aforesald Information Memorandum available on the website of the company
as well as BSE.

3. To disclese ail the material information about Robust Holels Private Limited on a continuous
basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements if any, specified in Listing
Agreement for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

4, The fellowing provisions shall be incorpocated in the schame:

i, The shares allotied pursuant to the Schemsa shall remain frozen in the depository system
il listingftrading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

i,  “There shall be no change in the sharehclding pattern of Robust Hotels Private Limited
between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this approval.”

Further you ara also advised to bring the conlents of this letter lo the notice of your shareholders, all
relevant authorities as deemed fil, and also in your application for approval of the scheme of
Arrangemant

Kindgly note thal as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclesure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be Six Months from
the date of this Latter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right lo withdraw its ‘Mo adverse observation' at any stage if the
infermation submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect [ misleading [/ false or for
any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid chservations does not preciude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may ba noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule & of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2018 {Company
Rules) and Section 85 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an
Order passed by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed schemea of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 65 of the Companies Act 2013
as the case may be u seeking re tations_or

objections if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a befter transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served
upon ﬂba Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such

the relevant documents of the osad schemas th h_the BSE Listin
Em
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ASIAN HOTELS (EasTt) LIMITED
Registered Offlce : Hynit Regoncy Kolkata, JA-1, Sector [11, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 088, WB., India

Phone : 033 2335 123472517 1002 Fax : 033 23335 82462335 1235 www.ahleast.com
CIN: L15122WB2007PLC162762

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ASIAN HOTELS (EAST)
LIMITED ON NOVEMBER 14, 201%, EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME
OF ARBANGEMENT AND DEMERGER ON THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
(INCLUDING PROMOTER & NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS) & THE KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors (“Board™) of Asian Hotels (East) Limited (“AHEL" or the
“Company™), at its meeting held on November 14, 2019, considered and approved the scheme
of arrangement, demerger and reduction of share capital between the Company, Robust Hotels
Private Limited, a wholly ewned subsidiary of the Company (“RHPL” or the “Resulting
Company”) and their respeetive shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companics Act, 2013 (“2013 Act™) providing imter-alia (i) demerger and transfer of the
undertaking, business, activities and operations of the Company pertaining to *Securities Trading
Unit* comprising of treasury/liquid investments which are being regularly traded, bonds, mutual
funds, and shares of certain companies (which already are under an agreement of sale, par
performance completed)(“Demerged Undertaking™) from the Company into RHPL, as a going
concemn in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of Income Tax Act, 1961; (ii) capitalization of
reserves of the Company and issuance and alloiment of fully paid-up bonus equity shares having
face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten) (“Bonus Shares™) by the Company to ils equity
sharcholders (as of the Record Date), in the ratio 2:1, meaning 1 (one) Bonus Share for every 2
{two) equity shares of the Company, ranking pari passu with the existing equity shares of the
Company; and (iii) reorganizalion and reduction of shares of RHPL held by the Company
(without any consideration)(*“Scheme™).”,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the 2013 Act, the Board is required to adopt a
report explaining the effect of compromise or arrangement on each class of sharcholders, key
managerial personnel (“KMP"), promoter and non-promoter shareholders, and laying out in
particular the share entitlement ratio and specifying special valuation difficulties, if any, and the
same is required 1o be circulated as a pari of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the
purpose of approving the Scheme.

This report of the Board (“Report”) is accordingly being made pursuant to the requirements of
Section 232(2) (c¢) of the 2013 Act.

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board inter-alia considered and took on record the
following documents along with this report:

(i) Drafl scheme of arrangement, demerger and reduction of share capital;

(it  Draf Share Entitlement Report dated November 14, 2019 from Mr. Mahim Singh Mehta,
IBBI Registered Valuer (IBBURV/05/2019/11986) inter-alia describing the methodology
adopted by them in arriving at the share entitlement ratio;
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(iii)

(iv)

v
(vi)

ASIAN HOTELS (EasT) LIMITED
Registered Office : Hyatt Regoncy Kolkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lako City, Kolkata - 700 088, WB., India
Phone : 033 2335 12342517 1002 Fax : 033 2335 824672335 1235 www.ahleast.com
CIN: L156122WH2007PLC162762

Draft Fairness Opinion dated Movember 14, 2019 from D&A Financial Services (P)
Limited, Merchant Banker;

Draft certificate from the statutory auditor of the Company, M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered
Accountants confirming that the scheme is in compliance applicable accounting treatment
notified under the 20013 Act and other generally accepted accounting principles (the
Auditors’ Certificate);

Draft net worth certificate issued by Mfs. O.P. Tulyan & Co., Chartered Accountants,

Report of the Audit Committee dated November 14, 2019 recommending the Scheme to
the Board;

After taking on record the documents / confirmations referred above, the Board of AHEL
approved the Scheme, and the draft scheme of arrangement and demerger, as placed before the

Board.

Following is the Report with respect to the aforesaid provisions:

1L

Share Entitlement Ratio:

Draft Share Entitlement Report dated November 14, 2019 obtained from Mr. Mahim
Singh Mechta, IBBl Registered Valuer (IBBIRV/05/2019/11986) recommends the
following share entitlement

I (one) fully paid-up Equity Share of RHPL having a face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees
ten) shall be issued, allotied and credited as fully paid with rights attached thereto for
every I (one) fully paid-up Equity Share of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10
{Indian rupees ten) held by shareholders of AHEL as of the Record Date (as determined
in terms of the Scheme and the 2013 Aci).

The D&A Financial Services (P) Limited, Merchant Banker, in its Draft Fairness Opinion
dated Wovember 14, 2019 provided an opinion that the aforesaid share entitlement ratio is
fair and reasonable 1o the equity sharcholders of AHEL. Further, no special valuation
difficulties were reported by Mr. Mahim Singh Mehta in the instanl Share Entitlement
Report.

Effect of the Scheme on the sharcholders (including promoter & non-promoter
sharcholders) of AHEL

(i) There is only one class of sharcholders, i.e., equity shareholders, which includes
the promoter as well as non-promoter shareholders of AHEL.

(ii) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, AHEL will issue and allot equity shares by

way of bonus, o cach equity sharcholder whose name is recorded in the regislEs o
of members of the Company and/or the records of the depository (ies) as equ'lto
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ASIAN HOTELS (EasT) LIMITED

Registered Office : Hyatt Regoncy Kolkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kelkata - 700 098, WB., India
Fhone ; 033 2335 123472517 1012 Fax ; 033 2335 S246/2330 1235 www.ahlonst.com
CIN: L15122WH200TPLC 162762

sharcholder of AHEL on the Record Date, in the ratio of 2:1, meaning 1 (one)
Bonus Share for every 2 (two) equity shares of the Company, ranking pari passi
with the existing cquity shares of the Company;.

(iif) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, as consideration for the Demerged
Undertaking demerging into the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company will
issue and allot its equity shares to ¢ach member of the Company whose name is
recorded in the register of members on the record date (as may be determined in
terms of the Scheme), as per the above mentioned share entitlement ratio.

{iv)  Upon this Scheme becoming effective, there will be a reduction in share capital of
RHPL and consequent cancellation of equity shares of RHPL held b}r the
Company without any consideration.

(v}  Accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective and pursuant to the issue of
consideration shares by RHPL to sharcholders of AHEL as on Record Date, the
sharcholding pattern and inter-s¢ shareholding percentage of  shareholders of
RHPL shall mirror the sharcholding pattern and inter-se sharcholding percentage
of the sharcholders of AHEL as of the Record Date,

(vi}  The equity shares of RHPL to be issued and allotted as above shall be subject to
the provisions of the Memorandumn and Articles of Association of the Resulting
Company.

(vii} The equity shares of RHPL shall be listed on the stock exchanges i.e. BSE
Limited and Mational Stock Exchange of India (“Stock Exchanges") in
accordance with the SEBI Circular No. CFDVDIL3/ CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017, as amended from time to time, and therefore shareholders of AHEL (as of
the Record Date) shall, upon the Scheme becoming effective, hold cquity shares
of 2 (two) listed entities, AHEL and RHPL.

{viii) There will be no change in the sharcholding pattern of the Company, however
paid-up and issued equily share capital of the Company shall stand increased
pursuant to the issue of bonus shares. Pursuant to the Scheme there would be no
change in the sharcholding pattern of AHEL.

{ix)  The equity shares of AHEL to be issued by the Company as bonus shares 1o its
shareholders purssant to the Scheme would rank pari passu with existing equity
shares of AHEL and be subjeet to its Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association and be listed on Stock Exchanges, subject to all regulatory approvals
and applicable laws.

(x) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the sharcholders of RHPL (being the
shareholders of AHEL as of the Record Date) and their holding proportion in the
Resulting Company, as on the record date, will be identical 1o that of AHEL (d#%F= oF
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ASIAN HOTELS (East) LIMITED

Reglstored Office : Hyatt Rogency Kolkata, JA-1, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 098, WB., India
Phane : 033 2335 12342517 1012 Fux : 033 2335 B246/2215 1235 www.ahloast.com
CIN: L15122WB2007PLC162762

the Record Date), and thus, the overall economic interest of equily shareholders of
AHEL shall remain the same even afier the Scheme becomes effective.

1L Effect of the Scheme on Key Managerial Personal (KMP) of AHEL

The Scheme will have no effect on KMP of AHEL, except to the extent of their
respective shareholding in AHEL, if any, and effect thereon as detailed in Paragraph 11
above. None of the directors or KMPs or their relatives, except in their capacity as
sharcholder(s) of AHEL (if applicable), is concerned, or interested financially or
otherwise in the Scheme.

There will be no adverse effect of the Scheme on the equity sharcholders {mc!udmg
promoters and non-promoter sharcholders), or KMPs of the Company.

Adopted at the meeting of the Board of the Company held on Movember 14, 2019,
On behalf of the Board
For Asian Hotels (East) Limited

e, (ealiereg s
Saumen Chatterjee

Chiefl Legal Officer & ° 5\
Company Secretary

OWHER OF

%%

HYATT.
REGENCY

HOLEATA

87



ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-USS101TN2007PTCO6 2085
Regd office: 365, Anna Salai, Teynampet, Chennai — 600018
Tel: +91 44 6100 1234 Email: info@sarafhotels.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE
LIMITED ON JANUARY 13, 2020, EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT AND DEMERGER ON THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS (INCLUDING
PROMOTER & NON-FROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS) & THE KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors (“Board™) of Robust Hotels Private Limited (“RHPL” or the “Company™), at its
meeting held on January 13, 2020 considered and approved the scheme of arrangement, demerger and
reduction of share capital between the Company, Asian Hotels (East) Limited, holding company of the
Company (*AHEL") and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“2013 Aet™) providing fnter-alia (i) demerger and transfer of the undertaking,
business, activities and operations of AHEL pertaining to ‘Securities Trading Unit' comprising of
treasury/liquid investments which are being regularly traded and bonds, mutual funds, and shares of
certain companies (which already are under an agreement of sale, part performance completed)
(“Demerged Undertaking™) from AHEL into the Company, as a going concern in compliance with
Section 2(19AA) of Income Tax Act, 1961; (i) capitalization of reserves of the AHEL and issuance and
allotment of fully paid-up bonus equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten)by AHEL to
its equity shareholders (as of the Record Date), in the ratio 2:1, meaning 1 (one) Bonus Share for every 2
(two) equity shares of AHEL, ranking parf passu with the existing equity shares.; and (iii) reodganization
and reduction of shares of the Company held by AHEL (without any consideration)with * Appointed Date’
being the same as the Effective date or such other date as may be modified/fixed by the Tribunals
(“Scheme”).”

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the 2013 Act, the Board is required to adopt a report
explaining the effect of compromise or arrangement on each class of sharcholders, key managerial
personnel (“KMP™), promoter and non-promoter shareholders, and laying out in particular the share
entitlement ratio and specifying special valuation difficulties, if any, and the same is required to be
circulated as a part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme.

This report of the Board (“Report™) is accordingly being made pursuant to the requiremetits of Section
232(2)(c) of the 2013 Act.

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board inrer-alia considered and took on record the following
documents along with this repor:

{i) Draft scheme of arrangement, demerger and reduction of share capital;

(ii) Share Entitlement Report dated January 13, 2020 from Mr. Mahim Singh Mehta, IBBI Registered
Valuer (IBBIYRV/0S/2019/11986) imser-alia describing the methodology adopted by them in
arriving at the share entitlement ratio;

(iii}  Faimess Opinion dated January 13, 2020from D&A Financial Services (P) Limited, Merchant
Banker;

(iv)  Centificate dated 13" January from the statutory auditor of the Company, M/s. P. Lunawat &
Associates,, Chartered Accountants confirming that the scheme is in compliance with the
applicable accounting treatment notified under the 2013 Aet and other generally accepted
accounting principles (the Auditors® Certificate);




ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-US5101TN2007PTCOG2085
Regd office: 365, Anna 5alai, Teynampet, Chennai — 600018
Tel: #91 44 6100 1234 Email: info@sarafhotels.com

v
(vi)

Net worth centificate issued by M/s O.P, Tulsyan & Co., Practising Chartered Accountants;

Report of the Audit Committee dated January 13, 2020 recommending the draft Scheme, Share
Entitlement Report and Fairness Opinion to the Board.

Afier taking on record the documents / confirmations referred above, the Board of RHPL approved the
Scheme, and the draft scheme of arrangement and demerger, as placed before the Board.

Faollowing is the Report with respect to the aforesaid provisions:

L

Share Entitlement Ratio:

Share Entitlement Report dated January 13 2020 obtained from Mr, Mahim Singh Mehta, IBBI
Registered Valuer (IBBI/RV/05/2019/11986) recommends the following share entitlement ratio:

! (one) fully paid-up Equity Share af RHPL having a face value of Rs. 10 {Indian rupees ten)
shall be issued, allotted and credited as fully paid with rights attached thereta for every I (one)
Sully paid-up Equity Share of the AHEL having a face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten) held by
shareholders of AHEL as of the Record Date {as determined in terms of the Scheme and the 2013
Aet).. '

The D&A Financial Services (P) Limited, Merchant Banker, in its Fairness Opinion dated
January 13 2020 provided an opinion that the aforesaid share entitlement ratio is fair and
reasonable 10 the equity shareholders of RHPL. Further, no special valuation difficulties were
reported by Mr. Mahim Singh Mehta in the instant Share Entitlement Report.

Effect of the Scheme on the sharcholders (including promoter & non-promoter
shareholders) of RHPL

(i) There is only one class of shareholders, i.e., equity sharcholders. RHPL being the wholly
owned subsidiary of AHEL, 100% equity shares are held by AHEL and its nominess,
Thus, AHEL is the sole beneficial shareholder, and holding company of the Company.

(ii) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, as consideration for the Demerged Undertaking
demerging into the RHPL, the RHPL will issue and allot its equity shares to each member
of AHEL whose name is recorded in the register of members on the record date (as may
be determined in terms of the Scheme), as per the above mentioned share entitlement
ratio.

(iii)  Upon this Scheme becoming effective, there will be a reduction of share capital of RHPL
and consequent cancellation of equity shares of RHPL held by the AHEL without any
consideration.

(iv)  Accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective and pursuant to the issue of
consideration shares by the Company to sharcholders of AHEL as on Record Date, the
sharcholding pattemn and inter-se sharcholding percentage of  sharcholders of the
Company shall mirror the shareholding pattern and inter-se sharcholding percentage of
the shareholders of AHEL as of the Record Date.,
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-US5101TN2007PTCOE2085
Regd office: 365, Anna Salai, Teynampet, Chennai — 600018
Tel: 491 44 6100 1234 Email: Info@sarathotels.com

(v) The equity shares of the Company to be issued and allotted as above shall be subject 10
the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

{vi)  The equity shares of the Company shall be listed on the stock exchanges i.e. BSE Limited
and Mational Stock Exchange of India in accordance with the SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time, and
therefore shareholders of AHEL (as of the Record Date) shall, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, hold equity shares of 2 (two) listed cntities, AHEL and RHPL.

1. Effect of the Scheme on KMP of RHPL

The Scheme will have no effect on KMP of RHPL, except to the extent of their respective
shareholding in AHEL, if any, and effect thereon as detailed in Paragraph 1l above. Save as
otherwise disclosed above, none of the directors or KMPs or their relatives, except in their
capacity as sharcholder(s) of AHEL (if applicable), is concerned, or interested financially or
otherwise in the Scheme.

There will be no adverse effect of the Scheme on AHEL (sole beneficial shareholder and holding
company of the Company) or KMPs of the Company.

Adopted at the meeting of the Board of the Company held on January 13, 2020,

On behalf of the Board

Manisha Sharma
Company Secretary\,
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ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
CIN: Lisiz2WBzoo7PLC162762
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2020

Amound in Hs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note 31.03.2020 __31.03.3019
1 Fevenue from operations n 1,037,270 1,034,424.67
I Other income 22 Bo.763.985 16,608,105
Il Total income LOL0, 701,265 1,137,132,776
IV Expenses
Consumption of provigions, beverages, smokes & others 23 126,062,103 126,657,266
Employee benefits expenses 24 210,658,604 208,214,084
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 29,731,845 49,238,742
Other expenses 25 422,033,691 508,643,161
Total expenses 786,386,333 892,753,253
vV Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 221,404,922 244,369,523
V1 Exceptional items - -
VII Profit / (loss) before tax 221,404,922 244,369,523
VIII Tax expense 26
{1} Current tax (including previous years) 47372925 78547641
(2) Deferred tax (15,545.407) (10,820,673)
(3) MAT (Refer Note No 47) 50,881,005 (1.062.517)
IX Profit / (loss) for the yoar 138,666,300 177,806,072
X Odher comprehensive income
A () Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit lability (345.793) 127,826
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (35.137.347) 47,042,090
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 6,455.573 (37.223)
loss
B () Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = &
(5} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = ’
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (20,027.567) 47,152,608
XI Total comprehensive income for the year — 109668742 224.038.765
XI1 Earnings per equity share
(2) Basic 27 1203 15.42
(2) Diluted 27 12.03 1542
“The accompanying notes form an integral part of the 5. Rodhe fhrﬂ SHMF-
\ 5 hadr e 1?1 96
oprpe
In terms of our report attached For and on mm«'ﬁ"mm L /‘
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants M Ww'k‘v‘*“‘
Firm Registration. No. 302049E

. Arun Kr Saraf AC. Chakrabortii
Q@dr‘_ M Director Director

DN No. - 00339772 DIN No. - 00015622
Rajiv Singhi
roe COON M- VT
Membership Ne. : 053518
Umesh Saraf Padam Kr Khuitan
Piace: Kolkata Director Director
Date: 315t July 2020 DIN No. - 00017985 DIN No. - 00019700
j’{vu—f-ﬂ-
Rama Shhnkar Jhawar ta Bhimani
Director Director
DIN No. - 00023792 DIN No. - omob059

Bimal Kr Jhunjhunwala Mummm

Chief Legal Officer &
Company Secretary

CFO & Vioe President- Corporate Finance
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Pollcles

1.1 Company overview

Asian Hotels (Bast) Limited is a Public Linited Company listed wilh Bombay Slock Exchange and National Stock Exchange and i primarily engaged in
the Hotel business throwgh “Hyatt Regency Kolkata™ a five-star Hotel sitnated in the dty of Kolkata,

1.2. Bagls of preparation of financial statement

These finascial statements are prepared in accondance with Indian Accoanting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the sccrual
basis except for certaln financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and the provisions of the Companies Act , 2023 {"Aet’) (10 the extent
rotified). The lad AS are prescribed under Soction 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Acccunting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standands) Amendment Rules, 2006,

Arcounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly ksued secounting standard is initially adopied or & revision o an existing
acconnting standard requines a change in the sccounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statensents are approved for issee by the Company's Board of Disectors on July 31, 2020

1.3 Functional & Presenlation Currency
Thiese Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupess (INR) which is also the company's functional currency.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial saterents in conformily with Ind AS requifes management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions afficet the application of secounting policies and the reported amounts of assets aad labilitkes, the disclosnes of
contingen| assets and lishilities at the date of the financial statensents and roported amoonts of revenues and expenses durlng the period. Although thiso
estimatcs are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, encertainty aboat these assumptions snd estimates coubd result
in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carying amounts of assets or labdlities in future periods, Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes o the lpascial statements.

1.5 Significant Accounting Policies
a. Property Plant & Equipment:

Property, Plant and squipment are stated al vost, net of sccamulated depreciation and accumulated impairment bosses, i any. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and bormowing costs for long-term construction projocts if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced st intervals, the Company deprociates them separately based on their specific welul lives.
Likewise, when a major inspeciion ls performed, it cost is recognized in the carying amount of the plant and equipment as a roplacement if the
rocagnithon criteria are satisfiod. All ether repair and malntenancs costs ane recognizod in profit of loss as incurred. The prosent value of the expected cost
for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is incloded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognitien criferia for a provision ane met.

Intangible assets are stated at cost bess accumalated amortisation ard ret of impalrments, if any. An intangible asset is recognised i it is probable that the
expected futwre economic benefits that are atiributable to the asset will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets ane
amortised on straight line basks over their estimated useful lives,

Depreciation on fised assets is caleulated on a stralght-Hee basis using the rates based on the usefil lives of the azsets as preseribed in Schedule 11 1o the
Companbes Act, 2013, If the assct is purchased on or bedore the 15th of month deprocistion is charged from the moath of punchase, otherwise depreciation
ks charged from the month following the month of purchase.

b Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controllod by the Company. The Company contruls an entity whan it Is oxpesed to, or has rights to, varialde returns from it
imvolvement with the cotity and has the ability to affect those returns throegh its power over the entity.

The Company's investment in the equily shares of its subskliarics are recognised ot cost. The company has dlected to apply previeus GAAF carmying
amourt of its equiry investment in subsidiaries as deemed cost as on the date of transition to Ind AS. However, the debt instruments in subgidizries are
recogaized at falr valoe.

e Invenlories
Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizalsde valwe, Met realimable value is the sstimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated cost of completion & selling expenses.

d. Trade Recelvables
“Trade récetvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measared st amertised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

¢ Financial Instruments

Afinarcial instrument is any contrect that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial Nability or equity instrument of anather catity.
Financials Asset

Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recognized inftially at falr value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fuir value throogh profit or loss, transaction
posts that are directly attributable to the scquisition of the financlal asset.

Subsequent measurcment

For purposes of subsequent measurvment, financial assets are classified in three categories:
(i) Financial Assct st amortized cost

(ii}Financial Asset At Fair Yaloe through other comprebensive income (OCT)

(iti)Financial Asset 3t Fair value through profit and loss (FL)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3003, 30ad0

Financial Asset ot amortized cost

A ‘Finamcial Aset’ is measured ot tive amontisod cost 5 botl tee followiag conditions am met:

) The st s heled within a busicoss model whose objective is to hold axsets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terma of the asset give rive on specified datcs to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPFI) on the prineipal
amount outstanding.

After inithal messurement, such finaneial assets ane subsequently messured 8t amortizod cost using the elfective lateneat rate (EIR) method. Amortized
cost Is cakulsted by taking Into sccount any disccunt or promsium on scquisition apd fees of costs that ane an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortiztion is incloded in finance income in the statement of profit o ke,

Financial Asset at Falr value through OCT

A 'Finanoia] Assot” i classifiod as at the FYTOCE i both of the following, criteria ane met:

&) Tha olsjective of e busisess model b scsicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sefling the financisl sxsets, and

) The asset’s contractual cash fows roprosent SPTL

Figancial Assct included within the FYTOUT category ane meansred inktially a3 well a3 st each reporting date at falr vahee. Fair value mévements are
recognksed I the cther comprebensive lecome (OCTL

Financial Asset at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is & resideal category for Financial Assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteris for cabegorization as st amertized cost or as
FVTOCL, in classified as ot FYTPL

In mddition, the company may ebect o designate & Financial asset, witich otherwine meels amontiaad cost or FYTOC] eriteria, a3 at FYTPL. However, such
electicn is aliowed caly if doirg so reduces of eliminates a measurement of recogaition insorslstency (referred bo as "accourting mismatch’).

Equity Instruments

All exqulty Investments bn scope of Ind AS 109 ane measured at fair value. For equity instruments, the company may naslke an Ireevocable election to
present subsequent changes i the fair value in ofhver comprehensive income, The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instnsment basis,
“Thve classi fieatson is made oa infhiad recognition and ks irmevocable if the Comparny decides to clasify an equity instrament a0 ot FVYTOC, then all fair vabee
chamges om the instranwent, exdudieg dividends, are recognized in the OCT.

Derognisition of Financial asset

A fizmancinl asset (o, whvere applicabls, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar fimsncial assets) is primarily danccognized when:

= The rights to rooetve cash Mows o the sset have expired, or

= The company has transfarmed its rights to receive cash flows from the aeset or hes aopsed an obligation to pay the reccived cash flows i foll without
materia! delay to 8 third party under a ‘pass-through” srmogement: and either

() the Company has transferred substaniially all the risks and pewands of the asses, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retainod substantislly all the risks snd rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial asscts ) .

In secordance with Iod AS 109, the Company applics expected credit kas (ECL) medel for measarement and recognition of impairment boss on the
follgwing financial assets and credit risk exposune:

a) Financial assets that are debt inste and are & d a1 swortised coat o.¢. loans, debt secusities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b) Finamcial assots that sre debit Instranvents and sre meanared as at FVTOCL

€} Lease receivables under Ind AS 17.

) Trade receivables o any contrachus] right to receive cash or another financial asect that resslt from transactions that ase within the scope of Ind AS 1
ared Ind AS 18 (referred to as “condractasl receivables)

&) Lown comenitnsents which are not mecasured as at FVTPL

1) Financial guaraptoo coniracts which ane pot mesnared a5 at FYTFL

mmﬂwmmmmmmmwmwmmmaum bias beoen & significant
incroase In the crodia risk since inlzlal recognithon. If credis risk bas not increased significantly, 12-menth ECL s weedd to provide for impalrooest b
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is msedl. I, in o subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves sach that
there s 5o losper o sigalficant increase in crodit risk sinee initial recognition, then the entisy reverts 1o recogaising impairment loss allowance based on 12
monll ECL.

Lifetinse BCL are the expected credit losses resalting froon &1l peasible defawlt events over Tve expected life of a financial instramaeat.

Financial Liabilities

Inktial recognition and measarement .
Al finarcial Habilities are recognized initially ot fabr vahee and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, met of directly stiributable transaction
costs, For financial Rabilities mataring within one year froen the balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximate falr value dise 1o the shost pastenty
of thes instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss 1 ’ :
Finamcial Hsbilities st fair value through profit or Joss inclede financial liabRities held for trading and fnencial labilities desigeated upon indtial
recognition as at faic value through poofit or loss, Finascie) llabilities are classified as held for trading if they aro incarred for ke purposs of nepuschasing
Iz thoe ey term, Galns or losses on liabilities hebd for trading ane recogniced in the profit o ko,

o i measared at amortised using the EIR method, Gains and kosscs
After iitial recognithn, in Roana wned bowrowings are subsequently at ool ane
w&muhmMnWUuﬂuwh EIR amontization procoess. Amortized cost ks caloclated by taking
it sevount sny discount of prenthom on scquisition and foes or costs that are an integral part of the KIK. The EIR smortiztion Is inchuded as finance
oowts in the statement of profit and loss,
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O THE FINANC STATE

. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalert in balance sheet comprise cash o2 banks and on band, unpabd dividend, fbeed deposits and short - tenm deposiis with an
original maturity of thee months of ke, which are subject (o an instgnificant risk of charges invalue.

£ Trade Payaldes & Other Payables

These amounts represent Babilities for goods and servioes providod to the corapany prior 1o the end of financial year which are uspaid Trade and other
payables are presented a8 corrent labilitics ualess payment is wot doe within 12 mosths alter the reporting, perfod. They ane recognisod initially a1 their
falr valoo and subsequently measurce at ansortised cost using the effective intorest meotbod.

b, Provisions, Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recogmized when the company has 8 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it ks probable that an gutflow of
rescurces smbodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligition. The
cxpenss relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of peofit and less.

I the effect of the time vahee of nzoney ks material, provisions are discousted udng a carrent pre-tax rate that reflects, whea appropeiate, the risks specific
to the Habity, When disconnting ks used, the incronse in the provision dioe to the passage of Grse ks recognized as a finance cost.

A coatingent labdlity is disclesod in caso of;

- a prestet obligation arising from past events, wiven it is not probable that an outflow of rescarces will be required to setile the chligation;

- & present oblipation arising from past events, wivea oo reliable estimate b possible ;

- & possible obligation arising from past svents, unless the probahility of outflow of resources is remate.

Provisiona, contingent liabilitics, contingent assets apd commitments are reviewed at each balamce sheet date.

i Revenue rocognition

Hevenuo 3 recognired 10 the extent that it is probalsle that the economle borselits will fiow and the novenoe can be reliably measured, regardbess of when
the payment i being made. Revenise is measared at the falr vabae of the consideration receivesd or reccivable, 1aking knto ecccent contractually defined
terms of payment and cxcluding taxes or duthes collected on behalfl of ihe povernnecat.

Revenue from contract with customer

Ind AS 115 = Reverue from Contracts with Costomers * which is effective from 1t April.2018 establishes a five-step model to sccount for revenue arising
from eontracts with customers and requires that rovonue be rocognised af an amoust that reflects the cnsideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchango for trenslerring gocds or sorvioes 10 2 castomer.

Ind AS 115 requines entitics to exercise judgement, taking fnto consideration sl of the relevan facts and dircamstances when applying cach step of the
modal to contrects wilh their customere. The Company sdopted Ied AS 15 using the modifiad retrospective mathod of adoption with the date of initial
apylication of 1 April 2018, Under this mothad, he standard can be applied either to all costracts at the date of initial application or only to contrats that
are not completed at this date. The Company clected 1o apply the standard to all contracts as st 1 April 2008, However, the application of Iivd AS 125 docs
nat have any significant kmpact on tho recogrition and measuronsent of nevenioe and roelated Roms.

Pevenua from costracts with customers s recognised when cantrol of the geods or senvioes ong transfenrad to the costomer 8% an amownt that reflocts the
consideration ta which the Company expects to be entithed in cachange for those goods or services. The Company has generally comcluchal that it is the
pringipal in its revenoe armngements, beeasss it ypbolly cantrola the gaods o services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of Goods:

Revenue from e of goods i recognised at the point in tinse when control of i goods b trapsferred to the costomer. The normal erodit berm b 30 dags
days upon delivery, The neveniee is measared on the basis of the consldoration defined in the contract with a castomer, Incuding varisble consideration,
mﬂ-mmm«mmmmnmwhmﬁahnmmﬁmmmmmwmm
the customer and the date an which the customer pays for these goods is generally ose year of bess, po financing conyponents are aken inlo scoount.

The Company considers whether there sre other promises in (he contract that are soparate performance obligations to which a portion ef the transaction
price nooids ta bo allocabod.

Sale of Services:

The Company has applied the guidance in Ied AS 115, Revewue from contract with customer, by apphdng the revenue rocognition eriteria far cach distinet

performance obligation. The arramgements with custamors gencrally meet the critesia fur consldering room booking and related services s distinct
mmmmmm&mmhmmMuhmdmmmﬂ-

coetract st Ms relative stasdalope selling price. The price that s regnlarly charged for oo item when sold separately is the best evidenos of its standalone

seiling price.

J- Other Income

Othér income is comprised prinsarily of isterest income, dividend income, gain on sle of inveatments and exchange gain/loss on trandation of s ard
Tahilitics. For all debt instramserts measured cither at amartised cost or at fair vahse through ether comprehensive incone, interest inconse is recognised
using e elfoctive intesest rate (EIR). Dividend income is rocognised when right to neocive payment is established.

k. Borrowing Costs
Bmh;m&-ﬂrumwmwmwmmdmmmmymimmdwﬂuﬂwwm
ready for its intended use aro capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other b ing costs ans exp d in the period in which they eorer,

Barmowing costs consist of interest srd other costs that an entity incers in conmoction with the bormowing of funds. Bormowing cost alee includos cxchange
differences to the extent regardod a5 an adjustent to the bormowing costs.

98



Income tax exponse coppriscs curmint and deforrnd (poome L, Inoonss e cxpense b recognized n met profit in the statement of profit and s except
#o thee exctimt that it relates to Rema fecognined directly in eqaity, in which case i i ecognbed bn ofber compreheasive income. Curront incomse g fer
curmeal and prior periods is roognined al the amoust expected to be paid 1o or reocvered Trom the tax suthorities, exing tbe Lax mies aned tax Lows that
have been ensctal o spbstaatively enscted by the balange sheet date.

Diefierred income tix aspets and liabDities ane recognisnd for ol temporary dilleronces arising between the tax bases of ssvets and Habilithes and their
carrying im the fimancial ot Deferred tax assets are feviewad ot cach roporting date and are peduced to the extent that it ks no loager
probablie that the related tax bemefit will be realived.

Dhefierred income tax assets and Rabdlities are measured wing tax ratos aed tax b that have boon esscted or substantively enacted by the balance shoet
date and are expocted 1o apply 1o taable incomse in the years in which those temporary dilferenoes aie expected to be recovered ar setiled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on defonned Enconve tex assets wnd HabiSties ls recognined a3 income of expense in the period that indhudes the enscimen? or the
substantive ensctmsent dabe. A deferred incomo tax assct b rocognined to the extont that it s probable that futere taxable profit will be svailable sagaina

whilch the deduciible temporary differences amd tax Joises can be utilizml. The offssts curment tax ssscts and current tax lahilities, nhere it has a
legally enlrorable right Lo set off the recogninoed and where it intend o nettle on & et basis, o 1o roalize the aset and scttle the labity

Mimimaim Abernate Tax (MAT] crodit s rocognised a0 an asset anly when sed to the extent there i convindng evidence that the

Commpany will pay mormal Income-tax during the spocified period. In the yoar bn which the MAT oredit bocomes eligible to be rooognised s an astet, the
il wrt 1 ervalod by way of o credit o the stalement of profit and ke The Company rrvicens the same o each balanee sheet date and writes dewn the
mmﬂﬁhﬂllﬁhmulhumﬂunhuhwmﬂndﬂiﬂMwhmeﬂmwm
during the spocified

m. Earnings per share

Basle Earsings por share are calrulated by dividing the net peofit or loss for the peviod sttributable to the equity sharchalders by the welghted sweage
nmmber of ety shaves cestanding during the period. Partly paisd equity shanes are troated as fraction of eqeity sharvs ta the estent that they ans catitled
1o participate n dividends rolative 1o a fully pabd oquity shases during the reportieg period. The weighted avorage nundber of oquity shares cutstasaling
during the peried is sdjosted for events such as bonus isue, bosus ehement in a right fmwe, share split, snd reverse shane split (consolidation of shares)
that have changed tlse nusber of oquity shares cutstanding. withoot a corvesponding change in resosrted,

For the purpose of caloulsting diluted earning per share, the net profit o bees for ke period attributablo to Equity Sharebolders and the weighted sverage
namber of shares outstanding during the pevkad are sdpasted for e cffocts of all dilutive potential equity shares,

B Ind AS 116 Leases
Iod AS 156 meparsedes 1nd AS 17 Leases incloding i sppondioss. The standurd sets oot the principhes for the recognition, measerenent, presenistion snd
disclorare of heases amd requines lessons 1o necognise neost beades oa the balancs dhict.

“The Compary has adopted Iod AS 156 using the modifsad retrospective method of sioption under the transitional provistons of the Standands with the
date of Initial application on 15t Aprilaoig. Accordiegly the financial staternonts for the year ended it March, 2009 have ot boea sdjustal. The
Compaay akia eboctod to use the recognition exemptions for lkase contracts that, a1 the commencesaent date, have s lease torm of fwehe months or less
and do not contain & purchase option (Ehom=term beases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value [low-valber asets). The lmpact
ol sdoption of led AS 106 on the financlal statements of e Campany has boen docrited under Nate 36,

The Company asscsscs at contract Inception whetber 8 contract is, or containg, & Jease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the e of 2n
Identifled sosel for & period of time in exchange for considoration.

As a lessoe
The Company spplics a siegle recognition and measurement spproach for afl leases, except for sbogt-term leass and leases of Wow-valwe assets. The
Company rocognises bease labalities to male hease payuments and right-of-use assets represonting the right 10 uee the unds rlying sscts,

(1) Right-of-use nssets

The Company recogrises right-of-use assets al the commenoement date of the loase (L., the date the underlying asset is availalils for use). Right-of-cse
asscts are easaned 8t cost, boas any scoumslsted depeecisiion and impalnment lossss, and adjustol for any remeasuressent of bease labilitica. The cost of
right-ol-use ssects includes the amount of ke Habilithes rocogaiscd, instial direct costs incumred, and lease payments made st er before the
commencensat dats bes any bease incentives recelved. Right-of-use assets are deprociated oo @ stralght-ling basis over the shorter of Ube bease term and
tha estimatod usobal lives of the asrts,

1f ewenership of thee loased assct transfers to the Company st the ond of the loase term of the cost reflocts the exercise of o parchase option, depreciation is
calculatod wxing the cstimated uscful life of the asset. The right-of-use asoets are also solject 1o

(i) Lease Liabilitics

Al the commencemsent date of e lezse, the Company rocogniees bease abilities mcasared at e present value of lease paymcets 1o be made over the
lese tere. The bease paywments Incinde fived payments (incloding in substascr fiod payments) less any lease incertives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend o an index o a rate, and amousts expocted to be paid ander resideal valee gasrantoos.

T cakoalating the present vabae of loase paymsents, the Company uses its incoensental borrowing rate at the kease commencenunt date bocanse the inberest
rabe fnelicit in Uve loase Is not readily determinable. After the commenoement date, the amoust of lease lisbilities is increased 1o reflect the soeretion of
bt and redhuced for the lease paymeents made. In addilion, the canrying amount of Jeasa lishilitios i remeasmred if thero i o iedification, a change in
the hemses ferum, & change bn the lease paywats (6.4, changes to fulers payments reselting from s cleenge in an index or rate usod o determins such bease
paymonts) or & change n the asscssment of an option 1o purchuse the wnderlying aset.

Short-term bease and lease of low-value assets

The Company applies the thort-torm lease rocognition exemplion 12 its shbort-tomm beases of machinery and equipment (Le., those lomes that have a base
torm of twolve meonths o less from the commenormest date and do pot cantsin @ purchase optioal. [t albo applios the leaws of kow-value assets
rocogaition excasption 0 heases of offices, oquipment, oAt thal are of low valoe. Leass payments on short- tem keases and loases of kow-value axscls e
revogaised as exponse on a sraight-Ene basis over the bes e,
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Tha falr vabes of an st or o Rability i d sing the i mmmmmmmqhmwwm
that market particlpants 81 in their economb: best interest. A falr vahue on-finandial st takes it somant a sasket panicipant's
-bll;mwnmlnhuﬁ:h-dql}-mhhhu--dbntmwbyﬂhhu-o&umhtpmhipumummmmmI-
s highest and best use, The Company wwes vabaation techniques that ar appropriste im the droumitances and for which saificient dats are svallable to
meamere fair value, maximising the use of redevant obsenable inpets and minimising the use of unchservable bnpute.

P Employee benelits

Wmmm&mmﬂmmmm trilbution sch The Compuany has po obligetion, other than the
contribution payable o the provideat fund, The Company ik payable 1o the provident furd scheme as an expense, whon an
employes renders the relabed servdoe.

Gratulty & Leave Encashment (Unfunded): Previston for gratuity and kave encashivnt are based an actuarial valustion as on the deto of the
Balanoe Shout. The valuathon ks dore by an indepondent sctoary waing the projoctod usit erodit methed, Rensassrcments, comprising of actuarial gains
and losies, the elfoct of the st colling, excluding ameoants incleded in net interost on the mot dolined beeafin lsbility snd the retemn on plan asets ane
recoguised immediately in the balanos sheot with a corrarpondisg deblt of crodit to rotained vamsiogs theough OC1 in the period in which they eover.
Remeasaroments an not reclaisd fied to profit of ks in subsoquent periods,

Al employee beneline payable wholly within twebve months renderisg servioss are claaified as shon cimnpliyes benefite, Bonefit such s mlan
mﬁmmwmmmmlddmgﬂmﬁ“&mhmmﬁddw‘um:pﬂiodmh

“Trunsactions in forcign currencios are initially decd ey the ¥ ait el Funscti '-.“,mmnmmﬁvwmﬁmq\mﬂu
for recognithon. Memetary asts and lisbilites denominated in Forvign o es are i ] cugrency spot mbes of exchange a2 the

reposting date.
mm;ﬂmm«mﬂmﬂm#ﬂAthMwh

y ilems that are umdhﬂmhnmwmuhuhmhﬂu'hw“nm&luﬂmmhm]
tramssctions. Mo y items uﬁi“mnh@mmhﬂ]mﬁmwﬂmﬂlmﬂnhrmﬁa
wm“«h“ ol ¥ ilems o all fair value is treates] im line with the recognition of the gain or ko
o the change ln falr valus of the iem (Lo, mu&mummmmpﬂnuh—hm I Q01 o predin o loss are also
recognised in OCT or predit of b,

r. Dividend
Final diviciend on shares are recorded ax a Hability on the date of approval by the sharcholders and intecim dividends are recorded s & liability on the
dats of decluration by the Company’s Boand of Dirccbors.

&, Segmenl Reporting
Operating sepments are reported in & i witls thee l reporti il ml]ﬂtilfl'dfl‘lﬂﬂtdumrﬂwr'ﬂrmﬂ
éroctors of Askam Hotols (East ) Limited peremlly thse finaneial performance and position of the company, ssd makes sdraleric decisions.

t Inmpairmeent of non-current nssets - Ind AS 36 requir s that the comditiond that could cause o asset or & Cash Generating Unit
(OGL to b mpained and o test hiligy of 1) w“ﬂnmmmwm“mm:aﬂulk
wmmwmuuummuﬂu—uwnwmmhahmﬂm
sl volwnees or raw maberial cost. The kdentification of CGUs lnvolves judgment, il whene active markets exist, and the bevel of
Hﬂmmuhmﬂyﬁwmmmmwwwpk“hwﬂplﬂdlwhﬂhﬂwbﬂ!lu
lindiepensdent prices for the intermediate products exist, a group of plants is combined and managed 1o serve & common markel, of where circomstanies
athserwise: Indicale Imterdependencies.
I sscosdance with Ind AS 36, poodwill and certaln intangible assets are reviewed at beast annually for impairment. If a loss in valss ie indicated, ihe
ecoveralie amoust b estimabed as the higher of e OO falr valee bess cost to sell, or its velue |n use. Directly chservable market prices rarely exist for
the Connpamy’s asscts, bovnever, fir valoe may b ctimabed based ca reotat transactions on oo parable msscts, bntermal models nsed by (e Company for
wm&-mwduwuhnmm:m&hmddumﬂhum“dmhhmmm
continuad use of the asseis n s present condition, cocluding potential explodt potential,
Mﬂnhdﬁmﬁmh“mﬂmmhﬁﬂrwmnhnnmmndl.rpmﬂndfhwmp-ﬂm
markels and pricos for upgraded prodects, dewlopment ja demand, Inflation, operating cxponses and Lax aed logal systems. The Conypamy oves inborial

i i iled I deweloped over the period of three years with projections theroadter, mm&mmmmnmm
factor bo volumes or cash flows for the purpose of impairment tests, honeever, cash flws are gonecally inoreased by expoctod inflation and maclet
recorvery towards previously observed wolumes.

u. Recent aecounting pr nits Mew and ded dards ndopted by the Comp

The Company has applied the folbowing standards and anesdoents for the first time for their aneual repocting peviod commentiag Aphil 3, 2019

i} Ind AS 536 - Leases ;

1) Incoeme tax consequences in case of dividends <Ind AS 12 = Income Taoes (amendments relating 1o inoome tax consequences of dividend);

i) Acooanting for inoome tax wisen then is norrsinty over indone tax treatment of an itten by tax sethorithes -lrd AS 12 = Income Taxes (amendments
relating to uncertainty over [ncame tax troatments);

) Acoounting fior epecific b rings poat capitalisation of cosoesponding qualifyiay asset (Tad AS 23 = Borrowing Cests);
ﬂ%mmmmhwhwddﬂmwﬂdﬂlnﬁ-WFﬂmmuﬂﬁ#M
i} Accourting for plan 1 it fing inbetween the reporting periods in case of kong-ternn employos bonelin plans

mmm-mmmwm

The -mmmummwmmmmmwhwmmdeumuwnwﬂm
the current of futume perkods,




ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
CIN: LigiazsWBzoo7PLC16aT62
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT Al
New Standards or olher smen ts issued but nol

Minkstry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or smendmonts to the existing stendands. There is no such notification wiskch would be
applicable from April 1, 2020,

1.6 Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19:

Orlm|;thﬂthmmnmutmmﬂuhﬁ:wmlﬂtjummmuh
pandemic has o public health, the Indian Government has taken o series of nieasares to contain the outhreak, which included imposing muhiple “lock-
dhowns” ncroas the coantry from March 22, 2020, and extonded up to Juse 30, 2020. The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various aetivitios due 1o
COVID = ¥ pandemic have pesed challenges to the business of the Company. Lockdown guidelines izl by Central/State governments mandlyted
closure af hotel oporations and cessation of air raffie snd other forms of pablic transpon. This has resulted in low occupascies f shitdowns of our botel

thorough and veell-relicarsod safety protocols. The Company cxpocts 10 become cperational in a phased manner sfter the lockdoen islifted end the
confidence of travelers i restored. The Company expocts the domand for it services to pick up albeit at a gower pace once Jockdown b 1ifted and
nwmrinbﬁmhhmwmmmﬁnmmwmw:d]iﬂdm:mmd.mmwh
assesse] the potential impact of COVID-19 on its capital and financial resowrces, profitability, Bouidity position, supply chain and demand for its serviees.
The Company has judiciously invelued the Force Majeure clumses for reliefs during the bock down period and does not foresee any disruption in raw
material supplies. The Compary has slso asesyod the potential inpact of COVID-19 on the carrying valae of property, plant & equipment, rght-of e
asets, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, irventories, and other current assets sppearing in the fnanclal statements of the Company. In

i the assumptions and estimates relating to 1he fture uncortainties in the economic conditions bocause of this pandemse, the Company as s the
date of spproval of these Financial ststements has used internal and external sources of information and based on current estimates, cxpects 10 recovr
the carrying amounts of these assets, The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that cstimated s at v date of approvel of these
financial statements and the Compasy will continas to chely monilar any material changes 1o future economic conditions,

2. Koy Accounting Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requinos the masagement to make judgements, estimates ind ssumptioas that affect the reporied

amurits of nevenoes, expenses, aosets and lisbilithes, and the scoompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent abiities. Uncertainty about

I;:‘nnwmmm“ld resilt kn oulcosnes that require a material adjastowent to the carmying amount of sesettor Habilites affected in
periods,

The key assumptions concerning the future and ather key soarces of estimate uncertainty at the roporting date, that have a sigaificant risk of causing a

enaterial adjustment to the canrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year, aro described below:

a. Income taxes

Defermed tax asncts pne revognined for unized tax boses /MAT carry forvwand 1o the extent b posaible that taxalble profis will be svailable against which the

boacs can b whilized, Significant management judgement is roguired to determing the smount of deferred tax smets that can be recognined, baved vpon

the likedy timéng apd thee bevel of fatire taxabile profits Logether with foture tax plarning strateghes Incleding amount expocted 1o be pail f rectvored for

ancerinin tay positians.

b, Property, Flant and Equipment and Useful Life of PPE and Intangible Asscts

Froperty, Plant and Equipment ropresont a sigaificant proportion of the assct base of the Company. The charge in respoct of periodic deprecation is
derived after determining sn estimate of an suset’s expocted wseful life and the expectod resideal valne st the end of its life. The wseful lves and residual
valoe of Companys’ sssels are determined by the management at the time the nsset is soguired and reviewed porsodically, including at cach fiasncial year
end. The life based on historical experience with similar msets us vell s anthcipation of futare events, which may impact their life, such as chaages in
technical or commercial ohsolescence arksing from changes or improvements i production or firom a change in market demand of the products or servie
el put of the asset.

Post-coployment becefits represents abligation that will be settled In future and magubre sssmptions 1o project benefit obligations. Post- emplayment
bonefit acoounting is intended to refloct the recognition of futare benefit cost aver the emplayoe’s approximate service period, based on the terms of plans
and the investment and funding decisions made. The sccounting require the Company to imake ssumptions regarding variablos such as dissount e,
rutes of as ot aned for the year ended March 31, 2020,

d. Fair valoe measurement of Financlal Instruments
When the fair valuts of financisl asets and financial labilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measared based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair vahse is measured using valuation techniques, inchuding the discounted cash flow model, which involve various jedgements and

e. Provisions and Contingencles

Legal proceedings covering a range of mstiers aro pending sgainst the Company. Due to the uncertainty inberent in such matters, it is often diffsealt to
prodict the final outcomes. The cases and clalms againe the Compary often nise difficult aed complex factual and lega] bues that are sulsject to many
encertaintios and complexitios, inclnding but not limited to the facts and ciromstances of each particular caso and elalen, the jurisdiction and the
differences in applicable law, in the normal course of business, The Company consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related 1o
lotogations. The Company scorues a Rability when it is determined that an sdverse cutcome ks probabile ard the amount of the loss can be reasonally
extimnated. In the event an sdverse cutooma is possible o an estimate ks not determinable, the matter is disdlosed.
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Cratebed, fally pald up
Investonent carried at FVTPL (Held for Trading)

mnlmmwm}mmmﬁﬂhuﬂmmm

Bajj Finance Lihed (FV Ra 3} uip 0030
Bandhan Bask 124 B - HRoTs
Burnt Hsryas Lod n L]
Crenlin fvoras Grarsees Ld g B.0ba
DHFM Food L4 (FV R ) L] b~
Dicn Technologho [ Isdis ) Lid 0 SRor
Gl Propertion Lid (FV Ra g) né 0T
HDFC Asset Masagemest Compaay Led (FY R 1) ey I
HDFC Raak Lad (FV Ra i) ] FLC R H]
FCRCT Bank Lad (FV B 2) L33 AN
[eko Edge India 124 a2 b
Erca Leiwase Lad £ ] sk
LAS Fimarcis] Services Ld g b
Tits Cowmmets Products Lid (FV Ra i) 343 = EOLEM
TDPewerSptemaid 1572 W73 .
Trest Lad (FV Rs 1) L3 Prey
Ugiivan Finsncial Services Lad m - Abats
United Spirias Lad (FV Ra 2} 589 iAo
WIF [sadustrles Lod (FV B3 2) 450 s OOk
3863590 =
Quoted, fully paid up
Imvestmient carvied st FYTPL (Held for Trading)
Imvestment bn unkis of mutasl funds [Face value (V) of Ba 16 each, unbeis sthorslio stated]
Franklia fndia Ulbrs Shoet Bond Pend-31F-DDR s 478 . Anbacs
mmmmwm i — - o
Adinra Bisla Saalife Flurd T Flas- Series QH (1803
Aays)- Rgulad Gromth Bafgasa LR R B Bao8g.hx2 LR
?ﬂmﬁdﬁmﬂtﬁm-mm-mm oy P 0407099 P
mh e e 1407 1nodada PYEE TR Fien T AR
UTT Trewmary Advantiage Fund -Inpti.-Flan-Daily = i
Dividond Reiarvostment (F¥ s s000]) S04 Bt
mmmmmmmw-; L4 . e
ICHCT Prudential Savings Pand-Geowsh (FV R 100) (L] . —_— Taum
— GO PO RS
Ievestrsent carried st FYTFL {Hebd for Tisling)
Tavestincnt in Baeds of Indias Raways Finasclal Cosporation Lisiud
50000 [pravioms yoar: 150,000) B335 1a e bonds of K 1000 -sech- FMV & on 31/ 3000 K RSO0
Investiment carried st FYTOCT (Held for Trading)
Twvestrmendt in equlcy thares. of Aadam Diotels (West) Limired
524408 [previous year: 534.4348) equity shares of Ra 10/~ each a0y pald up [ rE T
—— ey B z
—LagmEey  Gga RGO
Agingate asrunt of quoted ifnitments [OERLY LN &40,BR6,317
Aggrigate sasunt of unquitd lrveitments A i
Aggrrgate amiaal of sl o btk i vadus of i . 5
Bigke f0: The O b thie basinois of dealing im Soourfties with effost from w1 July 20 assd a3 o resalt the Investments n below mentioned

ln-ihi haree been ehaiudiend tn-l-rmpudu!-hll For Tradlmg purposes:

{0 Rsvvr et okl i Wituia] Pty ] Lack e biands harve Toen conveertied ot Steck in Trade and hae thrsefoor oo clainifSind as Hebd For Tradiog parposes aadea
Curpent barvestamscnti. With offinct Srom the said date, the Falr Viloe of evstual fords and boods e recogaized tuoagh Profit & Lo sccsuct.

{5 The Imvstrarnt i Quetnd Faaity shases have abio bogm eonveitod into Suek 1n Trade sed see thevefoe dlosifbod as suwrts beld fe trading parpoios under st
Rervestuets, Wich effect (rom the sald date, o queoted sheres. are recogaised st Fale valler throagh Profit & Lons Anvosnt, except equily sharcs hekd In Askes 10etels
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Ak 300y FOEG A Wl 1000005
Kt Baarts
0,000,000 Eqalty shares of s 10/~ ench LD 0D e
1,000,000 Freference shares of R w0/ each [N B e 00
Busesrd, upbarriod & paid ap.
Tu:tr.mmw:ﬂn 37} Eaelty Shares of R 50/- cuch —_— TR NRTTREN
—_—tree NI,

Revoncillation of the shares sutstanding at the beginning and st the end of Use reparting yrar
Shares

A e begunning of the yess 5T ST
Rumprsd during the yrar -

Cassolind dhorisg Use yrar = L
M1t ened of thoe prar —_— ST CLFARTNT
Ternis/rights antached 10 Equity Shares

Thee Ciempaay s ondy oo clana of expaity shares having a par valos of K 5o pev dhape. Mhﬂ-dw abaaren b entiEled B3 dre virte peraluaie.

B the wvens of liguilaticn of the Company, the bobders of suily shato will be entitled brinaiotg uerts of the Comgany, alter dutr dall

ke, The distriation wil] be in mumm-rmnm B By the abssrledebeie,

Mo ity Shirrs v Lem proovord or inane andier eptiou and ot i ot U ade of 31 s hat i Balanoe Sheet date.

T sy b b aBobond sary oqaisy shanns lor condoration odher thaa canh mcf bas bosnd sy besun iboee i b boaght batk sy shazes daring the paviod
ol five years paveveding he date sl witich Balance Soot s prepared.

Mo secutisies which are coarmrtlide into Equiry/Preferance shares have boen bssued by e Compiny during the yoar,

Mo calls wre wagalkd by sy diveotn or offionm of the compaay during the yeer.

Drotails of sharshobders Holding more than 3% shares Inthe Company

At

Eqquily shares A Bl 033080 As gl 3030080 A el 35005019

Surad Dduatries Limited ETr LN 3430,

v Bopumn Sarad g% LGN RE AT L LR T
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ASIAN NOTELS (EAST) LIMITED

CIX: LaguzsWEsooTFLCiba 03
ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND POR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 900
15. BORROWINGS Amaups bn R
A pionwono  hasxprensy
Crverdraft Atvount with IDE] Rask Liscked® = 0. TH0. 580
- o geade
* Tha Company sualntal fraft socount ased b secured against fived deposits. The Inlerest rate on Ovendrafl Ascoont s 8.25%
16 TRADE PAYARLES
Amwint i Bq
(ST
Particulars As st 105 a070  _AS 8ELOR3009
Trade puyables (Refes Nide Fio 38 for Belailt of dhaes of Fuere b penall eatorprised) 6330, 186 54 e,
ST T T
Classification as required by MEME Act
Total Outstasding duew of Micro Enterprisey s Senll Eatery Li43.850 ShL
Tetal Quistnssding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enberprises and Small Enterprises &% __ShrenaRa
Tiotal Truche Poywislon [CETETN FE R

* Dnctadlls of dwea 3o Miceo Entorprises ased Sausl] Enbevparins as deflined under Micro, Sxall & Medium Erterpeises Dovdkopment Act, 2006 [MEME Act) sre bused on
inforeustion mads sailable 1o the Comparny. Melther was theee sy delay s payiment nor ks any Inberest dae and resnaining unpakl on the sbeve.

17 OTHER FISANCIAL LIABLITIES Ameount ba Bs_
Noo-Current
Partboulars As al 10200 As B 3100200
Security depist 1538000
T LEER000
Amouni b R
Lurrent
Particulars As gt ynog.aoin _AS ab3io0.anng
Salary payable [T P0T7383
Contract Paywoll 4744505 Btosty
Unschairmed dividends (Refer Note Ko 48) 2.885,469 43S
Eapenica 28,05 B S3,TI3.050
18, PROVISIONS Aot b Rs
Nnn-ml
Particulars - As b Jrog.eonn As Bl J1Laeg
Vroviskon for gratoiy (Reter Jote Fa 31) 1LASTbT [FETYETT
Prowvision lor leave benefits (Refer Note Ha 31) = R4
T XL Lo GHOTI
Anward i Bs
Currenk
Maurteskoses, ARSI 35008090 ANALLORAR)
mﬁm:mmm:n [ TS5
Proviskon for leave benefits (Refor Note Mo 31) 2735008 103,008
T 1 —
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES Aracerwd i Ks
2. DEFER BILTTIES T L
i P .
Tix Liabilitics
On fiscal allowances of foed assets AT HABLR YT
On Falr vader gain oo current investments 1300567 R T
130, TH0N04 LN
Deferred Tax Assets
Om Emplerres” separation and retinement ete. LE ek S lle
O Provision for doabtful debts | advances Sh1z95 435ath
On Provision for VAT TOATEAT TRL40E
O Provishos lor Servioe Tax and Othes Tux 1B g pEECH
O Other Differencns Spbaaz =
MAT Crodit Entitiement (Refer Note Mo 47) <
31,088,747 ﬁ%
33647657 ZaBg

Mote 191 As amatterof prodence so deferred L aaset has been creatod on loog Yorm capitad loss. Similarly, defierned tax Kabdlity has rot beem taken oo the contalised
oot Hewom cupital gadm 80 Uhe exsomt of boweg berm capital bona carried Forward in the books,
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Partiguilsrs
T eyre—

Statubary duss
Advusars ot sade of levestraoal) peoperty [Redor Note Ko 43}

__._ma__tm
T T Y N
AL ESVIBRH FROM DIFERATIONS Amspntia ks
Partcalars Year Ended Yoar Ended
ke of prodks m EEO5TIE
Sala of wervicns S S— LT
—LATREIO . LO3gqupioe
St gt e bt Uhat dimggrrgation of Ui Company's revwrned fnem eprrationd:
Fale of products
Eeverapes, wines el ligace FROTIINC o
Feecad i et Lt ITE
SR E
Hale of services
Hiorma O ARy Al
Bargaat [roome {oely rentsl portaon) Lo ESLE 18 B TOR M
ealsh de figa FLABDOTY hTLE
Lausdny & Dey Cleasing PTG g8
Servidw Charpe Tangsa L5 R
Muto Brntal 44Ty A0S
Commupietion L] AL
sy exprrating evenge _al:?m:f% — et
$1ArE0L
—fhsagar _ OARAST

“lﬂ mdﬂl erwwasey sl cank Comn are affected by dedaitsy, masiet sad wher eoosomat Devas.

o o e Rypee o oo oF servioes peovided 10 Use pautuwers. The Company believe that Dais dRaagrrrgation bedd dphits b the Baene, issaal,

Ja. OTHER INCOME e Amound bs By
Faciicsders Yeur Ended TearEnded
st Marchaogn  xsibarch 391
Totorest Tncomnt from LRFUL Botd OTII 135000
Tetrest Dncost from Leasd & Advasced e ] [EE ]
Entutest Lescoass from Fusnd Deposits LI TAMLAN
Baterent o Desootrat Ton Refund RS 0 LY
Duvidond LTS 140
Fuir valicer chierged G Garratment mnadurnd af fair value
thawagh proft and boes serant s TR
Profit o Sal of Motua) Pend Jobq1n o
Feevishons! Liabiities written hack BT 28 4emiod
MidctlhLeenid i -
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ASIAN HOTELS {EAST) LIMITED
CIN: Lisusa WBaooTPLC16aThs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED BUARCH 31, 2020
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23, CONSUMPFTION OF PROVISIONS, BEVERAGES, EMOKES & 0THERS Anwant in Rs
Particulars Year Eniled Year Endes)
1
Opening Stock £2, 6 3162 1,384,368
A : Parchuies 1385 o 1oty Ly
Lews ; Closlig Stock oo g
L 12, Bib
Total Consumption of Provisions, Beverages, Smokes & Others vk b 1y 126657268
4. EMPLOYEE HENIFIT EXPENSES Aenount in fs
Particulars Year Ended
Salarics, wages & bonu 15,390,535 W34 8
Contribation bo provident & other funds K ASTSS R b ]
Saall wolfar expenses BBy ik 26,680,068
— 210,638,603 308314084
25 OTIER EXPERSES Al in Ks
Particolars Year Ended Year Endled
Cemtrart labowr sod service A4TTA 5238307
Room, catering & other mpplles A0,500.44 44011410
Linen & operating oguipemeonts consumption BabnTas i E 8, 88T
Pual, power & light hiis, 604 102 801,459
maisienance & referbishing 41,809,083 S440LIE
Satellite & bebevision charges 1,018 876 1,707,084
Retit 18,338,776 18328, 776
Rates i taves 11,824,955 E08f 050
Insureecs 3068555 LTI0 445
Directoes’ sitting fees LA40, 000 1,243,000
Laegad & professlonal expenset 20,350,808 1,043,300
Payment o audilon: - -
= As Aupditor B0,000 FOO000
= Por Taox Audit 150,000 150,000
« For Certifbcation 65,000 20,000
= For Other Services B3, Eg0 30,250
Printing & stationery 1,637 B0 2,350,704
Cheit tramsportation 1,060,208 IBA0004
Travelling & conveyanie WLOTLE4T 14,338,705
expenis 4050502 2864200
Tiechnical servioes 50,338,027 37.880,205
Advertisement & pablicity 25.546.253 2h,044,560
Commission & brokerage 3daTrabo BTG
CER expendifure 400,000 2,500,000
Charity & donation AR -
Bank changes and compalasbon A1L06E 304,043
Prowision for bad & doubtfial debts 2,487,583 1350857
Loss on Sabe of Equity Shares 167058 .
Loss om Sale of Mutual Fusds Efo407 -
Bet loas o forcign exchange 533,100 545
PPE written off 70,855 gl 428
Lo om sade oif FFE 2068.549 6549
Miscellansous expeases 4810084 2045718
— 432,033,601 08643061
2. TAX EXFENSE Asnnrnl i Re
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
Currcat Tax (bnchuding carbier yewrs) 47aTIALS ST A4
Dieferred Tax {x2,000,580) (10, 788.450)
MAT L R
Imeome Tax Expense — FhEEpoqe 66,600,674
Prodit before incosne tax F2AD4F3T 244 500510
Enscted Tax rates i India 25178 902%
Compated expectod tax expesnes 55723391 060,405
Effect of non deductible expenses (a3.739.652) P57
Edfect of exempt noa operating lscome (1.802.008) {8.577.588)
Effoct of sther ibems not subjoct of tax (4,863,813) (7.594.158)
MAT 50,881,005 {nrb3.517)
Tax for earlier yoans 58417 620,558
Total T ghagmoqo _ ebtanbny
EARMINGS PER SHARE & D0 . Amousst in Rz
Particulars Year Enaled Year Eualed
47 Prol avaliable for Equity Sarchoklers 136,696,309 177 Bob. o7
(i) Welghted average surmber of Equity Shares & Rs 10 cach NEINTT AT
(i} Exrnings,{Loss) pes share (Rs) 1203 1542



ASTAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED

CIN LigimaWEseoTFLCiSarha
mﬁm FINANCIAL STATEMENTHE A% AT AND FUOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, aoaa
=8, INSTRUMENTS
Financlal lnserunsemts by calegary
Tha caivyiog vabar and Lo vabor of Geanclal instroments by cabngorkes s oo Barch 11, 2020 are s ol
Amaredin Bx
Fartheulans Amortised Coat Falr Vabue Falr Value through  Tetal Carrying Totsl Fair Value
Asde el
Tnveitmarnts
I Eapaisy Shares 2 ABE00 LR 153328430 AT
Im Preferene ibares = = - - -
Ir Tux Fros Bossks + RIS o 153.3340,000 19340000
1a Mubasd Punds . SAL0AL3 o A3 509441
Lowcs AA5E5RI0 = = 08 SAREsIRL
Caaly B Cash equivabents e . - 16595345 W
Ok bk balances QO - - ALO0TTE5E e
Trade Receivalin * - s o ARy
Ocbier Fanancial Asieta ITAETD - - TMAETO TSI
Towd —EgrgE Gy TELJEIORY | pbgGp MYt V063506500 N FI6 500
Linkikities:
Botrrwlags - - - - .
Traht Fayaliles LR - ] 04084 LT
Ochr Finaacial Lisbsliters LOSTLOY = - s SN
Tord T - C ngmbaza  geesave
Tha carvylag vl el lale wabue of Reunclal traments by catopocion o on Manck 33, 30t acw s follow:
Aol (3 Ba
Falr Vabae Fair Vabue tlrough  Total Carrying
Particulars
Amoriised Coal e i P, o1 Val Total Falr Vialue
Assets
Investamarats.
I Equity Shares . iy ona78 v donid My boaar8
Ta Fredpheate shaped fanyrgoda . - T ) LI ]
16 Tacx Firee Boms 150,600,000 - - L0, Eetr0, 000 150,600,000
in Mubsal Fuzds - g0, 888007 o0 Bdb 17 8B4
Lowra 2SS B - - gt Bl e L R
Orsor banlk blanons Bt - - asBabin AsBabbm
Cash & Cask equivabents 0,142,508 . Pt 2044258
Trwde Reveivabies 8585300 - SAsisa00 [2.X4 1217
Ottvee Fisinelal Axorts 0T . 059267 J01RIT
Total —A57aBube) _ GpoBSLNT _ WMaG0878 _ GARLOTONND _ SAROTONN
Liabilitkes:
Bexronings 10730380 ) = 071080 10peske
Trade Payalles SR - - sL5LTE AL
Ochee Financial Lisbilites T kTS . » TIAMATS TTERLATS
Totsl — LR ETBH £ R Y X BT LT
Falr valus klerarchy
m-su--;l—n--u-n-lmmhmmuwﬂmumumw-muu-ammmmn
whthel far valu Fﬁ-m—hﬂudhhﬂ-ﬁhmhummm“m

s esaarrial bt mstn it the Usiwe bovels praseribod under soovaiog itanden by As explasation of each kvl follern oademesth e table
Huﬂmwmmw“mum--mmw.—unimmmmumnh
AL

Level 31 mmmm&mﬂmanHhmﬂwwwuﬁ*hm obacrvabie, The
fidr wakor la caloulated mibng ther bl A G e of (el knari o

w;mmmm-ﬁumumwm-mwnm—uu

The table tair of asiets wrd Batslois, Lo wadhse woR
Parthoul Val Fakr valus mrssuarensnt
Fale vel i _ Levelsn Lewel 3

Ansats

Iavestenests.

I Equity Srme (LR FEN [ERE ]
1n Preferente whares - s =

I Ticx e beovacks VA0 HILI0.000 =
In Mutsal Fands 4054440 54 .
Lowns 445559,105 a = IS
Do btk baduseces. Jgenried = - eI
Canh & Cash equivalests MBS = - 1955349
Trale Heceivabies FLT e T - = 45pai0n
Otber Ficanciad Aasets FrHLe = = TIMAT
Tetal BT E L I T LT : Bl gatags
Liabilities:

Barmings = . =
Trade payabios - . 1304186
Ouber finsesial halslines = ke L0.434.036

= & ] tEE]




Level 5

[t ST
AbbEL LAY
Ouder busk balances ALBat AT - - 4LBIELTY
Caak b radly eulvatents 0147508 - - o430
Trada 68585 uie = [
Crthar financlal adiets EIL T - B0,
Total _EARROTO.NN) _ BTRARB05 _ 1GO0onoid  4fIaBhidy
Liabikities:
Beonromiags 0TR0A80 - B W0730.360
Trada payables AT - - S50
Otherr financial labilitie. TRAMATS THEMLETS
Toud YT = 2 142677 HyH
The rurrying smount of b snd cash equivalents, oty bank balantes, trade recebeabies, loans, other financial axsets, Borrewlags, trade payabl and ather financial
Hakalitled agw oonsideted %0 be the vame as shebr far valug ¢ o Uhelr shor term nasure and are choss sgpramimation of faie vabe,
Thop Comspatry'il Envestoment In Use aquity shares of [ pabuddiacion bn peciguised at cost.
5, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Flnanclal risk fectors
Thse Cistspuny’s sctivithes expose it 10 o varkety of Beancisl rilo : market risk, Boukdity risk and crnd risk.
Misrket risk
muummmmwhmwm-mmm-dq-hpuﬂmm-whw—uumdhmmd
Exancisl instraments. The objsctive of mariort risk Esansgrenent s 1o manuge sod control maret risk witkia [ citern, wwhile sptioniaag dhve retum.
. Foreign Currency risk
mMkuhﬁ-mm“' h ‘ 1 lhoe ervioes avalied In various frvign curiencies. Tha
wﬂdmmmuﬂd“ﬂ“hu&HmuMth
“Thie following table snalyses foreign oy risk from feancisl netrameents s of 115t March 2020 aad gun March 2005
gutMarch soz0  yut March2oiy
Partboul Ausimund b B3 Al o Bs
ek payables (URDcomversed 1o INR) 1ERO5TE 150,063
Pon tha year ended 31t March 2020 asd Jast March mﬂdemrﬁWhhMm“mnﬂnmd
Effect on Profit before Tax
Change In UST Rate st Macchsozo 3wl March 2010
Appeeciation in Exchange Ratr % (158,058) [ugat7}
Deproclation in Eachange Rate % 15058 1y
b) Geibver Market Frice Riaks

Thor Comagaary’s exposant 10 exuity secaritios (aice risk arkses from investments hebd by tse Cosspany snd clasfind b the halance ghort o Lasir vadoe thivmgh Other

oo e Fai vadue tirough profis/oss, Il e equity prices of qooted |nvestments are 1% highor| kewor, e Other Comprchensive Incoane for Vs yoar
semadod Blarch 3, 2020 would inervase) dboroase by B 14,040,548 [for e yoar endod March 32, ﬂmwﬁw by Hs 18 g hiraa) amd purolit o boss fon the year
el Blarsl 31, 2000 woukl incrrase/ docresse by B 70,0485 (S the year ended March 31, 2099: deonrase by Rs fo08 R

Licaldity risk
‘Liqubdity Fisk b the rlalk that the Company will exooenter dilficulty bn mceting its obligath Jated with it fanancial Habdtinies.

The Coezpuny’s peinciple sourre of lqubdity are cash and cashy equivalent, cush (o from oparaticns asd investestot in mutaal fands. The Cosiguny has eo catanding
mm-nmm“mmuﬂ-umwhumumhmmw o bagaleiiy rink b peeotiend.

The tabls bedew provides detuils rogarding the contractund matusitees of fmassial Habilithes ad of March 38, 30900

Asount in By
Partioutars o3 Momths 3 Mbomths- 1 3r 13 yoars £-30 years Tatsl
Bormewings - = = * =
Trate payables " 1304084
Dther linancial latelities - GRS




ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED

CIN: LasizeWBaooTPLC1GaTEa
NOTES TOTHE nll'ufn_mu.l.ﬂmm AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 3030
[ detalls the maturithes of fnancial liabiities as of March 31, 2010

Amount (n Ks
Partienl 0-3 Months 3 Months- 1 yr 15 yoars f-20 years Total
Borrowings 10,730.350 - . - 10,730,380
Tradde payables 4,855,793 - - - 34652793
Okt Financlal Liablitles 2,024,525 55,270,050 = 2 TTEETS
Credit Risk

Credit riak s the risk that counber party will nol meet its obligation under s financial instrument beacing o a financial boss. The company is exposed to credit risk from
Imvestreaents, trade receivables, cash and cush equivalents, boana and other Arancial seets.
The Company's credit risk is minlmised a1 the Company’s financial assets are carefully allocated to countes partles reflecting the credit wonhiness.

“The maximam osposure of finsneial apset 1o coodit risk are 8 follows ¢ Amount in fis
Particulars st March 2020 3ist March 2ot
Inweatzminte 6624.070.122 4545304279
“Trade Recelvables 45,548,014 G8sls asg
Loans 445.659,105 3.646.633.560
Cber financial assets 27744570 31,009,267

Credit risk on Investments pritarly inchode iavestmvests in liquid matual find units, qosted bonds and lavestment in subsldlaries. Loans are provided to subsidiary and
are I the natare of shor term as the same is repayable on demand.

Risk towards Global Pandemic COVID-19

Pinancial instramenit casied st fair value s al Manch 30, 2020 s Rs 91,12,47,854 and financlal instroments carried at amoetisod cost as a2 March 31, 2020 Bs
a&wnmmmﬂmmnummmnmﬂ:mMnhdnmm?mﬂumnmﬂ-ﬂ:mmmmmh
enasked o an sctive market which factors the uncertainties arising oul of COVID-19. The financlal assets carvied] at fairvaloe by the Company an malely i in
aﬂ!rhnﬂlﬁﬂﬂ-mwmmmdmm;mmmmnmdﬂMHuumi:a.m-diqﬂddch
securities whercin no maborial volstilin b expectnd.

Trade reccivalbies of Ra 4.50,48,004 as ot March 51, 2020 forms o significant part of the financial nssets carriod sl amostised cost. "The Dobidon do net kave any concemtratod
riak azd the Company docs expect Lo reoovor tuse outstanding in due course. Purther, adequate crolit loss provision has beon ersated hased on the poficy of the Compazy,
1'Inlhnplwhuq-adlu.ly-MlhmﬂmmuﬂpﬁlhmhmanﬂpmwMMMumw-m

the outstandiag i ot sigrificant. Purther, we expoct that there coubd be some delay in payments froem deblors, over and above the crodit cycle. Basks our inermal
kil bl he Fmﬂulqpolqi'ﬂuw.lhmmﬁulhﬂwmlwwmuﬂﬂﬂdﬁhmm?ﬂl March

30, CAPITAL MANANGEMENT

For the parpose of massglag capital, Capital inchodes kiswed equity share capital and reserves attributable to the equity holders.
The objective of the comjuny's capital manapement are to:

- Safeguard thelr skélity o continue as poing concern 80 that they can continge 1o provide benefits to their shareholdecs.

- Muxirdzation the wealth of the shareholder.

= Maistakn optimum capital stracture to reduce the cost of the capital.

mmwhﬂmmmd@mhﬂﬁﬂmhmmﬂwhWﬂmh In erder fo paaintal
wlﬁmmwmmmwmdjﬂhdhﬁedmhmrnmnﬂphdhﬁmhumwi_wm.Thmmm
Wuhu;m{undn\.vd:id:!.:MMMhmmﬂummmwm%hmmhﬂuﬂwW.hmﬁMuﬂ
equivalents,

Grewrisg Ratio in 03 follones © Aswgunt in Rx
Particulars sl SO0 16t March 200

et debe - 30730380
Total et Debt asud Exquity LR a7 B4
Gaaring Ratio 0.00% o.12%

I oeder to schleve this everall objective, the Company's capital managensent, amongst other things, alms to ensuse that it meets financial covepants attached 1o the lpars
‘arsd borrowiegs that define capital structure requisements, There have boen 0o beeachios bn the financial covenants of any loans and bosrowlng in the corrent pesiod.

WWMMHMMMwthWIMquﬂnm:lHmhmmdalumhm:g.

111



ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
CIN No. - L15122WB2007P1L.C162762

Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st

March 2020

g1. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:-

a)  Defined contribution plans

i. Provident fund

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized a5 expense for the year is as under:-

Particulars

a1March zoz0

31 March 2019

“Employer's Contribution 1o Provident Fund

7351014

04,89,243

Emplover's Contribution to Pension Scheme

331827

3348400

b) Defined benefit plans

i Contribution to Gratuity lund
il. Compensated absences Eamed leave

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, Employee Benefits, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the
aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions: -

Economic Assumptions
The discount rate and salary increases assumed are key financial assumptions and should be considered together; it is the
difference or ‘gap’ belween these rates which is more important than the individual rates in solation.

Discount Rate
The discounting rate is based on the gross redemption yield on medium to long-term risk free investments. For the
current valuation a discount rate of 6.92 % p.a. compound, has been used.

Salary Escalation Rate

The salary escalation rate usually consists of at least three components, vie, Regular inerements, price inflation and
promotional increases. In addition to this any commitments by the management regarding futune salary increases and
the Company’s philosophy towards employee remuneration are also 1o be taken into noconnt. Agnin a long- term view as
to the trend in salary increase rates has to be taken rather than be guided by the escalation rates experienced in the
immediate past, if they have been influenced by unusual factors.

i. Change in Benefit Obligations:
__G%!;G@_m;l_
Particulars 219t M g1 March
2020 20010
Present value of obligations as at the beginning of the 2,11,80,457 | 1,88,53,457
| year :
Current service cost 2853004 | 2718.340
Interest cost 1,622,423 | 1
Benefit Paid (3.438.120) (17.34.084) |
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 345793 | (1,27,826) |
Present value of obligations as at the yearend | 22,563,647 | 2,11,80.457 |
| 7685574 |

Current liability 9,076,030 [

Non-Current liability 13,487,007 1,34,94,883
 Total 22 |__2,11,80.457 |




HOTE A LIMITED

CIN No. — L15122WB2007PLC162762
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

il. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

}_Gﬂmiur{l'.l'nhmd\!d}
Particulurs 31" March | g1 March

2020 2019
Current Service Cost 2,853,004 27,18,340
Interest Cost 1,622,423 14,70,570
Actuarial (Gain) / loss recognized during the year P =
Expenses recognised in Stalement of Profit and Loss

44,75.517 41,88,910

iii. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT):

Gratulty (Unfunded)
Particulars g1 March | 31 March
2020 2019
Actuarial Gain / (loss) recognized during the year (345793 | 1,27.826
iv. Principal Actunrinl Assumplions :
Particulars Refer Note Below | Year ended 31.03.2020 | Year ended 31.03.2019
Discount rate (pa.) 1 692 % 7.66%
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 2 6.00 % 6.00%
1
v. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan
1-March -20
Particulars g1-March -20
Future Salary
Discount Rate
Sensitivily Level 0.5% 0.5%
TR 0.5% 0.5%
: Increase Decrease
Tipact on defined Benefit obligation (317,216) | 331470 | 332,800 | (321,385
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:
Lenve
= F1-March -19
Particulars s1-March 19
Discount Rate ko
Sensitivity Level 0.5% 0.5% "
5% 0.5%
Increase Decrease I D
Impact on defined Eenclit obligation (3.31.337) 346,052 349,016 | (3.37.978)




ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED

CIN No.— L15122WB2007PL
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2020

2762

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Farticulars Grathuity
31 March 2020
a) | olo1Vear 9,076,030
3] 110 2 Year 1,645,722
€} | 2to3 Year 1,836,800
d) |3toq vear 5,111,196
e) | 4105 tear 782,643
f 5o 6 Year 507,928
h) 6 Year Onwards 3,603,328
Motes:

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as al the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of obligations.
2. The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considesed in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, senbority,
promeotion and other relevant fuctors including supply and demand in the employment market.
3. The gratuity plan and earned leave is unfunded.

Demographic assumptions:

a. Retirement age: 58 years
: Published rates under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM) Ultimate table

b. Mortality rate

32. C.LF, Value of Imports :

Particulars a1 March 2020 | 31% March 2019
Stores & Spares - 568,602
Capital Goods 2419493 14,04,073
Total 24,19,493 10,72,765
Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on payment basis)

Farticulars 31 March 31" March 2019

2020

Commission & Brokerge 91,33,793 1,65,43 888
Technical Services £2,11,601 £4.57.392
Advertisement & Publicity 1,33.38.947 1,26,16,367
| Recruitment & Training 8,15,404 9,89,155
Others 1,05,67.107 1,27,86,181
Total 3,90,60,852 4,83,02,083

34. Earnings in Foreign Currency (on receipt basis)- Rs 14,60,71,054 (Previous Year: Rs 18,25,.25,199)
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ASIAN HOTE

A |

INN 5122 TPLC162762
Notes to Finapcial Statements lor the year ended 31st March 2020

35. The Company has paid dividend in respect of shares beld by Non-Residents. The total amount remitted in this respect is

given herein below:-
Particulars 31% March 2020 | 31" March 2010 |
Kumber of Non Resident Shareholders 454 472
Fumber of Equily Shares held by Mon Reskdent Sharcholders 77,568,044 708,082
Amount of Dividend Pasd 1,93,96,622 1.94,20,205
Year 1o which Dividend Relates 2018-2019 2017-2018
36. Leases:

The Company has entered into Operatiag lease agreensents for lelting cut space. The lease agreements are made for specific
period as per agreement. Lease payments reccived recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended

amounted to s 18,08.067/-
The fature receipts for operating lease are as follows:

Particulars 31% March 1% March
2020 2019
Mot Later than 1 year 13.64,910 22,581,230
Later than one year and not Later than five years 17,00,490 4%,20,050
Later than five years - =

Since, the lease s an operating lease and not a finance leasge, the Company is duly accounting the rental income in their
books as per the requirements of [ed AS 106 which says that the lease rental in case of an operating lease shoald be recorded
in a systematic manner over the period of the lease term.

The Company has entered into leave & license agreement for premises, The lease agreements are made for specific period as
per agreement. Lease payments paid are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loas for the year ended ansounted to Rs

180,00,000/-.
The future Payments for operating lease are as follows:
Particulars
ot Later than 1 year - 30,00,000

Later than one year and not later than five years = =
Later than five years = -

41* March 2020 | 31 March 2019

::gm}rhuwmhmmeluumd license agresment w.e.f 3150 March 2020 and hence, there will not be impact
d“wl

37. The operating scgments (Ind AS 108) of the Company are as follows:
a) Hotel Business (East): The hotel Business (East) includes namely the operating hotel “Hyatt Regency” in Kolkata.
b) Investments including investments in Hotel (Soath): It consists of (i) Secarities Trading Unit & (if) Strategic Investment Unit.

Securities Trading Unit comprising of treasury/liquid investments which are being regularly traded, bonds, mutual funds, and

shares of certain companies (Refer Note No 5A & Note No 5B)

Strategic Investment Unit includes the loan & investment in its wholly owned subsidiary (Robust Hotels P, Ltd) having an
operating hotel namely Hyatt Regency, Chennai and the loans and Investment in its wholly owned subsidiary (G5 Hotels Lid.)
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for exploring business opportunities in Hotel in Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

(Refer Note No sA & HNote No

58]
ASIAN HOTELS ( EAST ) LTD
BEGD OFFICE: HYATT REGENCY KOLKATA, JA -1, SECTOR 111, SALT LAKE CITY, KOLKATA-700 038
CIN No. - LIS1ZYWHIMTPLC162T62
e STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER & YEAR ENDED 3]st MARCEH 2020
{Rs hl.iﬂ.lfu'_ﬂﬁﬁu-udﬂﬂmuﬂgﬂ
Quarter Ended Year Ended
Farticulars 31032020 L1200 31.00.2019 31032020 Alod2ele
Amdlited Cnandited Audited Audited Audited
1 [Segment
Fevenus from
Hoted Brness 7782 233152 25842 EFIEE 1034425
Ievestinets wehatng in Hotel (Socsh) . - - . -
[ Total { A) FETET) 183353 192428 .21027] 1034425
Oibiar Incane
Drintis 012 456 291 Fir¥i] Tl
L steends iwestments in Hatel 18909 163,13 199.15 1077 684,61
|Other Unaiocable Income = 13.26 - 10440 5070
|Total (B) 251 142,05 20726 39764 1,026.58 |
Tolal Ravesue [A+B) 250774 2,774.57 315154 | 1000781 1137123
2 Fum;mn
Bnanesy 43478 3887 1959 135815 145,74
Iave sttt fvestments in Hotel 35214 15261 195 89 43589 45019
Total Segmees Proft before Interest, Tax,
. isten & Amertisation PERIZ EPLER 15,58 284504 3,2%6.93
i F_..,-_—m;znr_ﬁ
#ME} 3 0 5151 05 20 81 L1538
Lovesterds i et sty in Hoeel 35214 159.01 195,85 1557 45019
T |Totl Sepment Profit Before Tox P1534 82192 21687 250m2 2.506.54
Oxher UnaBoesbie Cost {11855 {103 50)] {1ea15) [ | (3 54
Onher Unaliacable Incorme - fiF ] - [N 0.7
Bafors Tax T96.75 751.18 434,72 2.204.04 244070
i) Cerrest Tax evis S144 106 61 29539 4717 TI5.48
Dieferred Tax (143.45) 1478 156 [{EEEE {10821
MAT $10.4% {1 {11 S0 K1 (1184
| Prot After Tax 7835 531.57 0910 138595 177807
|
4 %Em
el Tomess 1555441 15 244.99 148 1555441 13,745.84
Eniwesirmerdy Ivestmenty in Hotel 539054 00879 121244 TEEN L1
Total Sepmant Assets 91,491.35 $1.263.38 EETLSE 9149138 #5,871.08
5 |Segment Lisbilities
|
Hoted B PRI AARRE 370065 PR3 370065
I choding imesments f Hotd 130035 30018 0% 1H4.3) 0.2% |
otal Segment Lisblities 601915 575018 3,700.04 600815 370054
|
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38. The disclosures relating to Micro, Small & Medivm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under :-

i. The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in “The Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 has bren determined Lo the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of information eollected by
the managemenl. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

ii. Thedisclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under :-

Paorticulars 31"March 2020 | 31 March 2019

| The principal amount remaining unpaid to 11,43.890 4.00.811
supplier asat the end of the accounting year.

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to NIL IL
Supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

[The amount of interest paid in lerms of Section NIL NIL
16 alongwith the amount of payment made to the
Supplicr beyond the appointed day during the
year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the NIL NIL
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day du
the year) but without adding interest spocif
under this Act,

“The amount of interest accrued during the year NIL NIL
and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year.

The amount of further interest due and payable NIL NIL
even in the succeeding vear, until such date when
interest dues as above ane actually paid.

39. Contingent Liabilities:

Contingent Linbilities 31" March 2020 | 31" March
2019
corpmu Guarantee to IDBI Bank for Robust Hotels 109,500,000 109,500,000
Pt Ltd.

Corporate Guarantee to HDFC Limited for Robust 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Hotels Pvi. Lid.

Letter of Credit issued by IDBL Bank Lid. in favour of 1,95,00,000 1,95,00,000
West Bengal Electricity Distribution Company Limited

Service Tax under the Finance Act, 1994 perlainiog to - 4,479,735
prior to F.Y, 2004-05 (The Company has opted for
SVLDRS and the application has been necepted)
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Service Tax under the Finance Act, 1994 pertaining to 20,753,749 26,753,749
F.Y. z007-08 to F.Y. 2009-10

Service Tax under the Finance Act, 1994 pertaining to 6,836,585 6,856,585
F.Y. zo08-09 0 F.Y. 200213

Service Tax under the Finance Act, 1994 perlaining 1@ 7,644,193 7/644,193
F.Y. 2013-14 to F.Y 200617

Service Tax under the Finance Acl, 1994 pertaining 1o - 3.86,32.924
F.X. 2014-15 to F.Y. m:yuum:uﬂmmmm-
Tech Kolkata Audit-1 CGST & CX Commizsionerale has
dropped the demand vide Intimation dated goth
Seprember 2019)

Income Tax under the Tncome Tax 1961 for the - 1,68,41,387
F.Y. 2011- |a([l‘l‘AThamd ﬁrln favourof

the company vide order 10th June 2020)-

For FY zo11-12, FY 2012-13 & FY 2013-13 )

Income Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the - 1,17,93.677
F.Y. 201213 ((ITAT has passed an order in favour of
the company vide order dated 10th June 2020)

Income Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the - 1.21,41,837
F.Y. 2013-14 (ITAT has passed an order in favour of the
company vide order dated 10th June 2020 )

Income Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the - 65,76,470
EY. 2014-15 (CIT- Appeals has passed an order in
favour of the company vide order dated 2nd August

2019)

Tax under West Bengal Sales Tax Act, 1904 5,683,418 5,683,418
pertaining to F.Y. 2012-13
Value Added Tax under West Bengal VAT Act, 2003 . 390,345

pertaini to  FY. 201213 (Senior  Joint

er- Commercial Taxes has modified the
Order of Joint Commissioner and for the balance
amount payable, the Company has created a provision
for it separately )

| VAT Under WEVAT Acl 2 tbe F.¥ zmq 15 - 1,851,216

Commercial Taxes has mﬁcﬂ

Joint l’.“ommlmouru.ndurcl‘und nmuuntmgll:-

mo}s has been determined. The Company has
an application for the refund of the same),

VAT Under WBVAT Act 2003 for the F.Y 2011-12 ((the | RBs 3,60,75.792 J
Company has preferred an appeal against the demand)

The West Bengal Value Added Tax Rules, 2005 for the
E.Y 15-16 (Jeint Commissioner- Commercial Taxes has | - 13,009,677
issued a modificd Order doted 19/12/2019 ud a
refund amounting to RS 77,411 has been determi
and it was received by us on 17/01/2020).

Foretgn Trade Development Regulation Act. 1992, 356.36.944 396,306,944
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0.

4.

4z

43

The Hon'ble Supreme Court (5C) of India by their order dated 28th February 2019 s¢t out the principles based on which
allowances paid 1o the employees shoukd be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of compatation of
Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a meview potition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the
8C for disposal. The Company is awaiting the outcame of the review petition, and further clarification in the matter to assess
any potential impact on the Company and consequently no adjustments have been made in the books of account.

Payments to Auditors
Farticulars 14 March 2020 31" March 2019
Statutory Awlit Fees 850,000 T, 00
s e —
20,
Reimbursenwent of Fxpenses BrhL0 30,250

As far a5 the Regency Convention Centre and Hotels Limited (Rigengy)'s legal Suit o, 6846 of 1909 with the

Alrport Authority of India (AAD & Ors in the High Court of Judicature ot Bombay is coneerued and its slow progress in mome
than Last 20 years and pursaant to the discussion and understanding with Mumbai International Alrport Limited (MIAL), the
company considerad the prospect of amicable scttbement of the dispute through MIAL and accordingly Regency, the

amd MIAL have exccuted a Share Purchase Agreement dated 2oth April 2019 (SPA) wherein MIAL has agrood to
bay t tﬂmpnﬁ 100% investment in the Regency at a purchase consideration of Rs.6q crores agninst which the company
has received an advance of Re23 erores from MIAL. The SPA & subject to fullllment of certain corditions includi
withdraval of the begal Suit by the ROC, However, the terms of the SPA could not be fulfilled by the Long Stop Date 3
June 2009 mentioned therein and now MIAL has extended the Long Stop Date o 3ist March 2021 to pay the balance
consideration of Re.q41 crores with an interest ot the rate of 8.25% p.a, for the period commencing from 151 July 2019 il the
revised Long Stop Dale to compbete the transaction. Further nuhuitﬁ:luﬂ thie above development, the company is always
open 1o consider a botel project in future at the CS1 Airport, Mumbai subject 1o a sullable opportunity, benmns, process,
business and sconomic environment., The Regency shall pursue the legal case till the completion of the transaction.

I accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard on = Related Party Disclosures™ (IndAS - 24), the disclosures in
respect of Related Partics and transactions with are as follows: -

Related P, Disclosures
(i} Listofl Parties

() Subsidiarics:

U5 Hotels Limited, wholly owned subaidiary
Convention Centre & Hotels Limited
Hetels Private Limited (w.e.f 249 July 2019, the direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company )
(b) Key Management Personnel:
Mr Radhe Shyam Saraf, Chairman
Mr Arun Kumar Sarf, Jeint Managing Director
Mr Umsesh Saraf, Joint Managing Director

(€) Independent Directors:

Mr. A.C Chakrabortti

Mrs. Rita Bhimani

Mr, Rama Shankar Jhawar
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan

{d) Entities over which directors or their relatives can exercise significant influence / control:

i Juniper Hotels Private Limited
ii. Unison Hotels Private Limited
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iii. Chartered Hotels Private Limited
iv. Chartered Hampi Hotels Private Limited
v. Unison Hotels South Private Limited
vi. Salkia Estate Development Pvt Ltd
vii. Juniper Investments Limited
viil. Vedie Hotels Limited
ix. Blue Energy Private Limited
%. Unison Power Limited
xi. Footsteps of Buddha Hotels Private Limited
xii. Samra lmportex Private Limited
xiii. Taragaon Regency Hotels Limited, Nepal
xiv. Yak & Yeti Hotels Limited, Nepal
xv. Nepal Travel Agency Pwvt. Ltd., Nepal
xvi. Sara International limited, Hong Kong
xvil. Sara Hospitality Limited, Hong Kong
aviii. Saraf Hotels Limited, Mauritius
xix. Saraf Investments Limited, Mauritius
xx. Saraf Industries Limited, Mauritius

xxl. Khaitan & Co

(ii) Details of Transactions with Related Parties during the year:
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*The Post Employment benefits of KMPs excludes gratuity which cannot be separately identified from the composite amount
advised by the actuary.

The Scheme of Arrangement between the Company, GJS Hotels Limited (GJS) and Robust Hotels Private Linited (RHPL) and
their respective shareholders and ereditors under sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 for Demerger of investment
division of GJS, a wholly-owned subsidiary into the Company and reorganization of share capital of RHPL has been sanctioned
by the NCLT Benches, Kolkata and Chennai Bench vide its order dated 6th February, 2019 and 24th June, 2019 respectively.

The Scheme had become effective from 24th July, 2019 being the Effective Date with effect from 315t March, 2016 being the
Appointed Date. Requisite steps have becn taken by the Company to give effect to the Scheme.

The accounting effect of the scheme has been taken on 15t April 2019 and which effect is given below,
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The Net-dmpact of Scheme of Asrangement on the francials is tabulated a5 wnder:

Particulars Ameunt in INRE
Assets ]
Noo-Carrent Investments | Refer Mote Mo 1 below ) 2,45.09,08,158
Loans/advancs te subsidiary compankes -Current Investment { Refer Note No = balow ) (3,15,20,63,861)
Other financial assets 0,000
Tncome Tax Assts 4,13,078
Cash and Bark Balances 1,513,440
(740485, 145))
Liabilitles
Raserved and Surplos (74,35,01,145.00)
Frofit & Loas { Rafer Note Mo 3 below ) {23,08,518.000|
Deeferred tax Habilities (3,52,282.00)|
Trade Payables 46,71,800.00
[74.04,00,145.00)

1) Non-Current Invesinents

i) Equity Shares of Rebust Hotels Pyt Ltd { RHPL)
a) 12,41,63,520 0ot of Equity shares of RHFL of BS 39,732.43 lakh has been transferred from GIS Hotels
Ltd { Investmant Divisden ) a8 per Clause 11,2 of Scheme of Arrangament

b} 43,00,000 ne of 12% Freference shares ksoed by RHFL converted Into 3,20,35, 000 nos of squity
shares of s 20/~ worth Bs 6o kakh as per Clauss 14.0(18) & Clause 17.3 of Scheme of Arrangensent

€} 1,55,00,000 nod of 0.1% Debentures isced by RHPL converted inte 3,79,75.000 equity shares of B3
20/-werth Fs 7505 lakh as per Clavse 14.0(1) & Clause 17,3 of Scheme of Arrangement

537:34,42,528

i} z2% Preference Shares of RHPL( 43,00,000 pos of 12% Preference shares fssusd by REPL
converted lotoe 3,20,35,000 nos of equity shares of Rs 20/ werth Bs G407 lakh a8 per Clanse 14,0010 &
Clase 17.3 of Scheme of Arran gement & difference of Bs { 253.26 3 lakh has beon adjusted with Resorve
& Surplus

(61,53, 74,060)

1) Equity Shares of GJS Hotels Ltd -Investment in 1,07,30,578 nos of squity shares of GJ5 Hotels
Ltd (Investment Dirision) @ Rs 215 sach has been cancelled after demorger of investment division of GJ5 |
Hidals Ltd Into Axlan Hetels (East) Lid, as per clanss 11.4 of Schame of Arrangement

(2,30,71,60,270)

2,45,09.08,148

) Leansfadvance to Subsidlary Companties -Corrent Investment

1) All Assats and Habilities of Investment divislon of GJ5 Hotels Linbted has been transforred to Aslan
Hiotels (Exst) Limitod as per Clauss 11.2 of Schema of Arcangement 1.50 advances glven to G5 hotals Itd
{ Investment Diviston ) adjusted In Scheme of Arrangement

(3,19,20,63,861)

3) Profit & Loss

Cthar Incomes

245,503

Employse Benedit Expense

(13,504,939}

Other Exponse:

(2 43481)

[13.02,518]

123



ASIAN HOTELS (EA LIMITED
CIN No. — L15122WB2007PLC162762

Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2020

Consequent to giving effects of the Scheme, all the securities held by GJS in RHPL transferred to the Company and accordingly
RHPL became a direet wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

45- STATUS OF ONGOING SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

On 14™ November, 2019 the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Scheme of Armangement, Demerger and Reduction
of Capital between the Company and its wholly —owned subsidiary Robust Hotels Private Limited(RHPL) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Sections 230-232, 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Scheme™) for inter alia :

i) demerger and transfer of the undertaking, business activities and operations of the Company pertaining to
‘Securities Trading Unil “comprising of treasury/liquid investments which are being regulardy traded, bonds,
mutual funds, and shares of certain cmﬁ:liu {which already are under an agreement of sale, part performance
completed"Demerged Undertaking™) the Company into RHPL, as a going concern in compliance with
Section 2(19AA) of Income Tax Act, 1961

i) capitalization of reserves of the Company and issuance and alletment of fully paid-up bonus equity shares having
face value of Rs. 10/~ each (*Bonus Shares”) by the Company to its equily shareholders (as of the Record Date),
in the ratio 221, meaning 1 (one) Bonus Share for every 2 (two) equity shares of the Company, rauking pari passu
with the existing equity shares of the Company;

iif} reorganization and reduction of shares of RHPL held by the Company (without any consideration) with
'ﬂppm:;tj;:& Date” being the zame as the Effective dale or such other date as may be modified/fixed by the
ul v

iv) upon effectiveness of the Scheme RHPL shall issue & allot equity shares to the sharehokders of the Company in
the ration of 121 i.e., ifone) fully paid-up equity share of having a face value of Rs, 10/- each for every 1 (one) fully
paid-up equity share of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10/~ held by a sharcholder of the Company as on
the Record Date (to be determined in terms of the Scheme and the 2013 Act) and the shares of RHPL shall be
listed and admitted for trading on all the stock exchanges where the equity shares of the Company are listed.

The Scheme along with necessary documents was filed by the Company on 28th January, 2020 with the stock exchanges where
the equity shares of the Company are listed. The Company has received Observation Letters dated 21.05.2020 from BSE
Limited (BSE), being the designated stock exchange of the Company and National stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) 20 as to
file the Scheme with the Honble Mational Company Law Tribunal Benches, Kolkata & Chennai.

In compliance with the requirement mentioned in the observation letters received from BSE and N5E dated 215t May, zozo,
the Company Application has been filed through e-mode with the Hon'ble NCLT Bench, Kolkata on Tuesday, 21st July, 2020
having filing no. 1908134/00063//2020 for receiving necessary Directions/Orders in respect of convening the meeting of the
equity shareholders and creditors for approval of the Scheme.

Further, RHPL is in the process of filing the application with the Honble NCLT Bench, Chennai for receiving Orders in respect
of convening,/dispensing with the meeting of its equity sharcholders and creditors for approval of the Scherme.

All stakeholders can see the Scheme documents including the observation letters dated 21052020 in the Company's websile at
wwwallessteom and website of s [ It erasps and MSE at
hltps:d v e K ()
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46, Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the Rules), Rs. 8,54,110/- and 14626 shares
have been transferred to the IEPF for the dividend declared in the financial year ended zo11-12 and the respective shares
whose dividend remained unpaid or unclaimed for seven consecutive years. Further, Rs. 18,509 of .Y 2012-12 and its 4,130
shares of F.Y 201112 being restrained shares could not be transferred to the IEFF pursuant to Rule 6(g)(b) of the Rubes, the
duve dite of transfer of which was August 24, 2019 .

47 The Government of India vide Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated 2oth September 2019 has inserted
Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act,1961 which provides an option of reduced rate effective from April 1, 2019 subject to
certain conditions. The Company has elected to exercise the option of lower tax rate of 25.168% (inclusive of surcharge and
cess) under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introdused by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019.
The full impact of this change has been recognized in tax expense in the current year ended 315t March, 2020, In view of the
above, the MAT Credit Entitlement will not be available in future years, hence the same is reversed to the tune of Rs
510,485,065 lacs. The deferred tax expense has reduced by Bs 1,56,60,813 lacs due to exercise of aforementioned option of
lower Lax rate.

48. The spread of COVID-19 has severcly impacted businesses arcund the globe, including India. There has been severe
disruption of regular business operations due to lock-down, disruption in transportation, supply chain and other emergency
measures. The company’s offices are under lockdown since 24th March, 2020 and the Hotel is running with curtailed
mAnpower as per requisite permission from bocal administration. As a result the Hotel Operations for the month of March
2020 and also the performance for the F.Y 2020-21 will be severcly impacted due to Covid -19 . The company & moenitering
the situation clesely and operations are being ramped up in a phased manner taking into account directives from the
Government. The management has considered internal and certain external sources of information up to the date of approval
of the financial statements in determining the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on varicus elements of its financial statements.
The management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and bazed on the
current estimates, the management expects to fully recover the carrying amount of inventories, trade receivables,
investments and other assets. The eventual outeome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those
estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company bas already initiated action plans including
controd of fixed overheads to reduce the impact on the profitability.

49- E;[matud.}amwﬂ of Capital Contracts pending to be executed (Net of Advances = Rs 75,9324 (Previous Year — Rs,
13,581,699/~

50. The Anditors have commented on the need for and necessity of carrying oul an evaluation of impairment of the investment
and loans given by the Company to its wholly owned subsidiary Robust Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Chennai (RHPL). Sometimes back
RHPL had undertaken valuation of its assets which exceeded the Company’s investments in and loans to it. During last 5
years, RHPL has improved its performance and also gencrated cash profits and as a result RHPL was able to fulfill its
financial obligations to banks/financial institutions and accordingly the lean outstanding has come down from Rsaso Cr, to
Rs.a14 Cr. as on 315t March zo20. Unfortunately, the entire Hotel industry is now devastated on account of Covid-10
pandemic and also long lockdown declared by the Government.

These events have created uncertainty and unpredictability in the future of the Hotel industry across the country. The entire
Hotel industry is grappling with the situation and therefore in the present adverse circumstances it is difficult to carry out the
impairment test,

However, the management is confident that the recoverable value of the investment and loans given to RHPL will not be less
than the amount at which they have been slated in the balance sheet. The operating performance of the RHPL has been
satisfactory and the management of the subsidiary has taken reasonable steps in reducing the overheads especially the
manpower cost and utility cost to safeguard fself from huge operating losses on account of Covid-19. The present adverss
business conditions due to outbreak of Covid pandemic i temporary and it has become difficult to have the future
projections of revenue/cash flows from the business for the purpose of Impairment as this industry has been affected badly.
The management is optimistic that the long term prospects/fundamentals of RHPL is good and it expects quick recovery in
the performance after business conditions are restored to its prior position. Hence, the management does not anticipate any
impairment to the carrying amount of the asset.
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51. Previous Year figures have boen regrouped [ reclassified, wherever necessary

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration. No. 302045E

d l.
Rajiv Singhi
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Nulea:
1 The abere results have been reviewed by the Audit Committes and approved by the Boand of Directors at their respective meetings
held on 10th November 2020 as required under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2005 The Statutory Auditors of the Company have camried out a Limited Review of the aforesaid results.

2 Regarding the ongoing Scheme of Armangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital between the Company and its wholly owned
sulwidiary Fedwst Hotels Private Limited{RHPL) and their respective sharcholders and ereditors under Sections 230-232, 66 of
the Companics Act, 2013 (“the Sebeme”) and pursuant to the Observation Letters dated 215t May, 2020, issued by BSE and NSE,
the Compeany had instituted an Application through e-mode with the Honble NCLT Eench, Kolkata on 21st July, 2020 for receiving
necessary dlirection fender for convening, holding and conducting of the meetings of the equity shareholdérs and creditors to agree
to the Scheme, The Company has been following up the matter with the Hon'ble NCLT Bench, Kolkata regularly but due to the
ongoing pandemic siluations and restrictive working conditions, till date the matter has not been lsted before it

Further, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Robust Hotels Private Limited, Chennal (RHPL) has also institated the scheme
application with the HooBle NCLT Bench, Chennai on 25th August, 2020 through e-mafl for receiving necessary
direetion/dispensation, as the case may be, for convening, holding and conducting of the meetings of the equity sharcholders,
secured creiors and unsecured creditors Lo agree Lo the Scheme. RHPL has also filed an urgency application on 17th September,
2020 where it has prayed before the Tribunal to list the above matter urgently and thereafier complied with the other conditions as
preseriled by the Tribunal in this regand. The urgency application was listed before the Honble NCLT Bench, Chennai on 12th
October, 2020 whervin the Beneh allowed the urgency application and reserved its order. The order is awaited.

3 The Auditors have commented on the need for and pecessity of camying out an evaluation of impairment of the investment and
loans given by the Company to its wholly owned subsidiary Robust Hotels Pvi. Ltd,, Chennai (RHPL). Against this comment , it is
hereby subiiited that sometimes back RHFL bad undertaken valuation of its assets which exceeded the Company's investments in
and boans to it During last 5 years, RHPL has improved its performance and also generated cash profits and as a result RHPL was
alde o fulfill its Gnancial elligations to banks/financial institutions and accordingly the loan outstanding has come down from
K150 Cr, to K=.121 Cr, a8 on 30th Sept 2020 . Unfortunately, the entire Hotel industry is now devastated on account of Covid-19
pardemic and also long lockdown declared by the Government.

These events have eneated uncertainty and unpredictabdlity in the future of the Hotel indusiry across the eountry. The entire Hotel
intdustry is grappling with the situation and therefore in the present adverse circumstances it is difficult o carry out the impaioment
{18

However, the management is confident that the recoverable value of the investment and loans given to RHPL will not be bess than
the amount at which ey have been stated in the balance sheet. The operating performance of the RHPL has been satisfactory and
the management of the subsidiary has taken reasonable steps in reducing the overheads especially the manpower cost and utility
cost Lo salfezicind fselfl from huge operating losses on sccount of Covid-19. The present adverse business conditions due to outbreak
of Covidl pandemic is temporary and it has become difficult to have the future projections of revenue/cash flows from the business
for Use purpoge of Impairment as this industry has been affected badly. The management is optimistic that the long term
prospects/ fundamentals of RHPL is good aml it expects quick recovery in the performance after business conditions are restored o
s prior position. Hence, the management does nol anticipate any impairment Lo the carrying amount of the asset.

4 The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe, including India. There has been severe disruption of
regular business operations due to lock-down, disruption in transportation, supply chain and other emergency measures. The
company’s offees ane under lockdown since 24th March, 2020 and the Hotel is running with curtailed manpower as per requisite
permission (iom local administration. As a result the Hotel Operations for the moath of March 2020 and also the performance for
the F.Y 2020-21 will be severely impacted due to Covid -19 .The company is monitoring the situation closcly and operations are
being ramped up in a phased manner taking inte scoount directives from the Government. The management has considered
internal and certain external sowrees of information up to the date of approval of the financial statements in determining the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic on various clements of its financial stastements, The management has used the principles of pradence in
applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and bascd on the current estimates, the management expects to fully recover the
carrying amount of inventorics, trade receivables, investments and other assets, The eventual outcome of impact of the global
health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company has
alveady initiatod action plans including control of fived overheads (o raduce the impact on the profitability.

5 This Statement Is as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Stotement of Assets and Liabilities as on 30th September 2020 and the Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 3oth
Septemibser 2020 are annexed herewith,

& Figures of the provieus periods are regrouped, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period’s classification [
disclosure.,

Kalkata By order of Lse Baard of INrecars
virth Navembeer suae For Asian Hotels (East) Limited
(e,
& iy 1/-
o 8
Jolmt Managing Director
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ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: HYATT REGENCY KOLKATA, JA -1, SECTOR I1I, SALT LAKE CITY, KOLKATA-700 0g8
CIN Mo, - LisizzWhzoo7PLC162762

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Bs in lakhs)
Standalone
51 No. Particulars Am uty e At XS
A ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assels
a) Property, plant and equipnscrt 10,B45.53 10.817.25
) Intangilibe Asscls 3432 29.41
) Capital work = in - progress 2586 39
) Financial assets
(i) Investiwents [ SELE =) 57a28.22
(i) Other Financial Azsets 11598 1607
] Imcome tax sssels (wet) 31483 2972
f) Cther now carrent assels 1ip2 3547 |
Tutal Non-Current Assels 8, 48160 68,462.65
2 Currenl Assels
i) liwentorics 133.78 1B
b Financial assels
(i} levestments B.580.74 G248
(i) Trade Keccivables 14921 45048
(iid) Cash & Cash Equivalents 2882 165059
(iv) Other Bank Balances 339066 31508
(v} Loans 4,386.53 445059
[vi) Caber Finangial Asscts 93.99 1638
) (her curnont assets 556 24935
) Assets classified a5 held for sale _5o83 08 5,081.75 |
B Total Current Assels 23 08197 23.028.70
TOTAL = ASSETS 91,491.35 |
B EQUITY & LIARILITIES
1 |Equity
a) Exquity Share Capital 115278 1,152.78
) Dther FEquity 83,047 B6 B4 51941 |
Total - Equity B5.000.604 BR47=.19 |
a Lialilitics
Mun-Currenl Lishilitics
a) Fimancial Halsilitics
(i) Other financial Habilities 1538 -5
|b) Prenvisions 1728 13488
) Dederred tax liahilities (net) 985 14 Sb48
Total = Non Current Liabilitics 111780 1,041.47
Current Linbilities
) Financial liahifities
i) Traibe Payables
= Total outstamiling dues of Micro , Small and Mediuo Emerprise 144 1144
l-::?:ut?qmumliu;d.;ndcmmnmuhctlhmnHm.Sma]lmnlMulium AT fanbo
Tprise
(i) Otber financial Habilities 247.70 49943
1) Provisions 10539 niag
) Otlver Curvent Liabilithes A506.59 __aberan |
Total - Current Liabilities 4:344.59 4,877.99 |
TOTAL- EQUITY & LIABILITIES 90,563 03 9140135 |
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ASIAN 1TOTELS (EAST) LIMITEL
CIN: LaseeWhHzoo7PLC GeThe

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOL ENDEL 30.00. 2020

(s in lakhs)

Period ended Period ended
Particulars 30.09.2020 30.09,2019
{ Unaudited) { Unaudited )
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit({Loss) betore tix [g10.492) HH6.00
Adjustment for =
T preecia Loy inortization 15948 149.78
I*rvrvision for had and doubiful debis .53 3-25
[Exeess provision written back [n.a1) (16:4.36)
Provision for gratuity {17.99} [4-99)
Prowision for leave encashment {12.74) 587
Interest meome {108.20) (212.12)
Dividend income (2.67) [75.80)
Asgets written off (Non cash item]) = 071
Fuir value loss (gain) on mutnal funds (417510 213.71
Operating profit before working capital changes (815.13) FHz.05
Movements in working capital @
Tnerease/{decrease) in current trade payables (z08.43) [53.20]
L reiese{decrease) in other curvent fsonciol liabilitics {234-47) (194 73)
Inerease/{desrease) in other non-current financial abilities 5.57 -
Inerease,{decrease] in other curvent labilities (60,500 o 98170
Diessreasey (increase) in trade receivables 0075 85.08
Deerease [increase) in inventories E4.12 {o.g7)
Decrense, (inerease) in non current assels 18.55 =
Decrense, (increase) in non-carvent financial assets 0.00 {011}
Decrense (inereass) in current financial assets .41 (2,268 85)
Decrease f{inerense) in corrent boins [m.25) (.60}
Dercrense f{increase) in other pssets 23.79 4010
Cash generabed from/ (used in) opecations (gob.50) LYY
Less: Divect taxes paid (Net of Refunds) 17.72 {185.56)
Mel cush Now fromy (used in) Operating Activities (A) (oz4.22) T56.93
B, CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for fixed assets (192.20) (89.32)
Decrease, [ Inerease) in capital work in progress 1325 -
Proceeds from sale of PPE 552 -
Tovestiments in assets held for trading (1.33) [5.081.75)
Investiment in Non Current Investment = 583042
Proceeds from sale/maturity of curvent investments fzH.19 (1,760.83)
Mon-current loans given/ {repaid) 7.3l 10402
Interest received 26518 40226
il receivesl 2,67 75.80
et cash Mew from/{used in) Lnvesting Activities (B) 791.59 [ﬂz3“]
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings - {22 51)
Dividend paid on shares (B.14) [a0a.93)
Tax on divicdened paid 5 {59.24)
MNet cash Now from(used in) in Financing Actvities (C) (B.nﬂ M
Nt inerease (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B +
€ (140.77) (55-55)
Casland Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 164.50 20143
Add: Transfer In in the Scheme of Arangement = 1.63%
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period 28.82 147.51

MNuole:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method"as set ot in Ind AS - 7 "Statements

aof Cash Flow ™,

Kullata
il Mavenslser 2020
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1 The ahove results have been reviewed by the Audit Commiltee and approved by the Boand of Directors at their respective meetings held on
1ot Movember 2020 as roquired under Regulation 33 of e SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have carried out a Limited Review of the aforesaid results.

2 Regarding the ongoing Scheme of Amangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital between the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary
Robust Hotids Private Limited(RHPL) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230-232, 66 of the Companies Act,
2003 (e Scheme”) and pursuant to the Observation Letiers dated 215t May, 2020, issued by BSE and NSE, the Company had instituted
an Application through e-mode with the Hon'ble NCLT Bench, Kolkata on 215t July, 2020 for receiving necessary direction forder for
convening, holding and conducting of the meetings of the equity shareholders and creditors to agree Lo the Scheme. The Company has been
fullowing up the matter with the Hon'ble NCLT Bench, Kolkata regularly but due to the ongoing pandemic situations and restrictive
working conditions, till date the matter has not been listed before it.

Further, the Company’s whally owned subsidiary, Robust Hotels Private Limited, Chennai (RHPL) has also institated the scheme
application with the Hon'ble NCLT Bench, Chennai on 25th August, 2020 through e-mail for receiving necessary direction/dispensation, as
the case may be, for convening, Muhqmdmdmhgﬂmemmhwdmmwmmﬁﬂammdmﬂmmdmmd
creditors to agree to the Seheme. RHPL has also filed an urgency application on 171h September, 2020 where it has prayed before the
Tribunal to list the above matter urgently and thereafter complied with the other conditions as preseribed by the Tribunal in this regard.
Thee ursency apgplication was listed before the Hon'kle NCLT Bench, Chennai on 12th October, 2ozo wherein the Bench allowed the urgency
application and reserved its order, The order is awaited.

3 mmdimmmmmw]onlhamﬂﬁormdnmﬁmynfmﬁnxwtuemﬂuﬁmniimmmﬁmwnm
consolidation.

However, the management is confident that the realizable value of the goodwill on consolidation will not be less than the ameunt at
which they have been stated in the balance sheet. The operating performance of the subsidiaries has been satisfaclory. The present
wihverse husiness conditions duc te ewtbreak of Covid pandemie is temporary and it has become difficult to have the future projections of
revenue/cash flows from the business for the purpose of Impalrmment as this industry has been affected badly. The management is
optimistic that the long term prospectsffundamentals of the subsidiaries is good and it expects quick recovery in the perfurmance after
business conditions are restored to its prior position. Hence, the management does not anticipate any impairment to the carrying
amount of the intangible asset.

Unfortunately, the entire Hotel industry is now devastated on account of Covid-19 pandemic and also long lockdown declared by the
Government, These events have ereated uneertainty and unpredictability in the future of the Hotel industry across the country. The
entive Hotel industry is grappling with the situation and therefore this is not the appropriate time to carry out the impairment test.

4 Thespread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe, including India. There has been severe disruption of regular
business operations due to lock-down, disruption in transportation, supply chain and other emergency measures. The company's offices
are under lockdown sinee 24th March, 2020 and the Hotel kmﬂguﬂcumﬂdmmmmwwﬂsﬂepumi&ﬁmﬁmw
administration. As a result the Hotel Operations for the month of March 2020 and also the performance for the F.Y 2o20-21 will be
severely impactad due to Covid -19 The company is monitoring the situation closcly and operations are being mmped up in a phased
manner Laking into account mfmmmmnnemmmmmmmm and certain external sources of
information up to the date of approval of the financial statements in determining the impmﬁmﬂn-lgmnd.mi:ammdmmu
of its finaneial statements. The management has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and
based on the current estimates, memmmmﬂmmmldmmmm
ivestments and other assets. The eventual outeome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on
the date of approval of these Anancial statements. The Company has already initiated action plans including control of fixed overheads to
reduee tie impact on the profitability.

5 This Statement is as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Statement
of Assets ani Linbilities as on 301k Seplember 2020 and the Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 30th Seplember 2020 are
annexed herewith.

& Figures of the previous periods are regrouped, wherever necessary, to correspond with the eurrent period's classification / disclosure,

Kulkuta By order of the Board of Dircctors
10th November 2020 Far otels (East) Limited
& "“r{e,,‘
o B v
i Joint Managing Director
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ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: HYATT REGENCY KOLKATA, JA -1, SECTOR I1I, SALT LAKE CITY, KOLKATA-700 098
CIN No. - LisizzaWBzoo7PLC162762

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Bs in lakhs)
L Consolidated
SL. No. Farticul As at joth Sept 2020 M-Im‘:tu::?mn
A ASSET=
i Non-Current Assels
a)) Pouperty, plant aml equipasent B, 24790 63,052,581
b) Intangible Asscts G687 #5603
) Capital work - in - progress 2I7.00 2384
d) Goodwill on Consalidation 0,991.04 591,04
) Financial assets
(i) Investments 32060 Pt -
(ii} Other Financial Assets 34866 F70.47
N Do 1ax assels (i) 314.83 2GT.A2
2] Crlber s current assels 1,528 154747 |
Total Non-Current Assels 75:076.08 75:996.80
2 | Current Assels
u] Inventorics 25203 31165
b} Finaneial assets
(1) Investments B,589.74 o,012.48
(i) Trude Receivables G87.08 1.304.05
(i) Cush & Cash Equivalents gz Bb 219.28
(i) D ler Rank Ralanoes 3,300, 6 3,150.18
%) lasang 33473 33448
[vi) Otler Fisncial Asscts 12.62 B8.62
&) Inconie 1ax assets 61749 704461
) Otlver current asscts 430,64 530.95
) Assets clussifieal as held for sale 5083 08 5,081.75 |
Total Current Assels 19,4010 20,838.05 |
TOTAL - ASSETS 94,508,010 96,834 85
15 EQUITY & LIABILITIES
i Eguity
a) Equity Shane Capital 115278 1.52.78
|51 Crleer Bty 7256133 74.792.68 |
Tutal - Equity T3.714.11 75:945-46
2 |Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilitics
a) Finaneial liskilitics
(i) Barrowings 10,356,456 9,681.00
(i) Other finsneial liakilities 1538 .81
) Provisinms 19741 299.09
2} Deferred lax Kobdlitics (net) GBS 14 90648 |
Tustal = Non Current Linhilitics 11,554-39 10,921.22
Current Linhilities
) Finnncis] Habilities
(i) Borrowings 156,92 1553
(i) Trade Fayables
= Total outstandin a ors n » Small an
et E._Mwﬁ; 1L,2347.45 141463
(i) O her financkl labilities 5.806.2 4,227.08
b} Prowisions L0502 1873
) Ot her Current Liahilities 376533 395383 |
Tuotal = Current Linhilities 0, 20949.51 9.968.17
TOTAL - EQUITY & LIARILITIES 94,568,010 g96,824.85 |
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ASIAN HOTELS (EAST) LIMITED
CIM: LaSieaWhaooTPLCLGI63
LS LIDATED nﬁs_]{mwmﬁmmmma PERIOD ENDED goth SEFTEMBER 3030

R i haks)
Perivd ended Perlod ended
PFarticulars Bk ML 2020 O RTTRTO T

{ Unanited ) { Unandited )

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING mﬂﬁ

Profit)( Lassh before tax (2.r70.72) (506,06}
Asljustment for
Depreviation/amortization Q. Bqg 1,303.03
Lens [ prodit) an sabe of fixed assets : 408
Inkerest expense SHT.33 Tz
Provision for bad and doubifel delbs L] 335
Expess provision written hack iguan) (1. 380
Provision for grabaiky {vh.08) 5370
Pruvigion for lesse encaghment [10:74) 5-85
Tterest ineome (105.43] {128.08)
Dividend income {2.67) (75.80)
Aasets weitten off (Non ¢ash tem) 2 el
Falevalue gain on mutwal funds {41751} .71
Faiir value gain on mon current investments .02 =
Operating profit belfure working capltal changes (1,080.43) 1,7
Wl mwnia i wosking capiial 2
Inereage deeresse] in current trade payables [55-28) (2. 65)
Inerensef{deerease] in ather aaret Granclal llabilities (5a8.14) {334-57)
Ineresseeecrease] in ather nan=current financial abilities 5.57 "
Inerengedeerense] in other marrent Babilitie {t.o5) 28082
Ineressdeoease] in Provisians (144.94) 124
Deereage{ineremse] in trnde receivables [ TF T 258,94
Ueresse (incnease) in innentaries §a.52 {15.68)
ecreast f[increase) in non-coment financial assels 218 oR.o0
Diecrease) [incrense] im current inancial assels L] (2,262.09)
Decrease {[inerease] in cirrent ans (D25} to72]
Deevrease fTinerense) in other assets 10033 L2
Deerease f[increase] in other nan current assels 18.54 7
Cush generated from/{used in) operations (1057a) BT
Borses: Dimeed Baxes paid (6940}  (iztow) =
ot easls flow fronsy (used in) Operating Activities (A) (gl ge) 2077

I CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for fixed assets (27 35) [ETTRT]
Devrense{Inerenge] in apiial work In progress 19.25 -
Proxceeds fram sabe of fixed assets 552 2390
Investments in assets held for Crading (1.33) (5081750
Proceeds frum sale of Mational Saving Certificates - 0.05
Puichase/Sale of irvent investments 5530 (1,560, B30
Purchase of non carrent inveslmenls = SA50.02
Mon-current kang repaid ((given) (a7} w52
Tisterest vepeived ; 2068.35 45508
Divident Reveived 267 2580
ok casnh Mow feonsf{uesed In) livesting Activities (B) s [0 (7he 87
. CASH FLOWS FIROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Regpmnent of barmuwings G515 (554.00)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 14139 F04.54
Interest paid on barmwings [Easn) (IR EY]
Dividend paid on shares 8.14] [252.03)
Ty an dividerd paid = [59.25)
et cash Mow fewmf{used in} in Financlng Activities (C) ARG A0 {1 go=78)
Nl inerease/{deerease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B C} 12tk42) (108.52)
Uash amel Cash Eguivalents al Lhe beginning of the year g2l 25606
Cash and Cash Eyuivalenis al the end of the perlod ua BG 148,44

T averinpaiyineg rotes foene an icegrel pant of the congolidaed fiomein siaremends.

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared wnder the “Indirect Method"as set out in Ind A5 - 7 “Statements of Cash Flow ™,

By Orider of the Baard of Dircetars

Kailksin
wth Mavember ddcn
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2020

(Amount in Rs.)|
Particulars Mote No.| As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31t March, 2019
ASSETS
|MNon - current Assels
{a) Property, Flant and Equipment 3 5,170,694,293 5,392, 096,305
(b) Other Intangible Assets 4 S621,544 5,527,837
(¢) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 41871637 35,522,200
(1) Other Financial Assels & 25407050 28410770
(d) Other Non Current Assets 7 151,200,000 151,530,424
Total Non-Current Asscts 5,354,754, 904 5,613,087,536
Current Assets
{a) Inventorics 8 12,375,089 8320117
() Financial Assels
(i) Trade Receivables 9 BAAS6634 113,617,115
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 4,676,392 5,389,670
(iv) Loans 1 - 49,400
(v) Other Fnancial Assets 12 E4ATS 8356
() Current Tax Asscls 13 70450519 59,813,728
(d) Other Current Assets 14 28,161,693 36,147,174
Total Current Assets 201,094,802 Z24,305,560
Total Assets 5,595,859,736 5,837.393,096
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Fquity
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 2,241, 838,290 1,541,738,290
(b) Other Equity 16 1,487,550,885 1.174,768,901
Total Equity 3.729,389,175 2,716, 507.221
Liabilities
Non - current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics g
Bor 17 968,100,000 2,333,150,918
(b) Provisions 18 9,905,752 8,117,062
Total Non-current Liabilities 578,005, 2341, 267,980
Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 19 373,052,966 375374616
{ii} Trade Payables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small
enterprises 22,693,508 14,509,359
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises & small enterprises 79,302,556 58,9054
(i) Other Financial Liabilitics i | IBOTIZNTS 256,300,890
(b} Other Carrent Liabilities 2 32593644 44,169.43
|[:] Provisions 23 59,960 58,108
Total Current Liabilities BE8 494809 779,617 5%
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,595,859,736 5837 393,0%

As per our report of even date altached
For P LUNAWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 328046E

(FPankaj Lunawat)
|Proprictor

Membership No.: 067104
Place: Kolkata

Date: 24.07.2020

The accompanying nobes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Divector
A=

Company Secretary

Cenlialaah

/-

Director

" Vice President &

Chicf Financial Officer
38
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

Amount in Rs.
Mote| Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st March,
Paxticalix: Mo, March, 2020 2019
Income
(a) Revenue from Operations o 927 698,815 989,614,832
(b) Other Income 25 35,141,712 17049433
Total 962,540,527 1,006,664, 264
Expenditure
{a) Consumption of Provisions, Beverages, Smokes & Others 26 114,680,292 108,785,289
(6) Employee Benefits Expense 7 178,746,795 173,257,309
{¢) Finanee Costs 28 157,454,609 243417529
(d) Depreciation and Amortization Expense 230,183,675 230,266,246
{e) Other Expenses p.:] 494541645 476,977,209
Total 1,175,607,019 1,232,703,582
Profit/{Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax (212,766,492)| {226,039,318)
Exceptional [tems (4,650,000) -
Profitf(Loss) Before Tax (208,116,492) (226,039,318) |
|Tax Expense
Current Tax 5 -
Profitf(Loss) for the year (208,116,492) (226,039,318)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (652A72) 0,680
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (206, 768,964) (225,948,638)
Earnings per Equity Share (Mominal value per Equity Share Rs. 10/-)
(Refer Note No. 47)
(a) Basic (093) aon)
(1) Diluted (0.93) (1.01)

As per our report of even date attached
For P LUNAWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants :
Firm Registration No.: J28946E

et

(Pankaj Lunawat)
Proprietor

Membership Mo.: 067104
Place: Kolkata

rDalc: 24.07.2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

.J»*“’"’

FOR A v BEHhLF OF THE BOARD

Company Secrclary

Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer
39
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020
[Amount in Bs.)
Year Ended Year Ended
Fusticatacs st March, 2020 315k Mareh, 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (oss) before tax [202.116452) (Z26,039318))
Audjustmment for
Deprociation/amortization 230,183,575 TR0266, 206
Laoss/ {profit) on sale of fixed assets 46,970,492 21,339,043
Tnterest Expenise on Bastowings 138,595,308 143,151,998
Provision for Gratuity 257,998 1.891,3%0
Provision for Leave Encashment 1645592 1,926,457
Interest incomie (1,316,100 (1397, 455)
Interest on Debentunes [4650,000) 1,550,000
Sundry balances written back (net) - {689,133)
Fair value (Gain)/ Loss on Investment (4,630437) (3,829,320
Interest on Debentures and Preference Shares - 83,435,813
Orperating profit before working capital changes 201,359 335 251,805,750
Movements in working capital ©
Incresse/ (decrease) in trade payables in Financial Lisbilities 281,213 s
Increase/ (decrease) in other current Habilitics (11.575,787) (19.332.667)
Invcrease/ (decrease) in other current financial liabilities 38,241,285 (42679707}
Increase/ (decrease) in non curment provisions (3.186,672) [2569.313)
Increasef (decrease) in curment provisions 1852 (373297
Decreasef (increase) in trade receivables in Finaneial Assets 9,160,481 (26,450.361)
Diecreass f (increade) in inventories in Current Assels (£032.972) 10,504,307
Decrease / (increase) in other Financial Adsels 3,003,710 (047,707
Decrease / (increase) in other Financial Asstts under current asset {16,119 (39497
Dieerease / (increase) in loans in Finaneial Assets 49,400 G000
Decrease / (increase) in other Current Assets 7.9m5481 (3.730,151)
Decrease / (Increase) in other Mon cumrent asset 330424 371,350
Cash generated from {used in) operations 269,599,631 162,668,919
Less: Direct taoes paid (net of refunds) 10,646,791 13
Net cash flow from/ (used in) Operating Activities [A) 275,952,540 149,342,416 |
B, CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (38.402.761)
Proceeds from sabe of fixed assels 2,556,500 5,501,000
Purchase of curpent investments (1.724,000) (3.575,000)
Sale of current Investments - 2,660,000
Puchase of National Saving Certificates {5.000) -
Sale of National Saving Certificates 0,000 .
Interest recehved 1316100 1357 465
Met cash flow fromy[used in) Investing Activitics (B) (56.249.161)
|€ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (87, 150,000) (95,550,000
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - OC (11,321,650 (33.003,000)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - Unsecured Loan 9,000,000 140,000,000
Interest paid on borrowings (138,595,308 (143,151,998)
Interest paid on Debentures 4,550,000 (1
MNet cash flow fromy{ased in) in Financing Activities (C) (Z23,416,958)
Met increase/{decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (& + B + ) 713,279 {1,968
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,389,670 7.359,542
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,676,392 5389670
Node:
(1) The above Cash Flow Statement shouold be read in confuction with the accompaying notes.
{2} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS- 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
(3 Figures for the previous year have boen regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary.
As per aur sept of even date attsched D ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
|Fer PP LUNAWAT & ASSOCIATES
Clariered Accountants L
|Firm Registration Moo J2EMEE " X-M"“ ot
M Direetar Director
(Pankaj Lunawat) .
o B el VWA YA PR\
Membership Mo.: 067104
Mace: Kolkata Company Secretary Vier President &
Duate: 24072020 Chicf Financial Cificer
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

te 1: Significant A ntin
1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
1.1 Company Overview

The Company was incorporated in the year 2007 as a Private Limited Company
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India and
subsequently became a subsidiary of GJ5 Hotels Limited in the year 2012. GJS
Hotels Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Asian Hotels (East) Limited, shares
of which are listed in BSE Ltd., and National Stock Exchange Ltd. Asian Hotels (East)
Limited holds directly 19% shares and GJS Hotels Limited holds 81% shares prior to
the scheme of arrangement. Consequent to the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking of G]5 with AHEL under the Scheme, all the preference shares and
debentures of the company stands converted in to equity shares and all shares held
by GJS in RHPL stands transferred to AHEL. Hence, RHPL has become a wholly
owned subsidiary of AHEL.

The Company is primarily engaged in the Hotel business and operating Hotel
“Hyatt Regency Chennai” a five star deluxe premium hotel situated in the city of
Chennai. The registered office of the Company is located at 365, Anna Salai,
Teynampet, Chennai -600 018, India.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS
are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules and other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules
there under, as amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the
Company’s functional currency

42
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

« Signifi nting Polici
1.3 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind A5 requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.4. Fair Value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

43
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

Mote 1: Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

1.5. Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
Property, Plant & Equipment are ready for use as intended by management. The
Company depreciates Property, Plant & Equipment over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follow:

P Building - 60 years
P Plant and Equipment - 15 years
P Intangibles - 6 years
»IT Hardwares - 3 years
b Office Equipment - 5 years
P Furniture & Fixtures - 8 years
» Motor Cars - 8 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances and other
non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed
under "Capital work-in-progress”. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property,
Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and Maintenance costs are recognized in net profit /
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

MNote 1: Signifi nting Polici

accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2015
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of the property, plant and equipment.

1.6. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the
date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the

45
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

MNaote 1: Significant Accounting Poli

indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-
recognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its intangible assets recognized as at 1st April, 2015 measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible

Assets.

1.7. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset measured at fair value
through Profit or loss are recognized immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories:

(i) Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

(ii)Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI

(iif)Financial Assets at Fair value through P&L
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Financial Asset at Amortized Cost

A ‘Financial Asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Asset at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for Financial Assets. Any financial asset, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a Financial Asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL
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Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
even on sale of investments in equity insturments.

De-recognition of Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. '

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial Assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial Assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI,
¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116,

d) Trade Receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 (referred to
as ‘contractual revenue receivables)

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL
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: Significant Accounting Policies (C
Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on Trade Receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

General Approach

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-months ECL
is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves, such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument,

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost, they are measured net of directly
attributable transaction cost. In case of Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial liabilities are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company's Financial Liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings.
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Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial Guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make the payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction cost that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount initially recognized less cumulative income recognized in
accordance with principles of Ind AS 115.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
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Note 1; Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

* a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

» a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is
possible ;

* a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of
outflow of resources is remote,

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. The Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed
in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date,

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

1.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
I.  Revenue from rendering of hospitality services is recognized when the
related services are performed and billed to the Customers.
IL  Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable,

However, Value Added Tax (VAT)/ Goods and Services Tax (G5T) are not received
by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on behalf of the
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government on value added to the commodity by the seller. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognized.

a) Revenue from sale of goods and services

Revenue including service charge, if any, from sale of goods and services is
recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and services. Revenue from the sale of goods
and services is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns, allowances and trade discounts.

b) Interest Income

For all Financial Assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial assets or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Dividend

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

1.10 Income Tax

A. Current Income Tax

Income Tax expense is recognized in net Profit/(Loss) in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in
which case it is recognized in other Comprehensive Income,
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M : Significant Accounting Polici :

Current Income Tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been substantively enacted, at the Balance Sheet date.

B. Deferred Tax

Deferred Income Tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred Income Tax Assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been substantively enacted, at the
Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effective
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and labilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. Deferred Income Tax Asset is recognized to the extent that future
probable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Income tax provision for the interim
period is made based on the best estimate of the annual average tax rate applicable
for the full financial year. Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee
share options in excess of compensation charged to income are credited to share
premium.

1.11Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs,
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MNote 1: Signifi nting Polici
1.12 Employee Benefits

Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined
contribution plan. The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in
accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanedus Provisions Act,
1952.The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in
which services are rendered.

Gratuity (Unfunded): Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost is
determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuation being
carried at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary. The retirement
benefits obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for recognized past service cost

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income
for the period in which they occur

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months are classified as short
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are
recognised during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the
contribution.

1.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and long-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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1: Significan nting Policies (Contd

1.15, Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity
Shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders by the
weighted average number of Equity Shares considered for deriving basic eamings
per equity share and also the weighted average number of Equity Shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares. Dilutive
potential Equity Shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented.

1.16. Foreign Currency Transaction

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the
relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or loss resulting from such transactions are included in the net Profit/ (Loss) in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency are measured at fair value or translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
of transaction,

1.17 Hedging

The Company has certain liabilities in Foreign Currencies. These are not hedged as
the same is naturally hedged against foreign inward remittance from foreign guests.
But, the Gain / Loss on such liabilities has been provided for in the books of accounts
at the end of the financial year and the same has been credited / debited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company.
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: Significant Accounting Polici onkd.
1.18 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leases as lessee (Assets taken on lease)

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.
Leases as lessor (assets given on lease)

When the company acts as lessor, it determines at the lease commencement whether
lease is finance lease or operating lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the beneflt derived from the asset given on
lease.

All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net
investment in the lease. Principal component of the lease receipts are adjusted
against outstanding receivables and interest income is accounted by applying the
interest rate implicit in the lease to the net investment.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies
Ind AS 115 Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.

1.19 New Standard/amendments and other changes effective 1st April, 2019

fa) Ind AS 116, Leases
The Company has adopted this Ind AS w.e.f, 1st April, 2019. However the company
has not entered into any lease arrangements. Thus there is no impact of the
amendment.
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Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)
(b) Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes Appendix C - Uncertainity over
Income Tax Treatment

The Company has adopted the amendments w.e.f 1st April, 2019. The impact of this
amendment is not material.

(c} Amendment to Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits relating to Plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement

The Company has adopted the amendments w.ef 1st April, 2019. As there is no

change in employee benefit plans, there is no effect of this amendment.

{d) Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs

The Company has adopted the amendments w.e.f 1st April, 2019. The Company has
not incurred any borrowing costs during the year. Thus there is no effect of this
amendment,

2. Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. During the year, no new standards or modifications in existing standards
has been notified which will be applicable from 1st April, 2020 or thereafter.
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amount in Rs.}
As at 31st As ak 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019

5 Investments
Unquoted Equity Shares
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss - fully paid

6,54,000 (Previous Year: 6,54,000) Class-A Equity Shares of Maple

Renewable Power Private Limited of Rs. 10/- each 29,873,442 29,835,480
3,35,900 (Previous Year: 1,63,500) Class-A Equity Shares of Iris

Ecopower Venture Private Limited of Rs. 10/- each 11,993,195 5,676,720
In Government Securities

Investments carried at cost

Mational Savings Certificate 5,000 10,000

41,871,637 35,522,200

& Other Financial Assets
{Unsecured, considered good by the management)

Security Deposits with

- Government Department 17,617,420 17,064,880
- Others 3,792,000 3,302,000
Fixed Deposit with Bank* 3.997.640 8,043,890

25,407,060 28,410,770

*Inclucdes Margin Money deposit - NIL (Previous Year: Rs, 80,43,890)

7 Other Non-Current Assels
Deposits with High Court 151,200,000 151,200,000
Balances with Statutory Authorities - 330,424
151,200,000 151,530,424

8 Inventories
(As taken valued and certified by the management)
(Valued at cost or Net Realisable Value, whichever is lower)

Food, Beverages & Tobacco 11,721,879 6,980,363
General Stores, Spares & Other supplies 653,210 1,359,754
12,375,089 8340117
9 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good by the management) 84,456,634 113,617,115
(includes Rs.11,56,386/ - (Previous Year Rs. 39,96,408) from Related
Parties Refer Note 37)

84,456,634 113,617,115

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or
jointly with any other person. Refer Note 37 for Trade or Other Receivables due from Subsidiaries or from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

108



ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks
= In Current Accounts
- Cheques on hand
Cash on hand (as certified by the management)

11 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good by the management)
Advance to employees

12 Other Financial Assets
Interest accrued on Term deposits
Interest accrued on EB deposits
Interest accrued on NSC

13 Current Tax Assets
Income Tax Refundable
Tax Deducted at Source and Tax Collected at Source

14 Other Current Assets
Balances with Statutory Authorities
Prepaid Expenses
Advance to Suppliers
Other Receivables

159

(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2020 2019

4,034,165 4,999,710

142,376 -
499 851 389,960
4,676,392 5,389,670
- 49,400
- 49,400
25,104 30,009
939,338 912,897
33 2,450
964,475 948,356
59,814 519 48,865,207
10,646,000 10,948,521
70,460,519 59,813,728
6,967,525 2,834,514
10,861,461 14,874,425
10,016,210 18,438,234

316,497 -
28,161,693 36,147,174
&0




ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
{Amount in Rs.)
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019

15 Share Capital
a) Authorised (Refer Note 46)
22,50,00,000 (Previous year: 15,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,250,000,000 1,550,000,000
NIL (Previous year: 43,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each - 430,000,000
MIL (Previous year: 1,40,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 140,000,000

b)

c}

e)

f)

2,250,000,000  2,120,000,000

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up

22,41,83,829 (Previous year: 15,41,73,829) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 2,241,838,290 1,541,738,290
each fully paid up
NIL {Previous year: 43,00,000) 12% Cumulative Redeemable - 430,000,000

Preference Shares of Rs.100/ - each fully paid up

2,241,838, 290 1,971,738,290

Paid up Equity Share Capital
22,41,83,829 (Previous year: 15,41,73,829) Equity 2,241,838,290  1,541,738,290
Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in cash

2,241,838,290 1,541,738,290

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year 154,173,829 154,173,829
Shares issued pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement between

Asian Hotel (East) Limited, GJS Hotels Limited and Robust Hotels 70,010,000 5
Private Limited (Refer Mote 46)

Atthe end of the year 224,153,829 154,173,829

Shares held by Holding/ultimate Holding Company and/or their subsidiariesfassociates
Out of Equity Shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company are as below:
G]5 Hotels Limited

NIL (Previous Year: 12,41,63,829) shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid - 1,241,638,290
Asian Hotels (East) Limited
22.41,83,823 (Previous Year: 3,00,10,000) shares of Rs.10/ - each fully paid 2,241,838,230 300,100,000

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per share.

The shareholders have the right to declare and approve dividend, as proposed by the Board of Directors for any
financial year, to be paid to the members according to their rights and interest in the profits. However, no larger
dividend shall be declared than is recommended by the Board of Directors.

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Name of the shareholder As at March, 2020 As at March, 2019
Equity Shares MNo. of Shares % held Mo, of Shares % held
GJ5 Hotels Limited - 124,163,829 81

Asian Hotels (East) Limited 224,183,823 100 30,010,000 19
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received
from the sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownership of shares.

There are & more nominee shareholders holding 1 share each, as nominated by Asian Hotels (East) Private
Limited
61
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Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 311 Mareh, 2020
{Amount in Rs.)
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019

16 Other Equity

A. Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve
Shares issued pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement between Asian Hotel (East)

Limited, GJ5 Hotels Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limiled (Refer Note 46) e :
Securities Premium

Opening Balanoe 2623,596,281 2.623,596,281
Shares issued pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement between Asian Hotel (East) 700,100,000 B
Limited, GJS Hotels Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limited (Refer Note 46)

Closing Balance 3323.696,281 2,623,596, 281
Retained Earnings

Opening Balance (1445 200,045)  (L219.160,727)
Shares issued pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement between Asian Hotel (East)

Limited, GJS Hotels Limited and Robust Hotels Private Limited (Refer Note 46) R :
Prodit/ (Loss) for the year 1164 3
Closing Balance 411 1 1 I
Total Reserves and Surplus a1, 1 236
B. Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance (3,627 305) (3.717.985)
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability {652AT 50,680
Closing Balance (4,279,777} (3627, 305)

1457550885  1,174.768,931

17 Non-current Liabilities

a)

Borrowings (Refer Note 46)
MIL (Previous year. 43,00,0000 12% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of = 430,000,000
Fs. 1004 - each fully paid up

Term Loan (Secured) (Refer Note 'a' below & Note 48)

From HDFC Limited 1, 142,400,000 1229550000

Less: Repayable within one vear 174,300,000 118,050,000
968,100,000 L111.500,000

Unsecured - Debentures (Refer Note 46)

MIL (Previous year: 1,55,00,000) 0.1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of - 791,650,918
Rs. 100//- gach

968, 100,000 2,333,150,918
Security Clause

The above term boan is secured by pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable properties both present and
future and equitable morigage by way of deposit of tithe deeds of immovable properties together with baildings & structures, plant
& equipment, furniture & fttings installedfeo be installed thereon situated at 355 Anna Salad, Teynampet, Chennal in the state of
Tamilnadu with IDE] Bank Ltd. Above securities are ranking paripassu for the Bank Guarantee facility availed by the Company
and further, secured by way of second charge on all book debts, operating cash Mows, revenues, commission and receivables both
present and Futwre, having first charge of TDBI Bank Lid for Cash Credit facility granted to the Company . The Cash credit facility
from IDB] Bank Lid, BG lacility from DB Bank Lad and Tenm Loan from HDFC Lid are further secured by corporate guarantee of
Asian Hobels (East) Limibed, Kolkata .

Terms of Repayment

The loan is repayable in 42 Quarierly Instalments being:

2 Quarterly instalments of Fs. 93,00,000 cach commenced fram 31st March, 2005 and ended on 30th June, 2005,

4 Craarterly instalments of Bs. $4.50,000 cach commenced from 30th September, 2015 and cnded on 30th June, 2016,

4 Quarterly instalments of Ks. 1,50,00,000 cach commenced from 30th September, 2016 and ended on 30th Jure, 2007,

4 Quarterly instalnvents of Rs. 1,95,00,000 each commenced from 30¢h September, 2017 and endded on 30th June, 2018,

4 Quarterly instalments of Rs. 2.53,50,000 each commenced from 30th Septenber, 2018 and ending on 30th June, 2019,

4 Quarterly instalments of Rs. 3,09.00.000 each commencing from 30th September, 2019 ard ending on 30th June, 2020,
-IM]’;MWBDIF}.S,?S»Dmm:arhmmem{ngmew.mm-pdndm;mm;m:,MI.

4 Quarterly instalmvents of Ks. 4.50.00.000 cach commencing from 30th September, 2021 and ending on 30th June, 2022 and 12
Cruarterly irstalments of Ks. 6,25.50,000 cach commencing from 30th September, 2022 and ending on 30th June, 2025 as per
Repayments Schedulbe letter dated 161k August, 2012
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{Amount in Rs.)
As at 31st March,  As at 31st March,
2020 2019
18 Non Current Provisions
For Gratuity 5,641,926 4310717
For Leave Travel Allowance 3,011,992 2374091
For Leave Benefits 1,251,834 1,432,254
9,905,752 8,117,062
19 Borrowings
Secured
Cash Credit Account with IDBI Bank Limited (Refer Note "a' below) 1,552 9656 12,874 616
Unsecured
Loan from Holding Company repayable on demand (Refer Note 37) 371,500,000 362,500,000
373,052,966 375,374,616

a) The above facility is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of entire stocks of raw materials, semi finished and finished
goods, consumable stores and spare parts including book debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies
receivable, both present and future and second charge in favour of HDFC Limited for Term Loan granted to the Company, The
above facility is further sccured by a pari pasu second charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable propertics including
movable machineries, tools & accessories present and future and Equitable Mortgage on Immovable property situated at 365,
Anna Salai, Chennai - 600018 with HDFC Lid for the Term Loan facility and Corporate Guarantee of Asian Hotels (East) Limited.

20 Trade Fayables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 22 693 508 14,809,359
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 79,302,556 58,905,471
{(Includes Related Partics Rs.16,66,461 :Previous Year : Bs.26,39329 -Refer Note 37)
101,996,064 73,714,850
21 Other Current Financial Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Mote 48) 174,300,000 118,050,000
Interest Accrued and due on Loan and Cash Credit (Refer Note Mo, 37) 19,363,125 7414911
Salary Payable 10,344,523 13,307,606
Contract Payroll Payable 1,731,539 1,966,788
Electricity Expenses Payable 3,209,278 6,754,448
Other Payables 171,843,710 138,807,137
380,792,175 256,300,590
22 Other Current Liabilities
Advance from Customers 11,531,103 19,966,118
Other Current Liabilities 3,724499 4,406,695
{Includes Related Partics Rs, 1,59,784 ; Previous Year Bs, 1,59,784- Refer Note 37)
Statutory Dues 17,338,042 19,796,618 _
32,593,644 44.169.431
23 Provisions
For Em
For Gratuity 48,752 42,825
For Leave Benefits 11,208 15,283
59,960 58,108
63
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24 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products
Solt Beverages, Wines and Liquer
Food and Smokes

Sale of Services

Fooms Revenue

Banguet Income

Health & Spa Revenue
Laundry Revenue

Auto Renlal Revenue
Communications
Equipment Revenue
Service Charge Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

25 Other Income
Interest Income (Gross)
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 10,099 (Previous Year RBs. 14,237))
From Term Deposits
From Others
Miscellaneous Income

(Tax deducted at source Rs. 2,10,383 (Previous Year Rs. 3,02,89%))

Insurance claim received

Fair value gain on Investment

Sundry Balances written Back (Net)
Total

26 Consumption of Provisions, Beverages, Smokes & Others

Opening Stock
Add : Purchases

Less : Closing Stock
Total Cost of Consumption

27 Employee Benefils Expense
Salaries, Wages & Bonus ele
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses *
Recruitment & Training

*Includes cost of provisions consumed in staff cafeteria
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{Amount in Ks.)

Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

March, 2020 March, 2019
59,665,675 55,629,171
332322702 331,801,379
391,988,377 387,430,550
437,928,936 484,060,546
43,469,926 58,242,014
6,575475 8,930,810
4,923,826 5,431,400
8,072,758 9,496,589
398,189 404,030
1,175,981 3,706,637
10,043,554 10,509,478
21,121,793 21402779
535,710,438 602,154,282
927,698,815 959,614,532
399,430 528,876
96,670 858,589
3300,234 £,802,155
25,894,941

4,630,437 6,160,680

= 689,133
35,141,712 17,049,433
6,980,363 11,237,572
119,421,808 104,525,081
126,402,171 115,765,652
11,721,879 6,980,363
114,680,292 108,785,289
146,129,791 142,658,141
9,542,052 9,593,987
20,337,139 18,733,188
2,737 816 2,271,993
178,746,798 173,257,309




ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amount in Rs.)
Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March, 2020 March, 2019
28 Finance Costs
Interest .
- On Term Loan 136,283,111 141,110,693
= On Cash Credit 2312197 2,M1,305
- On Unsecured Debentures - 84,985,813
- On Unsecured Loan 18,243,053 13,814,041
- On Others - 69,899
Other Borrowing Cost 616,268 1,395,778
157,454,609 243,417,529
29 Other Expenses
Contract Labour and Service 60,102,568 66,683,780
Linen, Room, Catering, other supplics 40,125,727 41,170,522
Operating Equipments Consumption 24,592,133 16,264,271
Fuel, Power & Light 5,620,682 98,655,020
Repairs & Maintenance
- To Building 8,909,769 7,166,986
- To Plant & Equipment 33,495,575 34,236 464
= To Others 2074174 3,917,252
Equipment Hiring Charges 4,930,274 3,968,330
Rates & Taxes 33,565,467 20,238,512
Advertisement & Publicity 43,071,074 34,675,093
Insurance 2949615 5,030,261
Met Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation 4,509,264 8,853,342
Printing & Stationery 2,775,248 3,178,884
Directors' Sitting Fees 61325 24,000
Travelling & Conveyance 11,666,046 11,941,912
Professional and Consultancy Fees 5,399,714 6,350,180
Filing Fees* 1,035,585 22,800
Communication Expenses
Cost of Calls 1,958,676 3,360,884
Telephone Charges 41,183 39,523
Lease Line Rentals 107,153 800,864
Technical Services 28,359,020 32,730,030
Brokerage & Commission 41,842,448 48,794 655
Payment to Auditors
- As Auditor 490,000 350,000
- For Tax Audit 100,000 100,000
- For Other Services 5,000 -
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 46,970,492 21,339,043
Loss on sale of Investments - 2,331,360
Miscellaneous Expenses 9,183,433 4,703,239
494,541,645 476,977,200

* Filling fee includes Rs.10,14,000 paid towards increasing authorised share capital of the company
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Other Notes

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments not provided for

Asat As at
31= March, 2020 | 31« March, 2019
Rs Rs.

i) Bank Guarantees - 34,67 373
i) Commitments

Estimated amount of Capital Contracts pending to be 1,04,69,858 1,81,47,271

executed
o Clai ,
iii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 34,680 §2.180
iv) Disputed Excise Duty and Penalty from April 2012 to

October 2015 . 4930507
v} Pending claims from IOC Limited for non-submission

of “C’ forms for purchase of diesel 4,00,000 4,00,000

31. As 43,00,000 Preference shares of Rs, 100/ - each are covered into Equity shares under the scheme of
arrangement between GJS Hotels Limited, Asian Hotels (East) Limited and the company, the
dividend on these preference shares is no more payable by the company. Hence the Company is not

32,

required to disclose Contingent liability as done till last year.

F5.2,26,93,508 (Previous year- Fs.1,48,09,359) is due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
(identified based on information made available during the year by such enterprises to the
Company). No interest in terms of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

has been either paid or accrued during the year.

Defined Benefit Flans / Long Term Compensated Absences - As per Actuarial Valuation as on 31=
March, 2020 and recognized in the financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Scheme
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Gratuity Unfunded Leave Encashment
Unfunded
I Year ended | Year ended | Yearended | Year ended
Components of Employer Expense | 315t March, 31 March, | 31* March, 31+ March,
2020 29 2020 209
Rs. Rs. Es. Es.
1 | Current Service Cost 17,77.724 13,07.011 3,73,382 696,351
2 | Interest Cost 246,802 2,53,435 35,667 52,488
3 | Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses 6,52,472 (50,680 12,36,843 11,77,558
4 | Total expense recognised in
the statement of Profit and
Loss 20,24,526 19,82.070 16,45,892 19,26 497
Il | Net Asset/{Liability) recognised in
Balance Sheet as at 31st March
Present Value of Defined
1 Benefit Obligation 56,90,678 43,53542 12,63.042 14,47,537
2 Status (Surplus,/ Deficit) (56,90,678) | (43,53,542) (12,63,042) | (14,47,537)
Net Asset/(Liability)
recognised in Balance
3 Sheet (56,90,678) | (43,53,542) (12,63.042) | (14,47.537)
1l | Change in Defined Benefit
Obligation (DBO) during the year
1 Present Value of DBO at the
beginning of the year 43,53.542 41,03,510 14,47 537 18,38,761
2 Current Service Cost 17,77,724 13,07.011 373382 6,96,351
3 Interest Cost 246,802 2,53435 35,667 52,488
4 Acluarial (Gains)/ Losses 652472 {90,680} 12,36,843 11,77 658
5 Benefits Paid 13,39,862 16,41,358 18,30,387 2317721
6 Present Value of DBO at the
end of the year 56,90,678 43,53,542 12,63,042 14 47,537
IV | Actuarial Assumptions
1 Mortality Table TALM{2006- | TALM(2006- | TALM(2006- | TALM(2006-
08) Ultimate | 08) Ultimate | 08) Ultimate | 08) Ultimate
2 Discount Bate (per annum) 6.70% 7.72% 6.70% 7.72%
3 Rate of escalation
in Salary ( per annum) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
V| Amount Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI):
Actuarial (Gain) /Loss recognized
during the year 6,52,472 (90, 680) - -
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MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Defined Benefit Plans / Long Term Compensated Absences - As per Actuarial Valuation as on 31=
March, 2020 and recognized in the financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Scheme
(Contd...)

Experience adjustment on account of actuarial 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
assumption of Gratuity:

Rs. Rs. Rs,
1. Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31st March | 56,90,678 |  43,53,542 | 41,03,510 |
2. Plan Assets ag at 31= March =
3. Surplus/ (Deficit) (6,52,472) 90,680 | (8,62,800)

Experience adjustment of Obligation (2,82,852) (59,104) | 10,05479
MNote: !

1

3.

3.

35.

37.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet date for the estimates term of obligations.

. The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market.

The gratuity plan and earned leave is unfunded.

In the opinion of the Management, the value of realization of Current and Non Current Assets in
the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the
Balance Sheet.

The timing difference relating mainly to depreciation and unabsorbed losses result in net deferred
tax asset as per IND A5 12 “Income Taxes”. As a prudent measure, the net Deferred Tax Assets’
relating to the above has not been recognized in the financial statements.

The Company does not have more than one reportable segment in accordance with the principle
outlined in IND AS 108, the disclosure requirements on “Segment Reporting” is not applicable. The
Company operates presently only in India.

Disclosure in respect of related parties as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 24 are given
below:-
A, Key Managerial Personnel

a. Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf, Director

b. Mr. A. Srinivasan, Director

¢. Mr. Umesh Saraf, Director

d. Mr. Varun Saraf, Director

e. Mr, Pawan Kumar Kakarania , Independent Director (resigned w.e.f 09.11.2019 )
f. Mr. Soumya Saha, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f 13.01.2020)
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g. Mr. Rama Shankar Jhawar, Independent Director (appointed w.e.f 13.01.2020)
h. Ms. Rita Bhimani, Independent Director (appointed w.e.f. 13.01.2020)

i. Mr. T.N. Thanikachalam , Vice President & CFO
j- Ms. N. Muthulakshmi (resigned w.e.f. 08.10.20118)

k. Ms. T Ramyaa, Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. 26.06.2019)
l. Ms. Manisha Sharma, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 29.06.2019)

37. Disclosure in respect of related parties as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 24 are given
below:- (Contd...)

B. Holding Company:

a. Asian Hotels (East ) Limited (AHEL)

C. Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise Significant

Influence :

a. Asian Hotels (East) Limited (AHEL)
b. G]S Hotels Limited (G]S)

¢. Juniper Hotels Private Limited (JHPL)

d. Juniper Investments Limited (JIL)

€. Chartered Hotels Private Limited (CHPL)

f. Chartered Hampi Hotels Private Limited (CHHPL)

g. Unison Hotels Limited (UHL)

h. Taragaon Regency Hotels Limited (TRHL)
i. Samra Importex Private Limited

j- Blue Energy Private Limited

k. Polygon Management Advisory Private Limited

l. Bodhgaya Guest House Pvt. Lid.

m. Salkia Estate Development Pvt. Ltd.
n. Yak & Yeti Hotel Ltd

o. Nepal Travel Agency (P) Itd

D. Disclosure of Transactions during the year

Name of Person Nature of Transactions ::::;:f:lg 2020 :;rﬁ:iehd’ 2019
Rs. Rs.
Reimbursement of Expenses(Net) 6,78,689 5,16,209
Sales Promotion = 15,116
AHEL Sale of Services 1,649,584 36,88243
Interest on Unsecured Loan (TDS
deducted Rs. 13,2:!,3&3&] 1,52,43,033 1,38,14.041
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Mame of Person Mature of Transactions ::;r&:fc: 2020 ::::m 2019
Rs. Rs.

Receipt of service 2230774 -

Loan taken 90,00,000 14,00,00,000

| Reimbursement of Expenses 719,972 98,264

JHPL Sale of Services 68,982 529,047

Sales Promotion 53,017 1,863,600

UHL Reimbursement of Expenses - 19,037

CHPFL Sale of Services 40,423 506,544

Reimbursement of Expenses 42,280 17.702

TRHL Reimbursement of Expenses - 78883

Interest on Debentures - 15,50,000

GJS Debenture interest refunded as per 46,50,000 _
scheme 5

i Legal Consultancy Fee 6,00,000 6,00.000

Mr. A, Srinivasan Siﬂ'ing Fee 1,000 4,000

Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf | Sitting Fee 5,000 5,000

Mr.Umesh Saraf Sitting Fee 9,000 9,000

Mr.Soumya Saha Sitling Fee 10,000 3,000

;‘;ﬁ;:“ BN Sitting Fee 5,000 1,000

Mr. Varun Saraf Sitting Fee 1,000 2,000

o pamaShankar | Sitting Fee 15,000 :

Ms. Rita Bhimani Sitting; Fee 15,000 -

Mr.T.N.Thanikachalam | Remuneration* 37.27.640 3794179

Ms. M. Muthulakshmi | Remuneration* - 10,24,297

gl b Remuneration® 140,613 2,82,830

Ms. Manisha Sharma Remuneration® 3,34,565 -

* The post employment benefits of KMPs excludes gratuity which cannot be separately identified
from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

E. Balances as at year end
MName of Person | Nature of Balances Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Rs. Rs.
AHEL Corporate Guarantee 1,60,95,00,000 1,60,95,00,000
Unsecured Loan 37,15,00,000 36,25,00,000
Trade Payables 237,018 19.66,957
Trade Receivables 28,29,236
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Interest accrued and due (net of

TDS Rs. 8,22,260/-) 82,40,134 74,00,342
JHPL Trade Payables 14,29443 6,54,671

Trade Receivables 6,05,038 572,188
UHL Other Payables 1,59,784 1,59,784

Trade Receivables 17,682 17,682
CHL Trade Payables - 17,702

Trade Receivables 1,18,413 4,98,418
TRHL Trade Receivables 78,883 78,883
GJS 0.1% Unsecured Cumulative -

Mon- Convertible Debentures, 79,16,50,918

38, Earnings in Foreign Currency (Net):-

-On Receipt Basis*(Rs.) 24,08,90,789 29,30,92,674

*On the basis of Foreign Inward Remittance Certificates received.

39. The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) globally and in India has impacted business and
economic activities in general. The spread of COVID-19, along with nationwide lockdown starting
from 25th March, 2020, has caused serious threat to human lives and resulted in reduction in global
demand and disruption in supply chain, which has forced the business to restrict the operations in
short term. The Company is engaged in Hotel business. The Hotel business is impacted due to
COVID-19 since end of February 2020. Though this has impacted only the performance of 4t
quarter in FY 2019-20, the performance for 2020-21 will be severely impacted due to COVID-19.
The company has already initiated action plans including control of fixed overheads to reduce the
impact on the profitability.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2020 are as follows:

(Amount in Fs.)
Particulars Amortised Fair Value Fair Value  Total Carrying  Total Fair
Cost through PL through OCI Value Value
ASSETS
Non - current Assets
i} Investments 5,000 41,866,637 - 41,871,637 41,871,637
il) Other Financial Assets 25,407,060 . - 25,407,060 25,407,060
25,412,060 41,866,637 = 67,278,697 67,278,697
Current Assets
i) Trade Receivables B AS6,634 = = B4456,634 84,456,634
i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,676,392 - - 4,676,392 4,676,392
iii) Other Financial Assets 964,475 - - 964,475 * 54 AT
%0,097 501 - - 90,097,501 90,097,501
Total 115,509,561 41,866,637 - 157,376,198 157,376,198
LIABILITIES
MNon - current Liabilities
i) Borrowings 968,100,000 - = 965,100,000 968,100,000
968,100,000 - - 68,100,000 968,100,000
Current Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 373,052,966 - = 373,052,966 373,052,966
{ii) Trade Payables 101,996,063 . - 101,996,063 101,996,063
{iii) Other Financial Liabilitics 280,792,175 : . 380,792,175 380,792,175
855,841 205 = - 855,841,205 855,841,205
1623941205 - - 123941,005 _ 1,823,941,205_
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd...)

Financial Instrumenis by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2019 are as follows:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Amortised Fair Value  Fair Value Total Carrying Total Fair
Cost through PL.  through Value Value
0cCI
ASSETS
Non - current Assels
i) Investments 10,000 35,512,200 . 35,522,200 35,522 200
ii) Other Financial Assets 28410,770 - - 28,410,770 28,410,770
25,420,770 35,512,200 - 63,932,970 63,932,970
Current Assets
i) Trade Receivables 113,617,115 - - 113,617,115 113,617,115
ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5389670 - - 5,389,670 5,389,670
iii) Loans 49400 - - 49,400 49,400
iv) Other Financial Assets 948,356 - - 948,356 48,356
120,004,541 - - 120,004,541 120,004,541
Total Assets 148,425,311 35,512,200 - 183,937,511 183,937,511
LIABILITIES
Mon - current Liabilities
i) Borrowings 1,111,500,000 - - 1,111,500,000  1,111,500,000
i) 12% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of 100/ -
each
fully paid up in cash 430,000,000 - - 430,000,000 430,000,000
iii) Unsecured Debentures - 791,650,918 = 791,650,918 791,650,918
1,541,500,000 791,650,915 P 2333150918 2,333,150,918
Current Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 375,374,616 - - 375,374,616 375,374,616
(ii) Trade Payables 73,714,850 . - 73,714,850 73,714,850
(1) Other Financial Liabilities 286,300,850 - - 286,300,590 286,500,890
735,390,356 - - 735,390,356 735,390,356
Total 2.276,890,356 791,650,918 - 3,068,541,274 3,068,541,274
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41 Fair value hierarchy
This explains the estimates and judgements made in determining the fair values of Financial Instruments that
are measured at fair value and amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements, To Provide an indication about reliability of the inplits used in determining the fair values, the
company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table:

Level 1 : Includes Financial Instruments measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 : Includes Financial Instruments which are not traded in active market but for which all significant
inputs required to fair value the instruments are observable, The fair value is calculated using the valuation
technique which maximises the use of cbservable market data.

Level 3: Includes those instruments for which one or more significant input are not based on observable market
data.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of 31st March,
2020:

Fair value measurement using

Particulars Fair Value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ASSETS
Mon - current Assets
i) Investments 41,871,637 - 41,866,637 5,000
i) Other Financial Assets 25,407 060 - - 25,407 060
67,278,697 a 41,566,637 25,412,060
Current Assets
i) Trade Receivables 84,456,634 - - 84,456,634
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,676,392 - - 4,676,392
iti) Other Financial Assets 964 475 - - 964,475
90,097 501 - - 90,097 501
Total 157,376,198 - 41,866,637 115,509,561
LIABILITIES
Mon - current Liabilities
i) Term Loan 968,100,000 - - 968,100,000
968,100,000 - - 963,100,000
Current Liabilities
(i) Term Loan 373,052,966 -
(if} Trade Payables 101,996,063 -
(iif) Other Financial Liabilities 380,792,175 -
855,841,205 =
Total __ 1,823941.205 =
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41 Fair value hierarchy (Contd...)

ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of 31st of

March 2019

Particulars

ASSETS

Mon - current Assets

i} Investments

ii) Other Financial Assels

Current Assels

i) Trade Receivables

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
iii) Loans

iv) Other Financial Assets

Total

LIABILITIES
Mon - current Liabilities
i) Term Loan

ii) 12% Cumulative Redeemable e
Preference Shares of 100/ - each fully paid

up in cash
iii) Unsecured Debentures

Current Liabilities

{i) Term Loan

{if) Trade Payables

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

Total

(Amount in Rs.)
" Fair value measurement using
HlriNalne Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
35,522,200 - 35,512,200 10,000
28,410,770 - - 28.410.770
63,932,970 - 35,512,200 28,420,770
113,617,115 - - 113,617,115
5,389,670 - - 5,389,670
49,400 - - 49,400
948,356 - - 948,356
120,004,541 - - 120,004,541
183,937,511 - 35,512,200 148,435,311
1,111,500,000 - = 1,111,500,000
430,000,000 430,000,000
791,650,918 - 791,650,918 %
2,333,150,918 - 791,650,918  1,541,500,000
375,374,616 - : 375,374,616
73,714,850 - . 73,714,850
286,300,890 - - 286,300,890
735,390,356 - - 735,390,356
3,068,541,274 - 791,650,918  2,276,890,356

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other financial assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value due to their short term
nature and are in close approximation of fair value,

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to liquidity risk and credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with

its financial liabilities,

The Company maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to manage day to day operation. The Company
has financial support from Asian Hotels (East) Limited, the holding company, to meet its financial liabilities

for repayment.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)
The table below provides detadls regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as of 315t March, 2020

Amount in Rs.
Particulars less than 3 3 months to 1-5years 5 to 20 years Total
months 1 year
Term Loan - 33052966 90.55.50,000 6,25,50,000 1,34,11,52.966
Trade payables - - . . -
Orher Financial Liabilitics - 30792175 . - 36,07.92.175

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial labilites as of 315t March, 2019
Amount in Rs.

Particulars less than 3 3 months to 1-5years 5 to 20 years Total
months 1 year =

Tern Loan - 375374616 TO.87,50,000 31,27,50,000 1,48,68,74,616

12% Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares of 100/ -

R fully ekl wp STl - - 430000000 43,00,00,000

Unsecured Debentures - - - 79,16,50.918 79.16.50.918

Trade payables - - - - -

Other Financial Liabilities 28,63,00,5%90 . - 28,63,00,850

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that eounter party will not meet its obligation under a Enancial instrument leading to a financial loss,
The Company is exposed to credit risk from investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents loans and other
financial asscts.

The Company's credit risk is minimised as the Company's fnancial assets are cancfully allocated to counter partics
reflecting the credit worthiness.

The Company's credit risk is minimised as the Company's financial assets are carcfully allocated to counter parties
reflecting the credit worthiness.

The maximum exposure of financial asset to credit risk are as follows : Amount in Rs.
Particulars F1at March 2020 31st March 2009
Investments 4,187,537 3,35,22,200
Trade Receivables B4 56,634 113517115
Cash & cash cquivalents 46,76,392 53,589,670
Loans - 49,400
Ciher Financial Assets 2,63,71,535 2,93,59,126

43 CAPITAL MANANGEMENT
For the purpose of managing capital, Capital includes issued equity share capital and reserves attributable to the equity
holders.
The objective of the company's capital management are toc
- Safeguard their ability to continue as going concem so that they can continue to provide benefits to their shareholders.
= Maximisation of wealth of the sharcholder.
= Maintain optimum capital structure to reduce the cost of the capital,

The Company manages its capilal structure and makes adjustments in Hght of changes in economic conditions and
requirement of financial covenants, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new shares . The company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans
and bormowings .

Gearing Ratio is as follows : Amount in Rs.
Particulars st March 2020  ¥1st March 2019

Net debt 56,81,00,000 2.13,31,50,918

Total net debt and equity 4,69,74,89.175 5.04,96,58,139
Gearing Fatio M61% 46.20%

In erder to achieve this overall cljective, the Company's eapital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any loans and borrowing in the current period.
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44. C. LF. Value of Capital Goods imported

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31+ March, 2020 | 31 March,2019
Rs. Rs,
C.LF. Value of Capital Goods Imported 9,24,455 -
45. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:-
Year Ended Year Ended
Expenditure 31+ March,2020 | 31 March,2019
Rs. Rs.
Fees for Technical Services 1,54,22,625 91,15,09
Travelling Expenses - 238,555
Commission 2,47,61,425 2,69,21,806
Management Fee 2,33,93 469 32,730,031
Business Promotion & Advertisement 46,42,720 -
Professional & Consultancy 4,90,985 -
Others 4,559,453 250,075

46. Pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the

Company (RHPL) have approved a Scheme of Arrangement on 10th February, 2017 for (1)
demerger of the investment division (Demerged Undertaking) of its holding company GJS Hotels
Limited (G]S) for merger with Asian Hotels (East) Limited AHEL (the holding company of GJS)
and (2) to reorganise the Share Capital and Debentures of RHPL with effect from the Appointed
Date, being close of business hours on 31st March, 2016. The said scheme was approved by the
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata & Chennai Bench vide orders dated 6
February2019 and 24™ June 2019 respectively.

As per the sanction order of the scheme, all the preference shares and debentures of the company
has been converted into equity shares. Also, consequent to the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking of GJS with AHEL under the Scheme, all shares held by GJS in RHPL stand
transferred to AHEL and RHPL has became a wholly owned subsidiary of AHEL.

7
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

The accounting of this arrangement was done as per the Scheme and the same has been given effect
to in the financial statements as under:

a)

b)

d)

e}

g)

Consequent to demerger of demerged undertaking of GJSHL to AHEL in terms of the
Scheme, AHEL become the holder of all Preference Shares and Debentures of the Company.

All shares held by GJSHL in the Company stand transferred to AHEL,

Authorised Share Capital of the Company reorganized and increased to Rs. 2,25,00,00,000/ -
divided into 22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and Clause V (Capital Clause) of the
Memorandum of Association altered accordingly.

43,00,000 12% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each (Specified
Preference Shares) converted into 3,20,35,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 20/- each (Face value of
Rs.10/- each & premium of Rs. 10,/- each).

1,55,00.000 0.1% Unsecured Cumulative Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100/- each
(Specified Debentures) converted into 3,79,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 20/- each (Face value
of Rs.10/ - each & premium of Rs. 10/- each).

The above equity shares have been allotted to AHEL in full and final satisfaction of all
claims in respect of Specified Prefercnce Shares and Specified Debentures including in lieu
of the amount paid up thereon and all arrears of dividends and interest thereon.

Consequent to conversion of Specified Preference Shares and Specified Debentures balance
sum of Rs. 57,98,00,000 had been credited to Business Reconstruction Reserve Account,
Which is adjusted against Capital Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

47. Earnings Per Share

Numerator -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (Rs.) (20,81,16,492) (22,60,39.318)
| Denominator

Weighted average number of Equity Shares 22,41,83,829 22,41,83,829
Face Value per Share (RBs.) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

-Basic (0.93) (1.01}
-Diluted (0.93) (1.01)

EFS of the previous period re-instated accordance with the approved scheme,
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48. The company in pursuance of RBI circular DOR.No.BP.BC47/ 21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27,
2020 & Circular DOR.No.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20 dated May 23, 2020 giving relief to the
Term Loan borrower across the nation on account of COVID-19 has opted for moratorium of
interest and principal payments on the term loan taken from HDFC Limited which become due
during March 2020 to August 2020.

49. The Board of Directors approved a Scheme of Arrangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital
between the Company and its holding Company, Asian Hotels (Fast) Limited (AHEL) and their
respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230-232 and 66 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Scheme) for inter alia:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

demerger and transfer of the undertaking, business, activities and operations of AHEL
pertaining to “Securities Trading Unit’ comprising of treasury/liquid investments from
AHEL into the Company, as a going concern in compliance with Section 2(19AA) of Income
Tax Act, 1961;

capitalization of reserves of the AHEL and issuance and allotment of fully paid-up bonus
equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 (Indian rupees ten)by AHEL to its equity
shareholders (as of the Record Date), in the ratio 2:1 that is, 1 (one) new bonus fully paid-up
equity share having face value of Rs. 10/~ (Ten) each for every 2 (two) Equity Shares of the
AHEL having face value of Rs. 10 /- (Ten) each held by a sharcholder of AHEL as of the
Record Date;

reorganization and reduction of shares of the Company held by AHEL (without any
consideration)with ‘' Appointed Date’ being the same as the Effective date or such other date
as may be modified/ fixed by the Tribunals; and

upon effectiveness of the Scheme the Company shall issue & allot 1(one) fully paid-up
equity share of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10/- each for every 1 {one) fully
paid-up equity share of the AHEL having a face value of Rs. 10/- held by a shareholder of
AHEL as on the Record Date (as determined in terms of the Scheme and the 2013 Act) and
the shares of the Company shall be listed and admitted for trading on all the stock
exchanges where the equity shares of AHEL are listed.

AHEL has received Observation Letters from Mational stock Exchange of India Ltd {NSE) and
BSE Limited (BSE) vide their letters dated 21.05.2020 so as to file the Scheme with the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal Benches, Kolkata & Chennai.

9
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MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

50. Derivative instruments and foreign currency exposures
a. Foreign currency exposure outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date is Rs. 8,05,20,455/ - (previous
year Bs. 581,07,813)
b, Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposures as at the Balance Sheet date is NIL
(previous year NIL)

51. Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to Notes 1 to 51

As per our Report annexed FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For P.Lunawat & Associates
Chartered Accountanis =

Firm Registration No.:328046E

W Director
il
(Pankaj Lunawat )
Proprietor gl
Membership No.: 067104 Company Secretary Vice President &
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer
Date: 24.07.2020
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
HYATT REGEMCY CHENNAJ, 365 ANMA SALAL, TEYNAMPET, CHENNAI - 600 018

STATEMENT OF UNALDITED FINARCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER/HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTOMBER 2020

{Rs. In lakhs, except sharg and per share data)|

1

STANDALONE
Quarter Ended Half Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
30.09.2020 30.06.2020 30.09.2019 | 30092020 | 30.09.2019 | 31002000
Unawdited Unawdited Unaudited | Unawdited | Unawdited Audined
A | Ocoupancy® 23.27%} 18.08%) 78.30%] H0.6TR] Ta40%] RN
B_| Average Room rent (ARR) 1368 3,209 5.345 a7M] 53 5,400
| a _
1 |Revenue from Operations 25776 18439 616,75 57015 4,933.38 9,176.99
2| Other Income 12456 240 1.24 145.96 FINT] 35142
3| Total Income [1+2) 41232 30579 162759 718.11 495652 9,638.41 |
4| Expenses
#) | Cost of Material Conumed 459 2002 30111 5461 57636 114680
b1 | Employes Benefits Expente 16647 214.95 452,86 38142 £95.55 1.787.47
) | Finance Costs 39966 373.14 40047 TrLED 80114 1.574.55
) | Depreciation and Amer Expense 356.73 a4nal 578.20 84516 1,153.26 1.301.84
€] | Fuel, Power & Light £8.94 6607 235.81 13501 465,35 B56.21
1) | Repairs, Maintenance & Refurbishing 3147 3210 121.85 63.57 FEFET] 48480
Operating and General Experises 16157 158.07 95534 319.94 199165 354441
Tatal Expéntes 1,250.73 131278 | 30454 57251 6.122.54 11,756.07
& | Profit from operations before exteplional ems and tax
|13-4) (E4T.41]) [1.006.93) [417.64) [1.B54.40) [1,166.02) 12.127.66)|
€ _| Exceptional tem = . 1 -1 146.501 13650}
7 |ProfitfiLos) from ordinary activithes before tax [5-E) (B47.41) 12,006.991] [417.64) [1.854.40] &7 (208116}
8 | Tax Expense
a) | Cusrent Tax
b | Deferred Tax - - . - - .
5| Met Profinj [Loss] for the period/year (7-8] [ [ @76 (Lasan] (s [2.081.16]|
10 | Other Comprihendve ncome
A i) e that will not be reclagsified 1o pofit o loss - * 15521
) Income tax relsting Lo ibems that will not be
|reclasiified to profit of kss
B, | i} Items that wil be reclassfied 1o pefit or loss
] Income tax relating to 1tems that will be reclassilied
o prafit or logs
11 | Totsl Comprehenshve | for the period,year (9410} (847 41} 11,006.59) (91768 (nesean)  (Luesy| (287690
17 | Paidup Eauity Share Capital (Face Value Rs. 10/} 2.241836,150 | 2.241.838.090 | 2341.635.290 | 2.241,836,290 | 2.341.835.290 | 2.241.838.250
13 | Reterves excluding Revaluation Resenves 1L AH7.550, 855
14 | Basic Earnings per Shase (in Rs.) (038)) 10L45) 0.1 10.831] {0.500 I&%
15| Duluted Earning Per Shae (i Rs.) [EL| (045 10.15] 1083} [CEE 10,53
Notes

The above unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 30th September 2020 were reviewed and recommanded by the Audit Committee and approved by
the Board of Dinectors of the Comapany a8 thelf redpective meetings held on 09.11.2020.

2 The limited review of the financlal results for the quarter ended 30th September, 2000 as required wnder Regulation 33 of the SEBI [Usting Obligations and
Disclosune Requirements] Regulations, 2015 has been carried ot by the statutory auditors, The limited review report contains unmadified opinion,

3 The financial results have been prepared In sccondance wil Indian Accounting Statndands (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies At 2013 and
other recognised acocunting practices and policies to the extent applicabie.
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4 The Board of Direciers approved a Scheme of Arrangement, Demerger and Reduction of Capital between the Company and its holding Comparry, Aslan Hotels
mwmuwmwmuwwummnmﬁﬂmwmmﬂ.
AHEL has recehed Observation Letters from National stock Exchange of india Lid (M5E) and B3E Uimited (B30) vide their ketners dated 21053000 50 23 to file the
Schemie with the Honble Natkona! Comparmy Livw Tribunal Benches, Eoliats & Chennal.
O 252k Auspust, th Company inttituted the schemie Jppbeation with the Hea'bie NCLT, Chennal Bench theough mall, An urpency spplication was alao been filed
on 17k September, 3000 whene RHPL had prayed belore the Tribunal ta st the above matter urpeatly and thereafter complied with the other conditions. a5
presoribed by the Tribunal in this regard. The wipency application was lsted before the Tribunal on 1ith October, Xablwhentin the Bench alicwed the urgendy
apglicatinn and reserved s order, The order s stll swalted.

5 The cutbeeak of Coronavirus [DOVID-19) globally and in India has Impacted butineds and economic activites in peotral. The spread of COVID-19, slocg with
nationwide lockdown starting from 2h March, 2000, has caused serbous Threat 13 human livis and fesuled 1A recuction in global demand and disraption in
mmmmmmmnmmmummmmumnwmmmim-mmdmm
COVID-19 since end of Febraary 2020, The prriormance for J020- 31 will be severely impacted dus to DOVID-19, The ompany has slresdy initiated sction plans
inchading cortred of flued cwerheads to reduce the Imaac on the prolitability.

Alga, the company in purtuance of BB circular DORNGUBP BCAT/S 21.04,048/2019-20 dated Maech 17, 020 & Cwcular DORNGBFBC 712104 048/ 200920
dated Moy T3, 2000 giving neliel 1o the Term Lodn borrower cross the nation on acoount of COMID-19 has opted for moratorium of intenest and prindpal
paymaents on the berm kg Baken Irom HOFC Lirmitied which beoarrs due during March 2000 to August 2000,

6 Figures for the previous pericds have been re-grouped/rearranged wherever found necessary.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Robuit Hotels Private Umited

Date: 09.11.2000 Diarecton
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ROBUST HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Kolkata
09.11.2020
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{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 30.09.2020 | As at31.03.2020|
5l. No. Particulars (Unaudited) (Audited)
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 50,878.05 51,706.94
|b) Other Intangible Assets 62.55 56.22
¢} Financial Assets
i} Investment 321.60 418.72
i) Other Financial Assets 232.35 254,07
d) Other non-current assets 1,512.00 1,512.00
Total - Non-current assets 53,006.56 53,947.95
2 |Current assets
a) Inventories 118.35 123.75
b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 537.88 84457
ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 60.69 46.76
i) Loans - .
iv) Other Financial Assets 3.70 9.64
c) Current Tax Assets 617.49 704.61
d) Other current assets 205.08 281,62
Total - Current assets 1,543.19 2,010.95
TOTAL - ASSETS 54,549.74 55,958.90
B 1Enurr'r AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 2241838 22418.38
b) Other Equity 13,021.11 14,875.51
Total-Equity 35,439.49 37,293.89
2 |Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,356.46 9,681.00
b) Provisions B0.13 99.06
Total - Non-current liabilities 10,436.60 9,780.06
3 |Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 3,791.92 3,730.53
ii) Trade Payables - -
total cu.rtslanﬁmg dues of micro enterprises and 206.33 226.94
small enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 834.28 660.72
enterprises and small enterprises
i) Other Financial Liabilities 3,642.19 3,945.04
b} Other Current Liabilities 198.41 321.13
c) Provisions 0.53 0.60
Total - Current liabilities 8,673.66 8,884.95
TOTAL - EQUTY AND LIABILITIES 54,549.74 55,958.90
By order of the Board of Directors

For Robust Hotels Private Lingited




ROBUST HOTELS FRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEFTEMBER, 2020 (As per IndAS)
{Amount in Rs.)|
. Period ended Year Ended
Particulars 30th September, 2020 31st March, 2020
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (loss) before tax (185.440,319) (208.116492)|
Adjustment for :
amortization 84,515,888 230,183,675
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fived asscls . 46,970,492
Interest Expense on Borrowings 67,929,506 138,595,308
Provision for Gratuity 131,107 2,676,998
Provision for Leave Encashment 199,305 1,645,892
Interest income (M7.797) (1,316,100)
Interest on Debentures . {4.650,000)
Sundry balances written back (net) . . |
Difference in Fair value of Investment in Maple Rencwable Power Private Ltd &
Iris Ecopower Venture Private Ltd G .
Intercst on Debentures and Preference Shares - -
Operating profit before working capital changes (25,990,646) 201,359,235
Movements in working capital :
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables in Financial Liabilitics 15,295,578 28,281,213
Increase/ (decrease) in other current labilities (6,977) (11,575, 787)
Increase, (decrease) in other current financial liabilities (30,285,116) 38,241,285 |
Increase) (decrease) in non current provisions (2.222.540) (3.186,672)
Increase/ (decrease) in current provisions (12271,050) 1852
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables in Financlal Assets 30,668,971 29,160,481
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories in Current Assets 539,812 (4.034,972)
Decrease [/ (increase) in other Financial Assets 2171.5% 3,003,710
Decrease [/ (increase) in other Financial Assets under current asset FMAIE (16.119)
Decrease / (increase) in loans in Financial Assels - 49.400
Deecrease / (increase) in other Current Assets 753,802 7,985,481
Decrease / (increase) in other Non current asset - 330,424
Cash generated from f{used in) operations (13,8652,361) 289,599,631
Less: Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (8,711,904) 10,646,791
Net cash flow fromy (used in) Operating Activities (A) (5,190 458) 278,952,840
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fived Asscts (2259.7M) (58402761
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets B 2,556,500
Purchase of current investments - {L
Sale of current Investments 2,720,000 .
Puchase of National Saving Certificates -
Sale of National Saving Certificates - 10,000
Interest received 317,797 1,316,100
Net cash flow fromy(used in) Investing Activities (B) 778,003 156,249,161
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 67,546,236 (87.150,000)
Procoeds from Short Term Bomm'nws cC . 14,138,811 (11,321,650)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - Unsecured Loan {8000, 000) 000,000
Interest paid on borrowings (67,929,506) (138,595, 208)
Interest paid on Debentures - 4,650,000 |
Met cash flow fromy{used in) in Financing Activities (C) 5,755,542 {223,416,958)/
Met increasef(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + () 1,393,067 (M3.279)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,676,392 5,389,670
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 6065479 4,676,392
By order of the Board of Directors
For Robust Hotels Private Limited
Kolkata k-ﬁféwﬁé/
09,11.2020 Director
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